
 
 

 
 
To: Members of the  

ADULT AND COMMUNITY POLICY DEVELOPMENT AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 
 

 Councillor Judi Ellis (Chairman) 
Councillor Roger Charsley (Vice-Chairman) 

 Councillors Ruth Bennett, Peter Fookes, Julian Grainger, William Huntington-
Thresher, Tom Papworth, Catherine Rideout and Charles Rideout 

  
 Non-Voting Co-opted Members 
  
 1 x Learning Disability Representative (vacancy) 

Babul Ali, Bromley Federation of Housing Associations 
Angela Clayton-Turner, Bromley Mental Health Forum 
Leslie Marks, Bromley Council on Ageing 
Keith Marshall, Disability Voice Bromley 
Lynne Powrie, Carers Bromley  
 

 
 A meeting of the Adult and Community Policy Development and Scrutiny Committee 

will be held at Civic Centre on TUESDAY 26 JULY 2011 AT 7.00 PM  
 
 MARK BOWEN 

Director of Resources 
 

 

Copies of the documents referred to below can be obtained from 
 www.bromley.gov.uk/meetings  

 
 

A G E N D A 
 
 

PART 1 AGENDA 

Note for Members: Members are reminded that Officer contact details are shown on 
each report and Members are welcome to raise questions in advance of the meeting. 
 

 STANDARD ITEMS 
 

1  
  

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND NOTIFICATION OF ALTERNATE MEMBERS  

2  
  

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

BROMLEY CIVIC CENTRE, STOCKWELL CLOSE, BROMLEY BRI 3UH 
 

TELEPHONE: 020 8464 3333  CONTACT: Philippa Stone 

   philippa.stone@bromley.gov.uk 

    

DIRECT LINE: 020 8313 4871   

FAX: 020 8290 0608  DATE: 18 July 2011 



 
 

3  QUESTIONS FROM COUNCILLORS AND MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC 
ATTENDING THE MEETING  

 To hear questions to the Committee received in writing by the Democratic Services 
Team by 5pm on 20th July 2011 and to respond.  
 

4  QUESTIONS TO THE ADULT AND COMMUNITY PORTFOLIO HOLDER FROM 
MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC AND COUNCILLORS ATTENDING THE MEETING  

 To hear questions to the Adult and Community Portfolio Holder received in writing by 
the Democratic Services Team by 5pm on 20th July 2011 and to respond. 
  

5  
  

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF ADULT AND COMMUNITY SERVICES PDS 
COMMITTEE MEETING HELD ON 14 JUNE 2011 (Pages 5 - 18) 
 

6  
  

MATTERS ARISING FROM PREVIOUS MEETINGS (Pages 19 - 24) 

7  
  

CO-OPTED MEMBERS TO THE A&C PDS COMMITTEE: UPDATE (Pages 25 - 28) 

 HOLDING THE PORTFOLIO HOLDER TO ACCOUNT 
 

8  
  

PORTFOLIO HOLDER DECISIONS TAKEN SINCE THE LAST MEETING (Pages 29 
- 38) 
 

9  PRE-DECISION SCRUTINY OF ADULT AND COMMUNITY PORTFOLIO REPORTS  

 The Adult and Community Portfolio Holder to present scheduled reports for pre-
decision scrutiny on matters where he is minded to make decisions.  
 

a IMPLEMENTING "FULFILLING AND REWARDING LIVES" - A 
COMMISSIONING PLAN FOR ADULTS WITH AUTISM IN BROMLEY 
(Pages 39 - 54) 
 

b THE PROVISION OF EQUIPMENT AND TALKING BOOKS FOR 
VISUALLY IMPAIRED PEOPLE (Pages 55 - 60) 
 

c PROPOSED CHANGES TO OLDER PEOPLE'S MENTAL HEALTH IN-
PATIENT SERVICES WITHIN OXLEAS NHS TRUST (Pages 61 - 68) 
 

d BUDGET MONITORING 2011/12 (Pages 69 - 76) 

 POLICY DEVELOPMENT AND OTHER ITEMS 
 

10  
  

THIRD SECTOR SCRUTINY: ADVOCACY FOR ALL (Pages 77 - 84) 

11  
  

BROMLEY SAFEGUARDING ADULTS BOARD 2010/11 ANNUAL REPORT (Pages 
85 - 130) 
 
 
 



 
 

12  SCRUTINY OF A BUDGET AREA: COMMISSIONING  

 This report will be to follow.  

13  
  

CONTRACTING ACTIVITY IN ADULT AND COMMUNITY SERVICES 2011-12 
(Pages 131 - 140) 
 

14  
  

WORK PROGRAMME 2011-2012 (Pages 141 - 146) 

15  LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 AS AMENDED BY THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT 
(ACCESS TO INFORMATION) (VARIATION) ORDER 2006 AND THE FREEDOM 
OF INFORMATION ACT 2000  

 The Chairman to move that the Press and public be excluded during consideration of 
the items of business listed below as it is likely in view of the nature of the business to 
be transacted or the nature of the proceedings that if members of the Press and public 
were present there would be disclosure to them of exempt information.  
 

  

Items of Business Schedule 12A Description 

16  EXEMPT MINUTES OF THE ADULT AND 
COMMUNITY SERVICES PDS COMMITTEE 
MEETING HELD ON 14 JUNE 2011 (Pages 147 - 
148) 
 

 
 

17  EXEMPT PORTFOLIO HOLDER DECISIONS 
TAKEN SINCE THE LAST MEETING (Pages 149 
- 152) 
 

Information relating to the 
financial or business affairs of 
any particular person (including 
the authority holding that 
information)  
 

 
  



This page is left intentionally blank



1 
 

ADULT AND COMMUNITY  
POLICY DEVELOPMENT AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

 
Minutes of the meeting held at 7.00 pm on 14 June 2011 

 
Present: 

 
Councillor Judi Ellis (Chairman) 
Councillor Roger Charsley (Vice-Chairman)  
 

Councillors Ruth Bennett, Peter Fookes, Julian Grainger, 
William Huntington-Thresher, Tom Papworth, 
Catherine Rideout and Charles Rideout 
 

 
Babul Ali, Brebner Anderson, Angela Clayton-Turner and 
Leslie Marks 
 

 

 
Also Present: 

 
 Councillor Robert Evans, Adult and Community Portfolio Holder 
   

 
 
1   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND NOTIFICATION OF 

ALTERNATE MEMBERS 
 

Apologies were received from Lynne Powrie and from Keith Marshall, who 
was replaced by Brebner Anderson.  Councillor William Huntington-Thresher 
submitted apologies for lateness. Councillor Diane Smith, the new Executive 
Assistant, was also unable to attend the meeting.  
 
2   APPOINTMENT OF CO-OPTED MEMBERS TO THE ADULT 

AND COMMUNITY PDS COMMITTEE 
Report RES11042 

 
The Committee considered a report summarising the proposed Co-opted 
Membership Appointments for 2011-12.  The Chairman reported that following 
the winding up of the Learning Disability Forum, Richard Lane would not be 
re-appointed to the Committee. She had approached Bexley and Bromley 
Advocacy Project and Mencap to see if a suitable person with learning 
disabilities would be willing to take on the role, and Mr Lane had offered to 
provide support to the representative.  
 
The Chairman thanked current and past Co-opted Members for their service 
on the Committee, and encouraged those Members without alternates to 
nominate suitable substitutes.        
 
RESOLVED that the following representatives be appointed to the 
Committee as non-voting Co-opted Members for 2011-12 -  

• Bromley Housing Federation - Mr Babul Ali; 

• Bromley Mental Health Forum - Mrs Angela Clayton-Turner; 

Agenda Item 5

Page 5



Adult and Community Policy Development and Scrutiny Committee 
14 June 2011 
 

2 

• Bromley Council on Ageing - Mrs Leslie Marks, (alternate – 
Maureen Falloon); 

• Disability Voice Bromley - Mr Keith Marshall, (alternate: Brebner 
Anderson);  

• Carers Bromley - Mrs Lynn Powrie, (alternate Maureen Falloon); 

• Learning disabilities – Appointment deferred (alternate Vivienne 
Lester).  

 
3   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

 
Councillor Judi Ellis declared that her father was resident in a care home in 
Bromley.   
 
Councillor Ruth Bennett declared in relation to agenda item 13 that she 
worked for borough MPs and may have been involved in forwarding 
complaints from constituents to the Council.  
 
Babul Ali declared in relation to agenda item 11b that he worked for A2 
Dominion which owned properties in the borough affected by the proposals. 
 
Councillor Ruth Bennett declared a personal interest during consideration of 
agenda item 8 as both of her parents had suffered strokes.  
 
Councillor William Huntington-Thresher declared a personal interest during 
the consideration of agenda item 11b as the Council’s representative on the 
Board of Broomleigh. 
 
4   QUESTIONS FROM COUNCILLORS AND MEMBERS OF THE 

PUBLIC ATTENDING THE MEETING 
 

One question to the Committee had been received from Mrs Susan Sulis 
Secretary of the Community Care Protection Group relating to MissionCare 
Residential and Nursing Homes in Bromley. The question and response are 
attached at Appendix A. 
 
5   QUESTIONS TO THE ADULT AND COMMUNITY PORTFOLIO 

HOLDER FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC AND 
COUNCILLORS ATTENDING THE MEETING 
 

Two questions had been received from Susan Sulis, Secretary of the 
Community Care Protection Group relating to the Winterbourne View care 
home in Bristol run by Castlebeck. The questions and responses are attached 
at Appendix A. 
 
The Chairman reported that Mrs Sulis had also contacted her about two care 
homes in Bromley, St Raphael’s and Lauriston House, in view of the financial 
difficulties being experienced by their owner, Southern Cross. She would 
ensure that these homes were considered by the Accommodation and Care 
for Older People Reference Group. 
 

Page 6



Adult and Community Policy Development and Scrutiny Committee 
14 June 2011 

 

3 
 

The Director of Adult and Community Services emphasised to the Committee 
that there were no Bromley residents in any of Castlebeck’s homes. 
 
6   MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF ADULT AND COMMUNITY 

SERVICES PDS COMMITTEE MEETING HELD ON 29 MARCH 
2011 AND THE JOINT MEETING WITH PUBLIC PROTECTION 
AND SAFETY COMMITTEE HELD ON 4TH APRIL 2011 
 

RESOLVED that 
 
(1) Subject to the correction of the word “wither” to “with” in minute 91, 
the minutes of the meeting held on 29th March 2011 be confirmed. 
 
(2) Consideration of the minutes of the joint meeting with Public 
Protection and Safety Committee held on 4th April 2011 be deferred to 
the next meeting. 
 
 
7   MATTERS ARISING FROM PREVIOUS MEETINGS 

Report RES11032 
 
The Committee considered a report providing an update on the progress 
made on matters outstanding from previous meetings - 
 
Minute 91: Matters Arising: Angela Clayton-Turner stated that there were 
difficulties in booking respite care in advance for people with severe dementia. 
The Director confirmed that respite had been identified as a priority and his 
officers would be working on this issue. The Committee was due to consider a 
Dementia strategy at its meeting on 27th September.       
 
Minute 92: Update: Thyme Out and Branching Out: The Chairman suggested 
that the Branching Out scheme be referred to the Shadow Health and 
Wellbeing Board. 
 
Minute 96 (A): Supporting Independence in Bromley Phase 3: Angela 
Clayton-Turner asked whether officers had considered the role of carers yet. 
The Director responded that Jean Penney was now looking at this, and added 
that the My Life web portal included a section on carers which would address 
the issues raised.  
  
Minute 97: Budget Monitoring 2010/11: The Chairman sought assurances that 
the Meals Service would remain in-budget in future, and requested that this 
item continue to be monitored through the “Matters Arising” report. The 
Director informed the Committee that options would be considered in the 
coming year and a report would come forward to the Portfolio Holder.  
 
RESOLVED that the progress made on matters outstanding from 
previous meetings be noted. 
 
 

Page 7



Adult and Community Policy Development and Scrutiny Committee 
14 June 2011 
 

4 

8   STROKE SERVICES IN BROMLEY 
Report RES11041 

 
The Committee considered a report introduced by Dr Angela Bhan providing 
an analysis of the results of the 2010 CQC Review of Stroke Services in 
South East London.  Dr Bhan explained that she was still joint Director of 
Public Health for Bromley but was also managing Director of the new 
Business Support Unit.  
 
The review had been compiled by the South London Cardiac and Stroke 
Network, and focused on the pathway of care from the point where stroke 
patients prepare to leave hospital through to long term care and support in the 
community.   
 
The Chairman welcomed the provision of a Hyper Acute Stroke Unit in 
Bromley at the Princess Royal University Hospital, which commenced a 
phased opening in January 2011 and was expected to be fully operational in 
October. Dr Bhan confirmed that there was closer cooperation between health 
and social care, assisted by the Health and Wellbeing Board. Members noted 
that the review had called for improved information for patients and carers, 
and were assured that information was improving. The Director pointed out 
that Stroke information figured prominently in the new My Life web portal.      
 
Councillor Julian Grainger commented that the report did not contain the 
usual financial, policy, legal and customer impact summaries that Council 
reports required. Dr Bhan offered to send details of the outcomes and 
mortality rates to Members, and the Chairman suggested that in future where 
there were reports impacting on joint services the Council report template 
should be completed in full.   
 
Councillor Ruth Bennett declared a personal interest during consideration of 
this item as both of her parents had suffered strokes.  
 
RESOLVED that: 
 
(1) The progress made since the CQC review be noted. 
 
(2) Further local work on reviewing all aspects of stroke and stroke 

services in Bromley, from primary and secondary prevention to 
management and rehabilitation be supported. 

 
(3) A further report on progress be made in six months. 
 
9   QUALITY, INNOVATION, PRODUCTIVITY AND PREVENTION 

(QIPP) PROGRAMME UPDATE 
Report RES11046 

 
The Committee considered a report providing an update on the Bromley 
features of the South East London Quality, Innovation, Productivity and 
Prevention (QIPP) Programme, which replaced the old PCT Commissioning 

Page 8



Adult and Community Policy Development and Scrutiny Committee 
14 June 2011 

 

5 
 

Strategy Plan.  The purpose of the programme was to identify how health 
services could be redesigned to achieve improved quality and increased 
efficiency. The Report was introduced by Dr Angela Bhan, who summarised 
the current QIPP schemes – the Muscular-skeletal Clinical Assessment and 
Treatment Service, Gynaecology and Dermatology assessment and 
intermediate community services, Admissions Avoidance, Chronic Obstructive 
Pulmonary Disease (COPD) community service, specialist Neuro-
rehabilitation service and Ophthalmology Primary Eyecare Assessment and 
Referral Service (PEARS), as well as improvement opportunities in long term 
conditions (LTC), Maternity and Mental Health.  
 
The Chairman informed the Committee that the Health Sub-Committee would 
look at urgent care centres and the impact of the closure of the A&E at Queen 
Mary’s Hospital.  
 
RESOLVED that the update be noted. 
 
10   PORTFOLIO HOLDER DECISIONS TAKEN SINCE THE LAST 

MEETING 
 

The Committee noted the decisions taken by Councillor Graham Arthur, the 
former Portfolio Holder, since the last meeting held on 29th March 2011. The 
Chairman thanked him, and his Executive Assistant Councillor Catherine 
Rideout, for their work with the Committee, and welcomed the new Portfolio 
Holder, Councillor Robert Evans, who stated that he was looking forward to 
his new role and working with the Committee. 
 
11   PRE-DECISION SCRUTINY OF ADULT AND COMMUNITY 

PORTFOLIO REPORTS 
 

The Committee considered the following reports relating to proposed 
decisions by the Adult and Community Portfolio Holder -  
 
A) ADULT AND COMMUNITY PORTFOLIO PLAN 2011/12 

Report ACS11030 
 
On 29th March 2011 the Committee had considered the draft Portfolio Plan. 
Following the Committee’s comments and further consultation, the Plan had 
now been updated and was presented for the Committee’s views before it 
was approved.  
 
Councillor Julian Grainger requested that targets be expressed not just as 
percentages, but also as real numbers, and with baseline measures. He also 
referred to the indicator for new visitors to the My Life web portal (page 21) – 
officers confirmed that this was designed to provide better advice and 
information, and that it would be possible to monitor its use.   
 
Questioned by Councillor Peter Fookes, officers confirmed that the indicator 
at page 17 for percentage of people leaving re-ablement having no ongoing 
care package was a local target.  Councillor Fookes referred to efforts to 

Page 9



Adult and Community Policy Development and Scrutiny Committee 
14 June 2011 
 

6 

return people with learning disabilities to supported living placements within 
the borough, suggesting that progress was slow, but officers confirmed that 
the programme was very successful. Leslie Marks supported this, stating that 
the project had been well conducted and that as a result of careful evaluation 
people had only been moved where this would lead to better outcomes.    
Councillor Fookes also commented that the indicator at page 25 for the 
proportion of people who use services who feel safe should always be 100% - 
the Chairman agreed that this was the ultimate target.  
 
Councillor William Huntington-Thresher noted that there were still targets 
waiting to be confirmed or where figures were awaited. He suggested that 
Members be alerted when these were available. 
 
In relation to the targets for Jobmatch and Job Carve, (page 52), the Portfolio 
Holder agreed to encourage all Council departments to commit to at least one 
placement each year.  
 
It was confirmed that the bid to the HCA for funding to bring 50 empty homes 
back into use had been submitted.   
 
With respect to travel training for people with learning disabilities (page 62), 
training had started in January 2011 and funding had been extended until 
September 2011. Four people had completed the course and were 
independent; six were in training with three so far expected to become 
independent travellers. The Portfolio Holder added that travel training for 
younger people was important and he was aware that special schools were 
putting this in place. Councillor William Huntington-Thresher suggested that 
feedback from these schemes was passed to the travel operators through the 
Transport Liaison Group, whose next meeting was in November.   
 
RESOLVED that the Portfolio Holder be recommended to agree the final 
Portfolio Plan for 2011/12, taking into account the Committee’s 
comments. 
 
B) HOUSING RELATED SUPPORT FOR OLDER PEOPLE - 

TRANSITIONAL ARRANGEMENTS  
Report ACS11025 

 
The report advised Members of developments in the transitional 
arrangements for housing related support since November 2009, and the 
work undertaken in relation to the transition from block accommodation-based 
contracts for sheltered housing in favour of targeted floating support for older 
clients with an assessed need for housing support, delivering major savings.  
 
Concerns were raised about whether residents would feel secure with floating 
support rather than a warden, and would fear losing someone on hand to do 
odd-jobs. It was emphasised that there had been extensive discussions with 
landlords and providers, assessments had been carried out where it was 
proposed to implement changes and there were other services available to 
deal with odd jobs. The Committee sought some explanation of the various 

Page 10



Adult and Community Policy Development and Scrutiny Committee 
14 June 2011 

 

7 
 

support approaches - definitions of terms such as concierge service would be 
circulated and included in the minutes (Appendix B).  
 
Councillor William Huntington-Thresher declared an interest during the 
consideration of this item as the Council’s representative on the Board of 
Broomleigh. 
 
RESOLVED that  
 
(1)  The transitional arrangements put in place for accommodation 
based support for older people and the approaches to minimise the 
impact on individuals be noted. 
 
(2)  The establishment of a needs based approach delivered through 
floating support be supported. 
 
(3) The Portfolio Holder be recommended to approve the proposed 
expansion of the existing floating support service in 2011/12 to cover the 
requirements in sheltered housing and to inform the demands of future 
commissioning. 
 
C) SHORT BREAK SERVICE (RESPITE) FOR PEOPLE WITH 

LEARNING DISABILITIES 
Report ACS11029 

 
The report setting out proposals for a new integrated short break (respite) 
service for adults with learning disabilities to be located at 118 Widmore 
Road, Bromley.  The proposal involved the transfer of ownership of 118 
Widmore Road from Bromley PCT to Bromley Council, and the allocation of 
funds from the learning disability re-provision capital programme for the 
purchase and refurbishment of 118 Widmore Road. It was confirmed that the 
proposals would result in a more flexible service.  
 
RESOLVED that the Portfolio Holder be recommended to agree the 
proposals for the integrated short break service for people with learning 
disabilities and recommend to the Executive the transfer of ownership of 
118 Widmore Road from Bromley PCT to London Borough of Bromley, 
subject to confirmation by the PCT, and the allocation of £1m from the 
learning disability capital fund towards its purchase and refurbishment. 
 
D) HOUSING AND RESIDENTIAL SERVICES: 2010/11 PERFORMANCE 

REPORT  
Report ACS11027 

 
The Portfolio Holder introduced a report providing an overview of the 
performance of Housing and Residential Services against the key objectives 
and targets for 2010/11. The report also set out the key drivers for future 
performance, including the increase in those presenting as homeless since 
the start of the recession, the reduced supply of available properties and 
changes to housing benefit. It was confirmed that the Empty Homes bid to the 

Page 11



Adult and Community Policy Development and Scrutiny Committee 
14 June 2011 
 

8 

HCA was an expression of interest for 50 properties per annum. Detailed 
housing advice casework was being provided to 4,000 households per 
annum, nearly all of which originated from within the borough. It was 
recognised that there was a need to manage the expectations of those in the 
lower priority bands. It was confirmed that where statutorily accepted 
homeless people were found accommodation in the private sector the Council 
still retained its statutory duties to them to provide a permanent tenancy 
unless they actually stated they accepted the property was a discharge of the 
Council’s statutory duty. Consequently the focus on prevention, options and 
alternatives to homeless applications was particularly important. 
 
Councillor Tom Papworth referred to the issue of developers seeking to 
reduce their commitments to provide affordable housing due to the change in 
market conditions which made their schemes less viable. He suggested that 
while the Council might want to resist such moves, there was a danger that 
schemes might not proceed and housing targets would be missed.   
 
The Chairman encouraged Members to spend some time in the Housing 
service in Joseph Lancaster Hall to observe the variety and complexity of the 
cases being considered.   
 
As this was the last occasion on which Martin Parsons, Head of Residential 
Services, was appearing before the Committee, the Chairman thanked him for 
his service and wished him well in retirement.   
 
RESOLVED that performance against key objectives and targets in the 
2010/11 Portfolio Plan be noted and the Portfolio Holder be 
recommended to agree the proposed priorities for 2011/12 as set out in 
paragraphs 1.30 and 1.31 of the report.  
 
12   OUTTURN REPORT 2010/11 - ADULT & COMMUNITY 

SERVICES 
Report ACS11026 

 
The Committee considered a report providing the final outturn position for 
Adult and Community Services for 2010/11.  The final outturn for the 
‘controllable’ element of the budget in 2010/11 was a £277,000 underspend. 
Although some budgets were very volatile, with good information it was 
possible to maintain close control of cost pressures.  At its meeting on 22nd 
June 2011 the Executive would be requested to approve carry forward 
requests relating to unspent grant income for those grant-funded projects and 
initiatives which would continue in 2011/12. 
 
RESOLVED that  
 
(1) The final outturn position for Adult and Community Services for 
2010/11, with an underspend of £277,000, be noted. 
 
(2) The proposal to request the Executive to agree net carry forwards 
totalling £809,000, including a required change in accounting 

Page 12



Adult and Community Policy Development and Scrutiny Committee 
14 June 2011 

 

9 
 

requirements to address ‘technical accounting’ changes in 2010/11, be 
noted. 
 
13   ANNUAL REPORT ON ADULT & COMMUNITY SERVICES 

COMPLAINTS RECEIVED APRIL 2010 TO MARCH 2011 
Report ACS11024 

 
The Committee considered a report providing Members with an overview of 
the main issues raised and lessons learnt from the annual report on Adult and 
Community Services complaints received April 2010 to March 2011. Officers 
informed the Committee that the report referred to formal complaints, defined 
as an expression of dissatisfaction that required a formal response, as 
opposed to low-key informal complaints that were easily resolved within 48 
hours as part of normal business or requests for service.  
 
Councillor Charles Rideout referred to the importance of learning from 
complaints, and asked why more ombudsman complaints were not dealt with 
at an earlier stage. The Director reported that ombudsman cases tended to be 
complex and might involve complainants who were unwilling to settle cases.  
 
The Chairman noted the value of electronic monitoring of care worker arrival 
and departure times, and recommended that this be specified in all new 
contracts. She sought assurances that the complaints referring to missed calls 
for domiciliary care did not all relate to the same providers or locations – this 
would be covered in more depth in a report to the Committee’s November 
meeting. She also commented on the use by one agency of the International 
English Language Testing System (IELTS), and requested that the Committee 
be given access to the test. 
 
The Committee noted that the complaint relating to Mencap referred to Royal 
Mencap, and not Bromley Mencap.  
 
RESOLVED that the annual complaints report be noted. 
 
14   UPDATE FROM BROMLEY MOBILITY FORUM 

Report RES11035 
 
The Committee considered a report providing Members with an update on the 
progress made by the Bromley Mobility Forum in the past year.  The 
prioritised work programme had included a Passenger Experience Survey and 
a proposal for involvement in the planning of the redevelopment of Bromley 
South Station.  Other workstreams included work to ensure that Bromley 
Council and other Bodies had received comments on mobility related 
proposals – she highlighted the proposals to charge blue badge holders for 
using Council car parks, where the consultation had appeared to be limited 
initially to Disability Voice. 
 
Leslie Marks had chaired the Forum and she introduced the report. She 
reported that the Passenger Experience Survey, whilst reporting some 
examples of very poor experiences, showed that on the whole people were 

Page 13



Adult and Community Policy Development and Scrutiny Committee 
14 June 2011 
 

10 

satisfied with local transport. They were intending to repeat the survey in a 
few months.  
 
She reported that it had been difficult to liaise with the Police – the Chairman 
offered to provide contact details for the specialist Disability Police Officer. 
 
The Chairman thanked Leslie Marks and her colleagues for their work on the 
Forum.  
 
RESOLVED that the update be noted. 
 
15   MOTION FROM COUNCIL: NHS REFORMS 

Report RES11033 
 
At the meeting on 11th April 2011, Councillors Peter Fookes and Katherine 
Bance had moved the following motion -    
 
“This Council calls on the Coalition Government to abandon its proposed 
reforms to the NHS and to ensure that under the next proposals that in the 
interests of patients, costs and accountability that local councils have a major 
role in the future of health care delivery.”   
 
After brief discussion Council had agreed to defer consideration of the matter 
to this PDS Committee meeting when it was hoped more detail would be 
available on the proposals and implications. The Chairman agreed that it was 
important to clarify the role of local authorities in the new system, but as the 
Government’s response to the NHS Future Forum had only just been 
announced, it was considered that further consideration should be deferred to 
the next meeting.  
 
RESOLVED that consideration of the motion be deferred. 
 
16   WORK PROGRAMME 2011/2012 

Report RES11034 
 
The Committee considered its work programme for 2011/2012. 
 
RESOLVED that  
 
(1) The work programme and schedule of meetings for 2011/12 be noted. 
 
(2) A Health Scrutiny Sub-Committee be established with the same 
membership as the PDS Committee, plus additional representation for 
Bromley LINk and Older People, to meet on a bi-annual basis to review 
health scrutiny issues. 
 
(3) The Accommodation with Care for Older People Reference Group be 
reappointed with the following membership – 
 
Councillor Ruth Bennett 

Page 14



Adult and Community Policy Development and Scrutiny Committee 
14 June 2011 

 

11 
 

Councillor Charles Rideout 
Angela Clayton-Turner 
Leslie Marks 
Ray Clay 
Ken Keepen 
Marion Purll 
 
17   LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 AS AMENDED BY THE 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) 
(VARIATION) ORDER 2006 AND THE FREEDOM OF 
INFORMATION ACT 2000 
 

RESOLVED that the Press and public be excluded during consideration 
of the items of business listed below as it was likely in view of the nature 
of the business to be transacted or the nature of the proceedings that if 
members of the Press and public were present there would be 
disclosure to them of exempt information. 
 
 
18   PRE DECISION SCRUTINY OF PART 2 (EXEMPT) PORTFOLIO 

HOLDER REPORTS 
 

A) CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS FOR SERVICES FOR PEOPLE 
WITH A LEARNING DISABILITY AT SWINGFIELD COURT, 
BROMLEY  

 
The Committee considered and supported proposals to extend by one year 
the care contracts with Avenues Trust for support services to people with a 
learning disability at Swingfield Court and 213 Widmore Road. 
 
B) CONTRACT FOR SUPPLY OF COMMUNITY EQUIPMENT AND 

MINOR ADAPTIONS  
 
The Committee considered and supported the recommendations in the report 
to negotiate a new 9 months contract with the current providers pending 
completion of a major options appraisal for the service. 
 
The Meeting ended at 10.26 pm 
 
 
 

Chairman 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 15



Adult and Community Policy Development and Scrutiny Committee 
14 June 2011 
 

12 

 
Appendix A  

 
 
4.  QUESTIONS TO THE COMMITTEE FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC  
 

From Susan Sulis, Secretary, Community Care Protection Group (CCPG) - 
 
1.   MISSIONCARE RESIDENTIAL AND NURSING HOMES IN BROMLEY 

 
Some MissionCare homes have a history of abuse and neglect, and most 
have not been inspected by the Regulator for 3 years. 
 
How many visits to each home have been made by (i) Care Managers 
and (ii) Contract Staff, to ensure compliance with National Care 
Standards, and the Council’s Contract terms? 
 
Reply: 
The questioner is not accurate in alleging a history of ‘abuse and neglect’ 
in Mission Care homes.  There were a number of instances in 2006-7 
when there were concerns over the quality of care in some Mission Care 
homes. These matters were resolved.  

 
All Mission Care homes are visited by the Council’s Contract Compliance 
officer at least once a year. Between 2008 and 2011, 28 visits have been 
made to Mission Care homes. Care managers regularly visit the homes as 
part of individual service user reviews and would highlight any issues of 
concern to the Contract Compliance Officer. The Council has no current 
concerns over the quality of care in Mission Care homes. 

 
 
5.  QUESTIONS TO THE PORTFOLIO HOLDER FROM MEMBERS OF THE 

PUBLIC 
 

From Susan Sulis, Secretary, Community Care Protection Group (CCPG) 
 
1. CARE QUALITY COMMISSION FAILURE TO PROTECT RESIDENTS OF 

CASTLEBECK’S WINTERBOURNE VIEW 
 

In view of the CQC’s gross incompetence demonstrated by the Panorama 
programme, the public can have no confidence in them as a regulator, and 
therefore grave concerns about standards of care in Bromley’s care 
homes. 
 
What additional action does the Council intend to take to ensure that 
residents are safe-guarded? 
Reply: 
Everyone who saw the Panorama programme would have been appalled 
by the horrific abuse inflicted upon the residents at Winterbourne View. 

Page 16



Adult and Community Policy Development and Scrutiny Committee 
14 June 2011 

 

13 
 

I can confirm that there were no Bromley residents at Winterbourne View 
and further that there are no Bromley residents in any other Castlebeck 
establishment.  
 
It is not for the Council to comment on the questioner’s view of the Care 
Quality Commission.  However, the Council does liaise closely with CQC 
when issues of concern are raised about standards of care in homes in 
Bromley.  
 
Whilst the CQC is the regulatory authority for registered care services, the 
Council is also committed to ensuring that quality is maintained in all 
registered care homes in the borough and carries out a programme of 
regular monitoring.  Monitoring extends to all care homes in the borough, 
not just those with which the Council holds a contract.  Priority is given to 
homes rated by CQC as one star – 25% of monitoring visited which took 
place in 2010/11 were to one star homes.  A Quality Assurance 
Framework has been developed and is being rolled out during 2011 to all 
providers who contract with the Council.  
 
Following the Panorama programme, in addition to the regular monitoring 
that the Department undertakes, a series of additional visits to LD 
residential units was instituted to add further reassurance that residents 
are safe and well cared for. 

 
 
2. BROMLEY COUNCIL CONTRACTS FOR LEARNING DISABILITY, 

DEMENTIA AND NURSING CARE 
 

Will the Council carry out their own inspections of all Homes 
contracted to provide this type of care for the Council, and publish 
reports on the Council’s website? 
 
Reply: 
The Council’s monitoring arrangements are set out in the answer to 
Question 1. The Adult and Community Policy Development and Scrutiny 
Committee receive an annual report on care home quality – the last report 
was published in February 2011. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 17



Adult and Community Policy Development and Scrutiny Committee 
14 June 2011 
 

14 

 
 
 

Appendix B 
 

 
11 (B) HOUSING RELATED SUPPORT FOR OLDER PEOPLE – 
TRANSITIONAL ARRANGEMENTS   
 
DEFINITIONS 
 
 
ENHANCED HOUSING MANAGEMENT - All landlords have a responsibility 
for housing management – the management of tenancies and of the 
premises. Enhanced Housing Management relates to supported housing 
where vulnerable people live and describes additional activities undertaken by 
the landlord to assist their tenants maintain their tenancy. This may include 
security, such as controlling access of the premises and facilitating and 
monitoring site visits from contractors and other visitors/professionals. It may 
also include arranging aids and adaptations, health and safety risk 
assessments of property and facilitation of some housing services. 
 
 
CONCIERGE – This describes a role that is often created by landlords to 
carry out enhanced housing management activities. It can be either a full time 
or a part time post, depending on the local arrangements and requirements 
and it establishes an on-site presence at key times. Typical activities 
undertaken may also include: 

• Manage daily contact with all tenants / residents 

• In the event of illness, ensure liaison with the appropriate agencies and 
relatives etc 

• Arranging and co-ordinating regular tenant / resident meetings. 

• Co-ordinating any tenant / resident activities which are integral to the 
communal facilities such as crime prevention talks, support surgeries, 
customer surveys. 

The concierge may also undertake some ‘handyperson’ activities as part of 
property maintenance. 
 
 
FLOATING SUPPORT – This is to assist people to maintain independence, 
advising, assisting or, if necessary, acting on their behalf in communications 
with various services and organisations. It may include such things as 
assistance with benefit claims, form filling and making referrals. Floating 
support is not tied to the accommodation; there is an expectation that the 
support will be to meet defined needs and once these have been fulfilled the 
support will ‘float off’ to respond to others support needs. 
 

 
 
 

Page 18



  

1

Report No. 
RES11069 

London Borough of Bromley 
 

PART 1 - PUBLIC 
 
  

 

 

   

Decision Maker: Adult and Community PDS Committee 

Date:  26th July 2011 

Decision Type: Non-Urgent Non-Executive Non-Key 

Title: MATTERS ARISING FROM PREVIOUS MEETINGS 
 

Contact Officer: Philippa Stone, Democratic Services and Scrutiny Officer 
Tel:  020 8313 4871   E-mail:  philippa.stone@bromley.gov.uk 

Chief Officer: Mark Bowen, Director of Legal, Democratic and Customer Services 

Ward: N/A 

 
1. Reason for report 

1.1 This report updates Members on recommendations from previous meetings which continue to 
be “live”. 

 

________________________________________________________________________________ 

2. RECOMMENDATION(S) 

2.1 The Committee is asked to note the progress on recommendations made at previous meetings. 

 

 

Agenda Item 6

Page 19



  

2

Corporate Policy 
 

1. Policy Status: Existing policy.        
 

2. BBB Priority: Excellent Council.       
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Financial 
 

1. Cost of proposal: No cost       
 

2. Ongoing costs: N/A.       
 

3. Budget head/performance centre: Democratice Services 
 

4. Total current budget for this head: £344,054  
 

5. Source of funding: Existing 2011/2012 Budget 
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Staff 
 

1. Number of staff (current and additional): There are 10 posts (9.22 fte) in the Democratic 
Services team.    

 

2. If from existing staff resources, number of staff hours: Maintainig the matters arising report  
takes less than an hour per meeting.   

________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Legal 
 

1. Legal Requirement: No statutory requirement or Government guidance.       
 

2. Call-in: Call-in is not applicable. This report does not involve an executive decision 
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Customer Impact 
 

1. Estimated number of users/beneficiaries (current and projected): Current Membership of the 
A&C PDS Committee (16 Members including Co-opted Members)   

________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Ward Councillor Views 
 

1. Have Ward Councillors been asked for comments?  N/A.  
 

2. Summary of Ward Councillors comments:  N/A 
 

Page 20



  

3

Appendix A 

Minute 
Number/Title 

Decision Update Action  Completion 
Date  

29th March 2011 
 

89. Questions 
from Members of 
the Public 
Attending the 
Meeting. 

That Bromley MyTime 
be asked to respond 
to the issues raised by 
Mrs Sulis. 

A response from 
Bromley MyTime to 
Mrs Sulis’s 
questions was 
awaiting and would 
be forwarded as 
soon as it was 
received. 
 
An email has been 
sent to the Chief 
Executive of 
Bromley MyTime.  
No response had 
been received as of 
14th July. 

Democratic 
Services Officer 

 

96(A) Supporting 
Independence in 
Bromley 

The Portfolio Holder 
suggested that it 
would be beneficial for 
the Committee to 
receive a presentation 
on a service user 
around how their lives 
had changed as a 
result of the 
Supporting 
Independence in 
Bromley Programme. 
 

   

14th June 2011 
 

2. Appointment 
of Co-opted 
Members to the 
Adult and 
Community PDS 
Committee 
 

That efforts continue 
to appoint t a suitable 
Learning Disability 
representative to sit 
on the Committee 

 Chairman 
 
Democratic 
Services Officer  

 

7. Matters 
Arising 

Minute 97: Budget 
Monitoring – The 
Chairman requested 
that the issue of the 
Meals Service 
continued to be 
monitored through the 
matters arising report. 
 

An item on the 
Meals Service will 
be considered by 
the Committee at its 
meeting in 
September. 

Head of ACS 
Finance 

27 September 
2011 

Page 21



  

4

Minute 
Number/Title 

Decision Update Action  Completion 
Date  

8. Stroke 
Services in 
Bromley 

That a further report 
on progress be 
presented in six 
months. 

The update has 
been added to the 
Committee’s work 
programme for 
January 2012. 
 

Democratic 
Services Officer 

31st January 
2012 

11(A) Portfolio 
Plan 2011/12 

That Members be 
alerted when targets 
are confirmed. 
 

   

11(B) Housing 
Related Support 
for Older People 
– Transitional 
Arrangements 

That definitions of 
terms would be 
circulated and 
included in the 
minutes. 

The Definitions 
were added to the 
minutes circulated. 

Democratic 
Services Officer 

1st July 2011 

 

Page 22



  

5

 

 
Diary of Health Social Care and Housing Partnership Meetings 
 
 
 
Adult and Community PDS Meeting: 2

nd
 November 2010 

 
3

rd
 November – Lead Officers Meeting 

8
th
 November – Physical Disability Sensory Impairment Partnership Group 

15
th
 November – Health Social Care and Housing Partnership Board 

8
th
 December – Mental Health Partnership Group 

13
th
 December – Older People Mental Health Partnership Group 

13
th
 December – Staying Healthy Partnership Group 

12
th
 January – Older People Partnership Group 

 
Adult and Community PDS Meeting: 25

th
 January 2011 

 
31

st
 January - Health Social Care and Housing Partnership Board 

4
th
 February – Learning Disability Partnership Group 

7
th
 February – Carers Partnership Group 

21
st
 February - Physical Disability Sensory Impairment Partnership Group 

23
rd

 February - Mental Health Partnership Group 
14th March - Older People Mental Health Partnership Group 
 
Adult and Community PDS Meeting: 29

th
 March 2011 

 
4

th
 April - Health Social Care and Housing Partnership Board 

13
th
 April - Older People Partnership Group 

6
th
 May - Learning Disability Partnership Group 

9
th
 May - Carers Partnership Group 

16
th
 May - Physical Disability Sensory Impairment Partnership Group 

18
th
 May - Mental Health Partnership Group 

13
th
 June - Older People Partnership Group 

 
Adult and Community PDS Meeting: 14

th
 June 2011 

 
13

th
 July - Older People Partnership Group 

22
nd

 July - Learning Disability Partnership Group 
25

th
 July - Carers Partnership Group 

 
Adult and Community PDS Meeting: 26

th
 July 2011 

 
1

st
 August - Health Social Care and Housing Partnership Board 

5
th
 September - Physical Disability Sensory Impairment Partnership Group 

12
th
 September - Older People Mental Health Partnership Group 

12
th
 September - Staying Healthy Partnership Group 

14
th
 September - Mental Health Partnership Group 

 
Adult and Community PDS Meeting: 27

th
 September 2011 

 
3

rd
 October - Health Social Care and Housing Partnership Board 

12
th
 October - Older People Mental Health Partnership Group 

31
st
 October - Carers Partnership Group 

 
Adult and Community PDS Meeting: 1

st
 November 2011 

 
4

th
 November - Learning Disability Partnership Group 

7
th
 November - Health Social Care and Housing Partnership Board 

21
st
 November - Physical Disability Sensory Impairment Partnership Group 

7
th
 December - Mental Health Partnership Group 

12
th
 December - Older People Mental Health Partnership Group 

Page 23



Page 24

This page is left intentionally blank



  

1

Report No. 
RES11060 

London Borough of Bromley 
 

PART 1 - PUBLIC 
 
  

 

   

Decision Maker: Adult and Community PDS Committee 

Date:  26th July 2011 

Decision Type: Non-Urgent Non-Executive Non-Key 

Title: APPOINTMENT OF CO-OPTED MEMBERS TO THE A&C PDS 
COMMITTEE 2011/12 
 

Contact Officer: Philippa Stone, Democratic Services Officer 
Tel:  020 8313 4871   E-mail:  philippa.stone@bromley.gov.uk 

Chief Officer: Mark Bowen, Director of Resources 

Ward: All 

 
1. Reason for report 

 Following a review of the positions available for Co-opted Members sitting on the Adult and 
Community PDS Committee an invitation has been extended to Bromley LINK to nominate a 
representative to sit on the Committee and fully participate in meetings. 

________________________________________________________________________________ 

2. RECOMMENDATION(S) 

2.1 That the following A&C PDS Co-opted Membership appointments be made to the A&C PDS 
Committee for 2011/12 without voting rights:  

 

• Richard Lane as Bromley LINk Representative. 
 

 

Agenda Item 7

Page 25



  

2

Corporate Policy 
 

1. Policy Status: Existing policy.  Co-opted Membership at relevant PDS Committees is 
encouraged given the added value that Co-opted Membership can bring to a PDS Committee's 
work  

 

2. BBB Priority: Excellent Council.       
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Financial 
 

1. Cost of proposal: No cost       
 

2. Ongoing costs: N/A.       
 

3. Budget head/performance centre: Democratic Services 
 

4. Total current budget for this head: £302,390 
 

5. Source of funding: Existing 2011/12 budget.  
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Staff 
 

1. Number of staff (current and additional): There are 10 posts (9.22 fte) in the Democratic 
Services Team.   

 

2. If from existing staff resources, number of staff hours: N/A   
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Legal 
 

1. Legal Requirement: No statutory requirement or Government guidance.       
 

2. Call-in: Call-in is not applicable. This report does not involve an executive decision. 
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Customer Impact 
 

1. Estimated number of users/beneficiaries (current and projected): This report is intended 
primarily for Members of this Committee  

________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Ward Councillor Views 
 

1. Have Ward Councillors been asked for comments?  No.  
 

2. Summary of Ward Councillors comments:  N/A 
 

Page 26



  

3

3. Commentary 

3.1  The London Borough of Bromley Procedure Rules (within the Constitution) state that “Policy 
Development and Scrutiny Committees are empowered to appoint non-voting co-optees on 
such terms and conditions as they consider appropriate.”[LBB Constitution 2011, Page 101] 

3.2 Following a review of the Membership of the Adult and Community PDS Committee there 
Chairman requested that an invitation be extended to Bromley LINK to nominate a 
representative to attend meetings and speak on behalf of the organisation.  It was felt that with 
the rapid reforms that are now shaping the health and social care agenda, Bromley LINk could 
bring some valuable expertise to the Committee. 

3.3 Co-opted Members bring their own area of interest and expertise to the work of a PDS 
Committee.  Co-opted Members often represent the interests of key groups within a Portfolio 
and co-option to a Committee can ensure that their views are taken into account when issues 
are considered. They broaden the spectrum of involvement in the PDS process and make the 
intrusion of party politics into scrutiny proceedings more difficult. 

3.4 Co-opted Members are bound by the Members Code of Conduct and are therefore expected to 
declare both personal and prejudicial interests and excuse themselves from parts of meetings 
where a conflict of interest arises. 

 

Non-Applicable Sections: Policy, Financial, Legal and Personnel 

Background Documents: 
(Access via Contact 
Officer) 

None 

 

Page 27



Page 28

This page is left intentionally blank



  
LONDON BOROUGH OF BROMLEY 

 
STATEMENT OF EXECUTIVE DECISION 

 
 

The Portfolio Holder for Adult and Community, Councillor Robert Evans has made the 
following executive decision:  
 
 

ADULT AND COMMUNITY PORTFOLIO PLAN 2011/12 
 

Reference Report: 
ADULT AND COMMUNITY PORTFOLIO PLAN, 14/06/2011 Adult and Community 
Policy Development and Scrutiny Committee 
 
Decision: 
 
That the Adult and Community Portfolio Plan for 2011/12 be agreed, subject to - 
 

(i) inclusion of the remaining targets and targets being expressed as real 
numbers with base line measures wherever possible; and 

(ii) an amended target relating to Jobmatch and Job Carve to encourage all 
Council departments to commit to at least one placement each year. 

 
Reasons: 
 

The Portfolio Plan reflects the priorities of ‘Building a Better Bromley’ and includes the 
main LPSA actions of the Local Area agreement as they relate to the Adult and 
Community Portfolio. 
 
The proposed decision was scrutinised by the Adult and Community PDS Committee 
on 14th June 2011 and the Committee supported the proposal. 
 
 
 

0000000000000000.. 
Councillor Robert Evans  
Portfolio Holder for Adult and Community 
 

Mark Bowen 

Director of Resources 
Bromley Civic Centre 
Stockwell Close 
Bromley BR1 3UH 
 

Date of Decision:   21 June 2011 
Implementation Date (subject to call-in):   28 June 2011  
Decision Reference:   ACS11015 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 8

Page 29



 
 

LONDON BOROUGH OF BROMLEY 
 

STATEMENT OF EXECUTIVE DECISION 
 
 

The Portfolio Holder for Adult and Community, Councillor Robert Evans has made the 
following executive decision:  
 
 

HOUSING RELATED SUPPORT FOR OLDER PEOPLE - TRANSITIONAL 
ARRANGEMENTS 
 

Reference Report: 
HOUSING RELATED SUPPORT FOR OLDER PEOPLE - TRANSITIONAL 
ARRANGEMENTS, 14/06/2011 Adult and Community Policy Development and 
Scrutiny Committee 
 
Decision: 
 
That the proposed expansion of the existing floating support service in 2011/12 to 
cover the requirements in sheltered housing and to inform the demands of future 
commissioning be approved. 
 
Reasons: 
 

Housing-related support services are designed to meet the Council’s objective to 
support independence, particularly for vulnerable people, and to avoid people having 
to move into residential care. It is proposed that services move away from block 
accommodation based contracts for sheltered housing in favour of targeted floating 
support for those older clients with an assessed need for housing related support. 
 
The proposed decision was scrutinised by the Adult and Community PDS Committee 
on 14th June 2011 and the Committee supported the proposal. 
 
 
 

0000000000000000.. 
Councillor Robert Evans  
Portfolio Holder for Adult and Community 
 

Mark Bowen 

Director of Resources 
Bromley Civic Centre 
Stockwell Close 
Bromley BR1 3UH 
 

Date of Decision:   21 June 2011 
Implementation Date (subject to call-in):   28 June 2011  
Decision Reference:   ACS11016 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 30



 
 

LONDON BOROUGH OF BROMLEY 
 

STATEMENT OF EXECUTIVE DECISION 
 
 

The Portfolio Holder for Adult and Community, Councillor Robert Evans has made the 
following executive decision:  
 
 

SHORT BREAK SERVICE (RESPITE) FOR PEOPLE WITH LEARNING 
DISABILITIES 
 

Reference Report: 
SHORT BREAK SERVICE (RESPITE) FOR PEOPLE WITH  LEARNING 
DISABILITIES, 14/06/2011 Adult and Community Policy Development and 
Scrutiny Committee 
 
 
Decision: 
 
That the proposals for the integrated short break service for people with learning 
disabilities be agreed. 
 
That the transfer of ownership of 118 Widmore Road from Bromley PCT to London 
Borough of Bromley be recommended to the Council’s Executive, subject to 
confirmation by the PCT. 
 
That the allocation of £1m from the learning disability capital fund towards the 
purchase and refurbishment of 118 Widmore Road be recommended to the Council’s 
Executive. 
 
 
Reasons: 
 

A projected increase in the number of people with learning disabilities coming through 
transition and those currently living with older carers indicates there will be a 
continuing demand for building-based respite services in the short to medium term 
while alternative forms of respite are developed. 
 
Building based short break (respite) services for adults with learning disabilities are 
currently provided from two locations – 3 Tugmutton Close, Farnborough and 44 
Bromley Road, Beckenham.  In view of the need to move the service based at 
Tugmutton Close, the limitations of the Bromley Road building and the inefficiencies 
of managing two separate services, options for the provision of an integrated service 
to relate both existing services have been developed. 
 
This proposal supports the Council’s Building a Better Bromley priority to support 
independence by providing respite breaks for service users’ families and carers. 
 

 
The proposed decision was scrutinised by the Adult and Community PDS Committee 
on 14th June 2011 and the Committee supported the proposal. 
 
 
 
 

Page 31



 
 

 

0000000000000000.. 
Councillor Robert Evans  
Portfolio Holder for Adult and Community 
 

Mark Bowen 

Director of Resources 
Bromley Civic Centre 
Stockwell Close 
Bromley BR1 3UH 
 

Date of Decision:   21 June 2011 
Implementation Date (subject to call-in):   28 June 2011  
Decision Reference:   ACS11017 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 32



 
 

LONDON BOROUGH OF BROMLEY 
 

STATEMENT OF EXECUTIVE DECISION 
 
 

The Portfolio Holder for Adult and Community, Councillor Robert Evans has made the 
following executive decision:  
 
 

HOUSING AND RESIDENTIAL SERVICES: 2010/11 PERFORMANCE REPORT 
 

Reference Report: 
HOUSING AND RESIDENTIAL SERVICES: 2010/11 PERFORMANCE REPORT, 
14/06/2011 Adult and Community Policy Development and Scrutiny Committee    
 
 
Decision: 
 
That the proposed priorities for 2011/12 to meet the range of housing duties and 
needs in Bromley and to deal with increased pressures on the service resulting from 
the recession, as set out in paragraphs 1.30 and 1.31 of the report, be agreed. 
 
Reasons: 
 

 
The objectives and work priorities for 2011/12 have been formulated to meet the 
Council’s statutory duties, Building a Better Bromley priorities and good practice.  
 
The proposed decision was scrutinised by the Adult and Community PDS Committee 
on 14th June 2011 and the Committee supported the proposal. 
 
 
 

0000000000000000.. 
Councillor Robert Evans  
Portfolio Holder for Adult and Community 
 

Mark Bowen 

Director of Resources 
Bromley Civic Centre 
Stockwell Close 
Bromley BR1 3UH 
 

Date of Decision:   21 June 2011 
Implementation Date (subject to call-in):   28 June 2011  
Decision Reference:   ACS11018 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 33



 
 

LONDON BOROUGH OF BROMLEY 
 

STATEMENT OF EXECUTIVE DECISION 
 
 

The Portfolio Holder for Adult and Community, Councillor Robert Evans has made the 
following executive decision:  
 
 

CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS FOR SERVICES FOR PEOPLE WITH A 
LEARNING DISABILITY AT SWINGFIELD COURT, BROMLEY 
 

Reference Report: 
CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS FOR SERVICES FOR PEOPLE WITH A 
LEARNING DISABILITY AT SWINGFIELD COURT, BROMLEY, 14/06/2011 Adult 
and Community Policy Development and Scrutiny Committee (Exempt)    
 
 
Decision: 
 
That the care contracts with Avenues Trust for support services to people with a 
learning disability at Swingfield Court be extended for 1 year until 21st June 2012, and 
at 213 Widmore Road for 1 year until 19th July 2012, the remaining extension periods 
for both contracts to be agreed by the Director of Adult and Community Services in 
consultation with the Adult and Community Portfolio Holder.    
 
 
Reasons: 
 

On 17th June 2009, Executive agreed the award of care contracts to Avenues Trust 
for the provision of support services to people with a learning disability at Swingfield 
Court from 22nd June 2009, and at 213 Widmore Road from 20th July 2011.  Both 
contracts were for a period of 2 years with the option to extend annually up to a 
maximum period of five years from the Commencement Date.   
 
The Avenues Trust is currently providing care and support services to a satisfactory 
standard within both properties, and is delivering a service consistent with the 
objective in Building a Better Bromley to support vulnerable people to live 
independently.  The service provided will ensure compliance with the requirement by 
the Department of Health to re-provide services for everyone with a learning disability 
living in NHS Campus accommodation. Extending these contracts will also allow the 
Council to align the end dates with other contracts awarded under the re-provision 
programme. 
 
The proposed decision was scrutinised by the Adult and Community PDS Committee 
on 14th June 2011 and the Committee supported the proposal. 
 
 
 

0000000000000000.. 
Councillor Robert Evans  
Portfolio Holder for Adult and Community 
 
 

Mark Bowen 

Director of Resources 

Page 34



 
 

Bromley Civic Centre 
Stockwell Close 
Bromley BR1 3UH 
 

Date of Decision:   21 June 2011 
Implementation Date (subject to call-in):   28 June 2011  
Decision Reference:   ACS11019 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Page 35



 
 

LONDON BOROUGH OF BROMLEY 
 

STATEMENT OF EXECUTIVE DECISION 
 
 

The Portfolio Holder for Adult and Community, Councillor Robert Evans has made the 
following executive decision:  
 
 

CONTRACT FOR SUPPLY OF COMMUNITY EQUIPMENT AND MINOR 
ADAPTATIONS 
 

Reference Report: 
CONTRACT FOR SUPPLY OF COMMUNITY EQUIPMENT AND MINOR ADAPT 
IONS, 14/06/2011 Adult and Community Policy Development and Scrutiny 
Committee (Exempt)   
 
 
Decision: 
 
The requirements for competitive bids be waived pursuant to Contract Procedure 
Rule 13.1, and the proposal to negotiate a new 9 month contract (with break clause 
which can be exercised on service of one months notice) with the current providers 
and within the existing budgets be approved for: 
 

• the supply of loan equipment to the in-house equipment store awarded to nine 
providers;  

• the provision of the minor adaptations service awarded to Jarman Ltd and 
Draper Ltd. 

 
Reasons: 
 

The Integrated Community Equipment Service, jointly funded by the Bromley PCT, 
currently provides loan equipment to Bromley residents, and the Minor Adaptations 
Service works to deliver and fit the adaptations that enable people to remain living 
independently in their own homes for longer. 
 
As part of the Supporting Independence in Bromley programme it has been proposed 
to implement a ‘retail model’ for the supply of simple items of equipment, and an 
appraisal of all potential service delivery mechanisms is currently being carried out to 
inform the decision about the future shape of the service.  During the interim period, 
the Council will need to continue to provide the majority of equipment from the in-
house store, together with a minor adaptations service.  This equipment is currently 
purchased via a framework of nine suppliers, and the current contract is due to expire 
on 3rd July 2011.  Two contractors, Jarman Ltd and Draper Ltd, currently provide the 
minor adaptations service and their contracts are due to expire on 30th June 2011. 
 
The proposed decision was scrutinised by the Adult and Community PDS Committee 
on 14th June 2011 and the Committee supported the proposal. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 36



 
 

 
 
 

0000000000000000.. 
Councillor Robert Evans  
Portfolio Holder for Adult and Community 
 

Mark Bowen 

Director of Resources 
Bromley Civic Centre 
Stockwell Close 
Bromley BR1 3UH 
 

Date of Decision:   21 June 2011 
Implementation Date (subject to call-in):   28 June 2011  
Decision Reference:   ACS11020 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 37



Page 38

This page is left intentionally blank



  

1

Report No. 
ACS 11040 

London Borough of Bromley 
 

PART 1 - PUBLIC 
 
  

 

   

Decision Maker: Adult and Community Portfolio Holder 

Date:  
For Pre-Decision Scrutiny at the Adult and Community PDS Committee 
on 26th July 2011 

Decision Type: Non-Urgent Non-Executive Non-Key 

Title: IMPLEMENTING "FULFILLING AND REWARDING LIVES" - A 
COMMISSIONING PLAN FOR ADULTS WITH AUTISM IN 
BROMLEY  
 

Contact Officer: Andrew Royle, Strategic Commissioner, Learning Disabilities 
Tel:  020 8461 7601   E-mail:  andrew.royle@bromley.gov.uk 

Chief Officer: Terry Rich, Director of Adult and Community Services 

Ward: All 

1. Reason for report 

1.1 In December 2010, the Secretary of State issued statutory guidance to local authorities, NHS bodies 
and NHS foundation trusts with regard to meeting the requirements of the Autism Act 2009.  
 

1.2 Local authorities are required to develop local commissioning plans for services for adults with autism, 
and review them annually. This plan should reflect the output of the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment 
(JSNA) and all other relevant data around prevalence. 

 
1.3 This report updates the Adult and Community Portfolio Holder on the requirements and implications of 

the statutory guidance and proposes that a draft commissioning plan be released for consultation. 
________________________________________________________________________________ 

2. RECOMMENDATION(S) 
 
PDS members are requested to: 

 2.1 Note and comment on the draft strategy 

         The Portfolio Holder is requested to: 

          2.2  Consider comments of PDS and agree to the release of the draft commissioning plan for 
consultation. 

 2.2 refer the draft commissioning plan to the Children and Young People (CYP) Policy Development 
and Scrutiny Committee for their consideration in light of the links with transitional arrangements for 
young people. 

Agenda Item 9a

Page 39



  

2

 2.3 agree that following consultation the final commissioning plan be prepared for agreement by both 
the Adult and Community Portfolio Holder and Children and Young People Portfolio Holder in 
November 2011.  

Page 40



  

3

Corporate Policy 
 

1. Policy Status: New policy.        
 

2. BBB Priority: Supporting Independence.       
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Financial 
 

1. Cost of proposal: No cost       
 

2. Ongoing costs: N/A.       
 

3. Budget head/performance centre: No Budget 
 

4. Total current budget for this head: £No Budget 
 

5. Source of funding: N/A 
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Staff 
 

1. Number of staff (current and additional): N/A   
 

2. If from existing staff resources, number of staff hours:         
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Legal 
 

1. Legal Requirement: Statutory requirement.       
 

2. Call-in: Call-in is not applicable.       
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Customer Impact 
 

1. Estimated number of users/beneficiaries (current and projected):        
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Ward Councillor Views 
 

1. Have Ward Councillors been asked for comments?  N/A.  
 

2. Summary of Ward Councillors comments:        
 

Page 41



  

4

3. COMMENTARY 

3.1 Autism is a lifelong developmental disability, sometimes referred to as Autistic 
Spectrum Disorder (ASD) or Autistic Spectrum Condition (ASC).  

 
The main areas of difficulty experienced by all people with autism are: 

 
•  communicating socially, particularly using and understanding facial 

expressions, tone of voice and abstract language; 
•  recognising or understanding other people’s emotions and feelings, and 

expressing their own, making it more difficult to fit in socially; and 
•  difficulty in assimilating information and contextualising it as needed in daily life 
•  understanding and predicting other people’s behaviour, making sense of 

abstract ideas, and imagining situations outside their immediate daily routine. 
 

Other related features can include: love of routines and rules, aversion to change, and 
sensory sensitivity (for example a dislike of loud noises). 
 

3.2 Around half of people with autism also have a learning disability (sometimes known as 
‘low-functioning’ autism), while the rest do not (so-called ‘high-functioning’ autism, 
which includes Asperger’s Syndrome). 

3.3 In Bromley, there are an estimated 1062 people with moderate/severe learning disabilities, and 
6250 with mild/moderate learning disabilities. The number of people with moderate or severe 
learning disabilities are expected to rise by around 80 by 2025, with the largest increases in the 
25-34 and 55-64 age groups  
 

3.4   There are no local sources of information that record incidence and prevalence of autism in 
adults in Bromley. Estimates based on those used in the national autism strategy indicate that 
prevalence is higher among men (1.8%) than among women (0.2%). A recent Health study 
across Bromley & Lewisham on 4-8 year olds confirmed a 2% prevalence rate. Recent referral 
rates through Bromley NHS for diagnosis of autism in adults were as follows: 
 
2008/2009 - 7 referrals/ assessments  
2009/2010 - 5 referrals / assessments 
2010/2011 - 17 referrals / assessments  
 
In order to better understand the overall numbers of people with autism in Bromley it is 
proposed that further work be carried out as part of the joint Strategic Needs assessment 
during 2012. 
 

3.5 In 2009 the government published the Autism Act which was the first piece of legislation 
specifically dealing with the needs of adults with autism. The ultimate outcome sought for adults 
with autism is the vision set out in the government’s strategy for adults with autism “Fulfilling 
and Rewarding Lives” : 
 
‘All adults with autism are able to live fulfilling and rewarding lives within a society that accepts 
and understands them. They can get a diagnosis and access support if they need it, and they 
can depend on mainstream public services to treat them fairly as individuals, helping them 
make the most of their talents.’ 
 

3.6 In December 2010, the Secretary of State issued statutory guidance to local authorities, NHS 
bodies and NHS foundation trusts with regard to meeting the requirements of the Act.  
 

Page 42



  

5

3.7 The Autism Act required that the guidance should cover the following: 
 
1.  The provision of relevant services for the purpose of diagnosing autistic spectrum 

conditions in adults 
2.  The identification of adults with autism 
3.  The assessment of the needs of adults with autism for relevant services 
4.  Planning in relation to the provision of relevant services to people with autism as they 

move from being children to adults 
5.  Other planning in relation to the provision of relevant services to adults with autism 
6.  The training of staff who provide relevant services to adults with autism 
7.  Local arrangements for leadership in relation to the provision of relevant services to 

adults with autism. 
 

3.8 In particular, the guidance sets out how health and social care services can: 
 

• improve the way they identify the needs of adults with autism, and 
• incorporate those identified needs more effectively into local service planning and 

commissioning, so that adults with autism and their carers are better able to make relevant 
choices about their care. 

 
3.9 The statutory guidance is to be treated as if it were guidance issued under section 7 of the 

Local Authority Social Services Act 1970. This means that local authorities and NHS bodies 
must follow the relevant sections or provide a good reason why they are not (one example 
might be because they can prove they are providing an equivalent or better alternative). If they 
do not follow the guidance and cannot provide a good reason, they may be liable to judicial 
review. Lack of sufficient resource would not necessarily constitute a good reason. 

 
3.10 One of the underlying principles of the guidance is to avoid new burdens or extra 

requirements that health and social care professionals must meet. Instead, the emphasis is on 
making sure existing policies are followed. It is important to note that the guidance reinforces 
that diagnosis of autism is not a guarantee of support or services but that it is a reason for 
assessment of needs. Access to publicly funded care services is still based on meeting the 
Council’s eligibility criteria (which in Bromley are substantial and critical need).  
 

3.11 Though the guidance provides direction, the ultimate aim is that local areas apply it to reflect 
local needs, existing strengths in service provision and the landscape they work in. To support 
local authorities with meeting the requirements of the statutory guidance, the Department of 
Health has published an ‘Essential Quality Outcomes for Local Self-assessment Framework’ 
which has been used to prepare the draft commissioning plan for Bromley. 
 

3.12 The draft commissioning plan (attached) sets out the current position in Bromley with regard to 
support and services for people with autism and suggests a number of proposed actions which 
address any identified gaps in provision. Through consultation the effectiveness of current 
services and the information advice and guidance offering available to people with autism in 
the Borough will be tested. 

 
3.13 The draft commissioning plan is specifically aimed at adults as required by the legislation. 

However officers in ACS are working in partnership with children’s services in order to address 
the requirements young people moving from childhood to adulthood. 

 
3.14  There is no additional funding available to local authorities to implement the requirements of 

the Autism Act and additional resources would not be required to deliver the proposals in the 
draft commissioning plan.   

 

Page 43



  

6

4. POLICY IMPLICATIONS 

 This report is presented to PDS as part of its scrutiny overview role in relation to policy 
development within ACS. 

5. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

 There are no additional resource implications arising from the Autism Act. The actions proposed 
in the draft commissioning plan can be met within existing resources. 

6. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

 TBA 

 

Non-
Applicable 
Sections: 

Personnel implications 

Background 
Documents: 
(Access via 
Contact 
Officer) 

Fulfilling and rewarding lives: the strategy for adults with autism in England. 
 
http://www.dh.gov.uk/en/Publicationsandstatistics/Publications/PublicationsPolicyAndGuidance/DH_113369
 
Implementing Fulfilling and Rewarding lives: Statutory Guidance. 
 
http://www.dh.gov.uk/en/Publicationsandstatistics/Publications/PublicationsPolicyAndGuidance/DH_122847

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 44



  

7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

REWARDING AND FULFILLING LIVES 
 
 

A  DRAFT COMMISSIONING PLAN FOR ADULTS WITH 
AUTISM IN BROMLEY 

 

 
 

JULY 2011 
 
 
 
 
 
 

   

Page 45



  

8

  
Introduction 

 
 In 2009 the government published the Autism Act which was the first piece of legislation 

specifically dealing with the needs of adults with autism. The ultimate outcome sought for 
adults with autism is the vision set out in the government’s strategy for adults with autism 
“Fulfilling and Rewarding Lives” : 
 

 ‘All adults with autism are able to live fulfilling and rewarding lives within a society that 
accepts and understands them. They can get a diagnosis and access support if they 
need it, and they can depend on mainstream public services to treat them fairly as 
individuals, helping them make the most of their talents.’ 

 
In December 2010, the Secretary of State issued statutory guidance to local authorities, NHS 
bodies and NHS foundation trusts with regard to meeting the requirements of the Act. Though 
the guidance provides direction, the ultimate aim is that local areas apply it to reflect local 
needs, existing strengths in service provision and the landscape they work in. To support local 
authorities with meeting the requirements of the statutory guidance, the Department of Health 
has published an ‘Essential Quality Outcomes for Local Self-assessment Framework’ which 
has been used during the preparation of the draft plan for Bromley. 

 
 Autism 
 
Autism is a lifelong developmental disability, sometimes referred to as Autistic 
Spectrum Disorder (ASD) or Autistic Spectrum Condition (ASC).  

 
The main areas of difficulty experienced by all people with autism are: 

 
•  communicating socially, particularly using and understanding facial 

expressions, tone of voice and abstract language; 
•  recognising or understanding other people’s emotions and feelings, and 

expressing their own, making it more difficult to fit in socially; and 
•  difficulty in assimilating information and contextualising it as needed in daily life 
•  understanding and predicting other people’s behaviour, making sense of 

abstract ideas, and imagining situations outside their immediate daily routine. 
 

Other related features can include: love of routines and rules, aversion to change, and 
sensory sensitivity (for example a dislike of loud noises). 
 
Around half of people with autism also have a learning disability (sometimes known as 
‘low-functioning’ autism), while the rest do not (so-called ‘high-functioning’ autism, 
which includes Asperger’s Syndrome). 

In Bromley, there are an estimated 1062 people with moderate/severe learning disabilities, 
and 6250 with mild/moderate learning disabilities. The number of people with moderate or 
severe learning disabilities are expected to rise by around 80 by 2025, with the largest 
increases in the 25-34 and 55-64 age groups  
 
There are no local sources of information that record incidence and prevalence of autism in 
adults in Bromley. For this reason, estimates based on those used in the national autism 
strategy have been used. These estimates indicate that prevalence is higher among men 
(1.8%) than among women (0.2%). A recent Health study across Bromley & Lewisham on 4-8 
year olds confirmed a 2% prevalence rate. 

Page 46



  

9

As noted in Objective 1, commissioning plans should be informed by robust local needs 
assessments. In Bromley it is proposed that a needs assessment will be carried out in 
conjunction with the director of public health during 2012. 
 
 Commissioning Plan: 

 
This draft commissioning plan for adults with autism in Bromley is our response to the 
guidance and we are seeking the views of people in Bromley about how the needs of people 
with autism in Bromley are being met. It is structured around the seven key objectives 
identified in the statutory guidance: 

 
1. Autism services should be commissioned as part of a well planned system. The 
autism needs assessment should inform the commissioning plan. All organisations 
should have a responsibility to collect information on needs (as required) and to feed 
this into the needs assessment.  
 
 
2. People with autism and their carers will be engaged in the development of the 
commissioning plan. 
 
 
3. Autism should be recognised by the decision making bodies in the Borough as an 
important matter. There should be a clear pathway for reporting and decision making. 
 
 
4. An accessible pathway for diagnosis and assessment for people with autism should 
be in place.  
 
 
5. People with autism should have access to trained and skilled assessment to help find 
out what they need. If eligible they should have access to personalised support. If not 
they should have access to preventative support, signposting and information.  
 
 
6. Where possible people with autism and their families should be able to have their 
needs met in services that everybody uses.  
 
 
7. Transitions from childhood to adulthood should be smooth and well co-ordinated.  
 
 

Page 47



  

10

 
 

OBJECTIVE 1  
 
 
Autism services should be commissioned as part of a well planned system. The autism 
needs assessment should inform the commissioning plan. All organisations should 
have a responsibility to collect information on needs (as required) and to feed this into 
the needs assessment.  
 
A commissioning plan looks at how many people with autism there are, what they need and 
what they say about what they want. Then it looks at how much money there is and decides 
what are the most important things to do first. A commissioning plan should be produced every 
year. This commissioning plan should fit with other plans and strategies for Learning 
Disabilities, Mental Health, and Housing etc.  
 
There is not enough accurate information about the numbers of people with autism. We need 
to collect better quality information locally and to use national information.  
 

   
What we propose to do – 

 
This draft strategy will ensure that our other plans and strategies integrate and support the 
delivery against the statutory guidance. For example our learning disability design specification 
for supported living services is being reviewed in order to ensure that commissioned properties 
will be accessible to people with autism. 

 
To have a better understanding of the overall numbers of people with autism in Bromley, it is 
proposed that data should be gathered as part of the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment in 
2012. 
 
 

OBJECTIVE 2 
 
 
People with autism and their carers will be engaged in the development of the 
commissioning plan. 

 
 What we propose to do -  

 
The views of people with autism and carers will be sought in the development of this plan and 
its implementation.  
 
We will use the Autism Standing Forum; Mental Health Partnership Group; Transition 
Operational and Strategy Groups as well as the Learning Disability Partnership Board, Experts 
by Experience and the LINk in the stakeholder consultation and ongoing engagement.  

 
 

Page 48



  

11

OBJECTIVE 3 
 
 
Autism should be recognised by the decision making bodies in the Borough as an 
important matter. There should be a clear pathway for reporting and decision making. 

 
 What we are doing now –  
 

As required under the Statutory Guidance we have identified the Council’s Strategic 
Commissioner for Learning Disabilities as having responsibility for lead commissioning of 
community care services for adults with autism in the borough.  
 
NHS Bromley has identified their Commissioner, Mental Health and Learning Disabilities as 
their lead for autism. 

 
What we propose to do - 
 
The Learning Disability Partnership Board (see objective 1) will report to the to the Health and 
Well Being Board on how we are delivering the support for people with autism.  
 
Lead officers for autism will report to their respective governance bodies within their 
organisations on a joint basis to ensure that actions and outcomes between health and social 
care are coordinated and complementary. 

 
 

OBJECTIVE 4 
 
 
An accessible pathway for diagnosis for people with autism should be in place.  
 
A pathway means that people in Bromley will know where to go to get a diagnosis of autism.  
 
The National Institute for Health and Clinical Excellence (NICE) clinical guideline for adults 
with autism is scheduled to be published in June 2012. In order to be ready for the guidance, 
NHS bodies and NHS Foundation Trusts that commission or provide diagnostic and 
assessment services should be reviewing existing best practice with a view to establishing how 
it can be adopted. This is not yet under way in Bromley. It is proposed that this work should be 
led by the Transition Strategy Group which includes representatives from Children and Young 
People Services (CYP) and health and social care professionals in order to assess the 
potential impact of this on services in Bromley. 
 
Once the NICE clinical guideline is published, NHS bodies and NHS Foundation Trusts that 
commission or provide diagnostic and assessment services will be expected to review their 
diagnostic processes and services against NICE’s best practice guidance. The aim of this is to 
make the diagnostic process more accessible and consistent. 
 
 
What we are doing now – 
 
We are reviewing existing best practice with a view to establishing how the NICE guidelines 
will impact locally. This work is led by the Transition Strategy Group which includes 
representatives from CYP and health and social care professionals. 
 

Page 49



  

12

Currently Bromley PCT Commission's Autism Diagnostic Services for adults from the South 
London and Maudsley (SLAM) NHS Foundation Trust.  Referrals to this service are tertiary, 
and have therefore been screened by local secondary services (Oxleas) prior to referral.  The 
service at SLAM offers a diagnostic assessment.  In some cases further support though 
outpatient / day-care / inpatient can be accessed or recommendations are made back to the 
local referring team. 

  
  

What we propose to do – 
 
We are currently discussing further development of the care pathway locally, including skills 
development, in order that some diagnostic assessment can take place locally within 
secondary care.  These plans will continue to be developed over the coming year. 
 
NHS Bromley will develop a diagnostic pathway in line with the statutory guidance. Health and 
social care staff will help to develop this. This will help local people to get a diagnosis if they 
want one.  
 
This will be measured against the NICE guidance due to be published in 2012.  

 
 

OBJECTIVE 5 
 
 
People with autism should have access to trained and skilled assessment to help find 
out what they need. If eligible they should have access to personalised support. If not 
they should have access to preventative support, signposting and information.  
 
If people with autism have FACS eligible needs (i.e. they are eligible for social care support) 
they should be able to have:  

 
• skilled and knowledgeable social work assessment,  
• a personalised support plan  
• trained personal assistants (if necessary),  
• support to manage personal budgets.  

 
Other supports might also be useful to people with autism:  

 
• befriending and mentoring,  
• group support,  
• brokerage, and  
• advocacy.  

 
Carers of people with autism should be able to have support and information to meet their own 
needs.  
 
What we are doing now – 
 
We are developing a support planning process that will support eligible people with autism in 
being able to access the services they require to meet their needs.  
 
For people who do not meet our eligibility criteria there are a number of organisations who we 
signpost people to in order that they may be supported in living full lives within the community: 
 

Page 50



  

13

Bromley Mencap have been commissioned to provide a brokerage service that aims to provide 
information, signposting and direct assistance to ensure that adults with learning disabilities 
who live in the borough have easy access to information and advice to enable them to make 
informed choices and assist them to maintain independence and community involvement. 
 
Burgess Autistic Trust’s (BAT) Family Service provides free information and support to 
families whose child, aged 18 years or younger, has been diagnosed with an Autistic 
Spectrum Disorder (ASD). Their Outreach Service is a free support service for young people 
and adults aged 18 and over with ASD running regular social groups and activities, offering 
young people and adults with ASD the opportunity to meet others and enjoy the benefits of 
social contact. 

BAT provides a range of ASD specific training including a Family Service Workshops for 
families and carers, bespoke training for partner or public sector organisations who work 
with people with ASD, and an annual conference on topical, ASD-related subjects 

 
Advocacy for All's Advocacy for Autism project began in 2004 and was initially funded by BILD 
and since then various charitable trusts. Working across Bromley and Bexley the project was 
the first autism specific advocacy project in England. They work with people with autism and 
Aspergers syndrome aged 18+ - (there is no upper age limit).  The project is available to all 
people with autism regardless of whether, or not, they are FACS eligible. Trained volunteer 
advocates add value to the project. 
 
Young people with Autism and Aspergers syndrome (age 14-18) receive advocacy support 
from Advocacy for All's Children in Need funded project. 

  
What we propose to do – 
 
We will look at what other Councils are doing and see where we can work together with them 
or share good practice. 
 
We will ensure that information, advice and guidance provision for those people who do not 
meet FACS eligibility criteria are clearly accessible for people with ASD. 
 
 

OBJECTIVE 6 
 
 

Where possible people with autism and their families should be able to have their needs 
met in services that everybody uses.  
 
The focus of the statutory guidance is to ensure that people with autism have the same access 
to mainstream services – housing, education, training, leisure activities – as the rest of the 
population. 
 
Autism is very different for different people. Some people will always need very specialist 
supports. Other people will be able to use ordinary services. All services should meet autistic 
needs within their service rather than send people to a specialist service to do the job for them.  
All support services should have training and development for their staff to be able to work well 
with people with autism. They should be providing training and development for their staff.  
 

 The guidance assumes that everyone who comes into contact with people with autism have 
had, as a minimum, awareness training, and, where appropriate, specialist training. There is 
no set timescale for compliance with this requirement and awareness training can be 

Page 51



  

14

incorporated into mainstream equality training. It is not anticipated that this will require 
additional resources. 
 
What we are doing now – 

 
Via joint teams with health providers, support is provided for people with autism who have an 
assessed need and are eligible under the Council’s criteria for support. This is usually through 
existing mental health or learning disability teams and services.  
 
We have updated our specification requirements to ensure that providers of commissioned 
services provide autism training for their staff.  

 
What we propose to do – 

 
We will liaise with providers of mainstream services including Bromley MyTime, Bromley Adult 
Education College, registered social landlords etc to identify the ways in which they can make 
their services more accessible to people with autism. 
 
 
Through support mechanisms like our Training Consortium we will enable providers to access 
training around autism.  
 
We will evaluate the current equality/ disability awareness training provided by the Council’s 
Learning and Development service to ensure that it is meeting the requirements of the 
guidance. 

 
We will provide training to non-care staff where appropriate (e.g. receptionists, housing staff). 
 
We will investigate opportunities for joint training with our cluster boroughs and health 
partners, including GP’s. 
 

 
OBJECTIVE 7 

 
Transition from childhood to adulthood should be smooth and well co-ordinated.  
 
Transition from childhood to adulthood for young people with autism can be difficult. Existing 
children’s to adults’ transitions systems should be developed to fully meet the needs of people 
with autism. Where they are eligible for support from the Council, people with autism should be 
able to have their needs met in the most suitable service, for example in the mental health, 
older peoples’ or substance misuse services.  

 
What we are doing now – 

 
The Council’s new Transition Strategy being jointly developed by Adult & Children Services 
with health input will help to support young people moving from childhood to adulthood and 
specifically references young people with autism. 
 
Closer joint working between Adult & Children Services has been developed at all levels in 
order to best manage the transition between services.  

 
We have commissioned a Transition Family Support Service to work with specific families 
going through transition with an aim to improving access to high-quality, timely information 
during transition. 

Page 52



  

15

 
Transition services in Bromley, whose recent performance has been rated as Development 
Stage 3 are building on established and newly developed practice to ensure a smooth care 
pathway for young people going through transition. In line with the guidance, an advocacy 
service has, following review earlier this year, been re-commissioned to deliver family support 
to identified cohorts of individuals coming through the transition process. This did not require 
additional resources. 
 

 
What we propose to do – 

  
We will engage with mental health, older peoples’ and substance misuse services in order to 
identify any specific issues relating to supporting people with autism in those services. 
 

 
 
 

Page 53



Page 54

This page is left intentionally blank



  

1

Report No. 
ACS11036  

London Borough of Bromley 
 

PART 1 - PUBLIC 
 
  

 

 

   

Decision Maker: Adult and Community Portfolio Holder 

Date:  
For pre-decision scrutiny by Adult and Community Policy Development 
and Scrutiny Committee on 26th July 2011 

Decision Type: Non-Urgent Non-Executive Non-Key 

Title: THE PROVISION OF EQUIPMENT AND TALKING BOOKS FOR 
VISUALLY IMPAIRED PEOPLE 
 

Contact Officer: Silvio Giannotta, Commissioning Officer 
Tel:  020 8313 7722   E-mail:  silvio.giannotta@bromley.gov.uk 

Chief Officer: Terry Rich, Director of Adult and Community Services 

Ward: Boroughwide 

 
1. Reason for report 

1.1 Following Portfolio Holder agreement (ACS 11004) to a consultation on changes to the 
provision of equipment and talking books, this report sets out the outcome of the consultation 
exercise and recommendations for the future provision of the service. 

________________________________________________________________________________ 

2. RECOMMENDATION 

2.1 The Adult and Community Services Portfolio Holder approves the proposed changes to the 
provision of equipment and talking books for visually impaired people. Namely; 

• Items of equipment as listed in para 3.3 below are provided free of charge to eligible 
service users who meet critical/substantial needs under Fair Access to Care services 
criteria 

• Additional items of equipment not listed can be provided free of charge in exceptional 
cases, should these be deemed vital in maintaining the service user’s safety and/or 
independence 

• The withdrawal of Council subsidy from the RNIB Talking Books service, with new and 
existing users directed to alternate providers including free local library services and free 
national providers 

 

Agenda Item 9b

Page 55



  

2

Corporate Policy 
 

1. Policy Status: Existing policy.        
 

2. BBB Priority: Supporting Independence.       
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Financial 
 

1. Cost of proposal: Estimated cost £9,770 
 

2. Ongoing costs: Recurring cost. 9,770 
 

3. Budget head/performance centre: Care Services Budget, Assessment and Care Management  
 

4. Total current budget for this head: ££9,770 
 

5. Source of funding: ACS Portfolio 
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Staff 
 

1. Number of staff (current and additional): n/a   
 

2. If from existing staff resources, number of staff hours: n/a   
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Legal 
 

1. Legal Requirement: Statutory requirement.       
 

2. Call-in: Call-in is applicable       
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Customer Impact 
 

1. Estimated number of users/beneficiaries (current and projected): Approximately 120 Talking 
Books users and 500 service users who received equipment issued by KAB within the past 24 
months  

________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Ward Councillor Views 
 

1. Have Ward Councillors been asked for comments?  N/A.  
 

2. Summary of Ward Councillors comments:        
 

Page 56



  

3

3. COMMENTARY 

3.1 The Council currently funds a wide range of equipment for people with a visual impairment who meet the 
eligibility criteria i.e. assessed as having a critical or substantial need. Some of the equipment provided 
is vital in helping people remain safe and independent at home, whereas some could be considered 
“non-essential” for which it would be reasonable to expect people to pay for themselves. Talking books 
have been provided to people registered blind/partially sighted in Bromley, the service is provided by 
Royal National Institute of Blind people (RNIB) with an annual subscription charge of £82 per user, 
funded by the Council. 

3.2 Kent Association for Blind (KAB) are funded by the Council to provide specialist statutory assessments 
for people with visual impairments and issue items of equipment to those assessed as requiring these. 
They are also responsible for administering the talking books service. 

3.3 The budget for the provision of equipment and talking books has been overspent for the past 2 years 
and measures to control costs are necessary to ensure future spend is contained within the available 
budgets. Report ACS 11004 set out the Council’s intention to consult with service users on proposed 
changes to the provision of equipment and talking books for visually impaired people.  

3.4 Almost 600 consultation documents were issued to people provided with equipment by KAB and talking 
books subscribers, with a total of 155 responses received. An equalities impact assessment of the 
proposed changes was also completed. 

Summary of Consultation Responses: 

Equipment 

3.5 Of the respondents 90% agreed that the following designated items of equipment should be provided 
free of charge to those who meet the eligibility criteria: 

Daily Living Mobility Aids 

Liquid level indicator Symbol cane 

Boil alert Long cane 

Oven shelf guard Wooden walking stick 

Cooking basket Guide cane 

Dycem Aluminium walking stick 

Vegetable holder Replacement cane tip 

3.6  Other items of equipment which have previously been provided free of charge can in future be 
purchased by service users using their own funds. Only in exceptional circumstances will KAB be able to 
provide non listed items free of charge, and only where these have been assessed as vital in ensuring 
the safety and independence of the service user.   

Talking Books 

3.7 The consultation sought views on the proposal to withdraw Council subsidy from the RNIB Talking Books 
service as free or cheaper alternatives had been identified. Annual subscription cost to the RNIB service 
is £82 per user and as of August 2010, 128 people were receiving a wholly subsidised service. 

3.8 35% of respondents agreed with the proposal, 42% disagreed and the remaining 23% were unsure or 
did not comment. The reasons for disagreeing with the proposal was due to the perceived superior 
quality of the service, the wider range and selection of books available and the increased functionality of 
the of the RNIB service. 

Page 57



  

4

3.9 As part of the consultation process council officers also attended a demonstration of talking books audio 
playing equipment with a small group of visually impaired service users. It was clear from the 
demonstrations the RNIB daisy player has additional functionalities, however the alternatives 
demonstrated (Calibre and British Wireless for Blind Fund) were accessible to those with a visual 
impairment. 

3.10  Given the availability of alternatives and the need to manage increasing demand by ensuring that 
available funds are targeted at the most vulnerable, it is proposed that the Council will cease subsidising 
the RNIB talking books service, with new and existing users signposted and supported to access the 
alternatives available. Service users wishing to continue receiving the RNIB talking books service may 
do so at their own expense. 

Equalities Impact Assessment 

3.11 The EIA identified instances where visually impaired people may potentially be adversely impacted from 
the change in policy. These are clearly set out in the EIA and a series of actions have been agreed to 
mitigate these. Below is a summary of the main issues and actions taken to mitigate these: 

• There may be occasions where individuals will require a piece of equipment not listed to remain 
safe and independent in their own homes. In these exceptional circumstances, discretion will be 
given to issue items outside of the list free of charge provided they have been assessed as vital in 
maintaining safety/independence 

• Physical access to library buildings - to mitigate the potential issue whereby some visually impaired 
residents may be unable to access library buildings, a home library service will be available to 
deliver books to their homes on a monthly basis 

• The consultation identified a lack of responses from the BME residents, it is therefore proposed to 
raise awareness through BME representative groups, by providing information and presentations 
on services available to visually impaired people 

• To address accessibility issues with the online library books service, KAB staff receive training in 
supporting people to access the service 

4. POLICY IMPLICATIONS 

4.1 The recommendations from this report supports the Council’s objectives in the Building a Better Bromley 
2020 Vision, in particular Supporting Independence; whereby people with a visual impairment, are 
supported to remain safe and independent in their homes for longer. 

5. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

5.1 The budget currently includes the combined costs of talking books and equipment for visually impaired 
people. Over the past two years, spend has outgrown the available budget. Below is a table of costs: 

Year Budget Actual Spend Equipment/talking 
books split (%) 

09/10 £9,550 £16,381 36% equipment 64% 
talking books 

10/11 £9,770 £15,716 47% equipment 53% 
talking books 

 

5.2 By limiting the type of equipment which can be provided free of charge to the list set out in para 3.5 
above and by ceasing to subsidise the talking books service, future spend will be contained within 
available budgets. 

Page 58



  

5

6. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

6.1 The Community Care (delayed discharges) Act 2003 states any qualifying service of a description 
prescribed in the regulations is to be free of charge to the person to whom it is provided. The qualifying 
services are defined in Regulation 3 of The Community Care (Delayed Discharges etc.) Act (Qualifying 
Services) (England) Regulations 2003 as intermediate care and community equipment (aids and minor 
adaptations) services. Some of the items of equipment currently provided free of charge to people with 
visual impairments by the Council could be considered non-specialist ordinary household items which do 
not fall within the definition of Community Equipment and for which it may be reasonable for people to 
purchase for themselves. 

6.2 Under s.7 Public Libraries and Museums Act 1964, a local authority is under a duty to provide a 
comprehensive and efficient library service for all persons desiring to make use thereof. The existing 
provision by library services is efficient and comprehensive, reasonable adjustments have been made to 
ensure the Bromley Library service is accessible to those with a visual impairment, this includes waiving 
all fees to those with a registered visual impairment, the provision of a home library service for 
housebound service users and the ability to reserve books from within the extensive library audio books 
stock, furthermore if there is particular demand for an audio book not available from the library stock, 
consideration will be given to purchasing this. 

6.3 The Equality Act 2010 s149 (1) places a duty on a public authority in the exercise of its functions, must 
have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination and advance equality of opportunity between 
persons who share relevant protected characteristics and persons who do not share it By implementing 
the steps outlined above the Council is making reasonable adjustments to ensure disabled residents are 
not placed at a substantial disadvantage compared to non-disabled residents. 

 

Non-Applicable Sections: Personnel Implications 

Background Documents: 
(Access via Contact 
Officer) 

Equalities Impact Assessment  

 

Page 59



Page 60

This page is left intentionally blank



  

1

Report No. 
ACS11034 

London Borough of Bromley 
 

PART 1 - PUBLIC 
 
  

 

   

Decision Maker: Adult and Community Performance Development and Scutiny 
Committee - 26th July 2011 

Date:  26th July 2011 

Decision Type: Non-Urgent Non-Executive Non-Key 

Title: PROPOSED CHANGES TO OLDER PEOPLE'S MENTAL 
HEALTH IN-PATIENT SERVICES WITHIN OXLEAS NHS 
TRUST 
 

Contact Officer: Claire Lynn, Strategic Commissioner Mental Health and Substance Misuse 
Tel:  020 8313 4034 Tel No   E-mail:  claire.lynn@bromley.gov.uk 

Chief Officer: Terry Rich, Dircetor of Adult and Community Services 

Ward: All wards 

 
1. Reason for report 

 To provide an opportunity for members of the Policy Development and Scrutiny Committee to 
comment on proposals received from Oxleas NHS Trust on proposed changes to in patient 
services for older people with mental ill health in Bromley. 

________________________________________________________________________________ 

2. RECOMMENDATION 

 Members are invited to comment on the proposals. 

 

Agenda Item 9c

Page 61



  

2

Corporate Policy 
 

1. Policy Status: Existing policy.  supporting Bromley residents to meet their health and social care 
needs through access to local services 

 

2. BBB Priority: <please select>.       
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Financial 
 

1. Cost of proposal: No cost Commissioned and funded by Bromley PCT 
 

2. Ongoing costs: <please select>.       
 

3. Budget head/performance centre: N/A 
 

4. Total current budget for this head: £N/A 
 

5. Source of funding:       
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Staff 
 

1. Number of staff (current and additional):  N/A staff emplyed by Oxleas NHS Trust   
 

2. If from existing staff resources, number of staff hours:  N/A   
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Legal 
 

1. Legal Requirement: No statutory requirement or Government guidance.       
 

2. Call-in: Call-in is not applicable.       
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Customer Impact 
 

1. Estimated number of users/beneficiaries (current and projected):  Currently 44 in-patient beds 
are provided for Bromley residents as part of the older peoples' mental health service  

________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Ward Councillor Views 
 

1. Have Ward Councillors been asked for comments?  <please select>  
 

2. Summary of Ward Councillors comments:        
 

Page 62



  

3

3. COMMENTARY 

3.1 In-patient services for older people with Dementia and organic mental health problems are 
 currently provided by the Oxleas NHS Trust at Green Parks House in Scadbury (Older Adults) 
 and Cator (Dementia) wards. 

3.2 Oxleas NHS Trust also provides similar services to the residents of Greenwich and Bexley from 
sites at Queen Mary’s – Sidcup and Queen Elizabeth – Woolwich.  The Trust are proposing to 
reconfigure these services in the light of changing usage of in-patient beds which will result in 
the closure of Cator ward. 

3.3 Over the past few years, the use of inpatient beds for older people with mental ill health has 
reduced considerably as more people are cared for in their own homes, supported by an 
increased level of resource in community older people mental health services and through 
social care services.  This has meant that older people inpatient wards frequently have empty 
beds – with an average occupancy rate of around 70%.  There are currently four wards at 
Green Parks House providing a total of 93 beds. These are divided into three wards (49 beds) 
for those of working age (one of which is a triage ward) and two for older people (44 beds).  The 
older peoples wards are divided into one ward for functional illness (depression, anxiety, 
psychosis etc) and the other for those problems associated with organic illness such as 
dementia. Two years ago there were regular occupancy levels at Green Parks House of over 
130% against a government target of 92% and a recommended 87% by the Royal College of 
Psychiatrists. 

3.4 Commissioners supported Oxleas NHS Trust in introducing a number of developments to 
reduce this pressure including establishing an Early Intervention Team, a Crisis and Home 
Treatment Team and a day treatment service. Greater emphasis was placed on reducing 
delayed discharges and maintaining throughput from in-patient wards, which is managed in part 
through the Demand Management Panel. More recently the Trust also introduced a triage ward 
which appears to have had a significant impact on reducing demand for in-patient services.  The 
result has been a reduction in occupancy levels to between 92% to 100% for adults and a 
steady reduction in occupancy levels to below 65% over a six month period for older people’s 
beds. 

3.5 Oxleas NHS have considered this under occupancy on a trust wide basis to improve the quality 
of care and to make more effective use of resources. They are proposing to reorganise services 
to create a centre of excellence in the care of people with dementia at the Woodlands Unit and 
two further specialist wards for older people with other mental health problems at Green Parks 
House, Princess Royal University Hospital, Bromley and at Oxleas House, Queen Elizabeth 
Hospital, Greenwich. In this process, the overall number of beds will be reduced to meet the 
lower level of demand. Oxleas Trust report that this pattern in under-occupancy for older 
people’s beds is replicated across Bromley, Bexley and Greenwich.  The Trust also suggested 
that a reduction in beds would enable it to meet the national efficiency savings in 2011/2012.  
Funding is rarely released through the partial closure of wards because of the economics of 
staffing a ward.  However, funding can be released for reinvestment through the closure of a full 
ward.  This would not be possible within one borough but could be achieved if an Oxleas wide 
approach is taken. 

3.6 The proposals submitted by Oxleas to the Council and the PCT are attached at Appendix One. 

4. POLICY IMPLICATIONS 

 The report is presented to this committee as part of their role in scrutinising health services. 

 

Page 63



  

4

5. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

 The proposals will realise some savings to Oxleas NHS Trust. Oxleas are discussing with the 
PCTs and local authorities in Bromley, Bexley and Greenwich how these resources will be used 
to meet local priorities for services to people with dementia. 

6. PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS 

 There are no personnel implications for the Council as all staff are employed by Oxleas NHS 
Trust 

 

Non-Applicable Sections: Legal 

Background Documents: 
(Access via Contact 
Officer) 

[Title of document and date] 

 

Page 64



  

5

Appendix 1 

OXLEAS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST 

 

 

Title: Proposed changes to older people’s mental health inpatient services: 
briefing  

From: Helen Smith, Deputy Chief Executive, Oxleas NHS Foundation Trust 

Estelle Frost, Service Director, Older Person’s services, Oxleas NHS 
Foundation Trust 

1.  Introduction 

The trust is developing proposals to reconfigure older people’s mental health inpatient services in 
Bexley, Bromley and Greenwich. Current inpatient provision is as follows: 

 Dementia beds Other MH beds 

Bexley: Woodlands Unit Camden ward: 14 Leyton ward: 17 

Bromley: Green Parks House Cator ward: 22 Scadbury ward: 22 

Greenwich: Oxleas House Shepherdleas ward: 19 

Over the past few years, the use of acute older adult inpatient beds has reduced considerably as 
more people are cared for in their own homes, supported by an increased level of resource in our 
community older people mental health services. This has meant that our older people inpatient wards 
frequently have empty beds – we calculate that the average occupancy rate is now only around 70% 
and on any day, we have the equivalent of a ward of empty beds across the trust. Table 1 below 
details bed occupancy borough by borough for each of the last 12 months 

TABLE 1: Acute older adult inpatient use: average ward occupancy (excluding leave) levels for each 
borough April 2010 – March 2011 

 Apr  May  Jun  Jul  Aug  Sep  Oct  Nov  Dec  Jan  Feb  Mar  

Bex 80% 72% 77% 79% 63% 62% 61% 82% 76% 84% 70% 54% 

Bro 93% 92% 92% 96% 86% 78% 74% 72% 64% 63% 57% 64% 

Gre 68% 71% 58% 73% 85% 89% 79% 67% 79% 77% 58% 70% 

Table 2 below details Bromley’s Occupied Bed Days for the last year for this client group. 

Page 65



  

6

TABLE 2: Bromley PCT acute older adult Occupied Bed Days (excluding leave), April 2010 – March 
2011 

Apr  May  Jun  Jul  Aug  Sep  Oct  Nov  Dec  Jan  Feb  Mar  

1180 1198 1111 1116 983 947 914 854 784 774 683 838 

The community provision of older adult services in Bromley is detailed below. 

Community provision of older adult services 

 Average caseload Average no. referrals/ month 

CMHT East 280 9 

CMHT West 286 15 

Bridgeways Day Hospital  45 9 

Bridgeways community 
assessment & therapy team 

95 93 

Older adults OT service 50 10 

Memory Clinic 1060 63 

2. Quality Improvements 

The reduced occupancy gives us an opportunity both to improve the quality of care we offer and to 
make more effective use of resources. We are proposing to reorganise our services to create a 
centre of excellence in the care of people with dementia at the Woodlands Unit, QMS, and two further 
specialist wards for older people with other mental health problems at Green Parks House, PRUH, 
Bromley and at Oxleas House, QEH, Greenwich. In this process, the overall number of beds will be 
reduced to meet the lower level of demand. 

The changes will mean that some patients and carers have to travel further to receive inpatient care; 
however, there will be the following benefits: 

• Inpatient services will be more specialised and deliver better outcomes and patient 
satisfaction; 

• Men and women will be cared for in separate accommodation to ensure safety, privacy and 
dignity; 

• The staff skill mix will be enhanced to ensure full multi disciplinary input; 

• We will improve the provision of therapeutic groups and activities on the wards 

• A new post will take responsibility for ensuring a smooth pathway for patients from admission 
through to discharge.   

• Elimination of double bedrooms, all patients will have a private bedroom, many with ensuite 
facilities. 

 

Page 66



  

7

3. Service changes 

It is proposed to: 

• Close Cator ward in Bromley, leading to a reduction of 22 beds 

• Reconfigure the two wards in the Woodlands (31 beds) into specialist dementia wards 

• Refurbish Leyton ward (Woodlands) to ensure full female/male separation  

• Reconfigure the remaining two wards across Oxleas House and GPH (41 beds in total) into 
functional mental health beds 

• Identify a small number of beds in GPH for triage; patients will be admitted for assessment to 
determine which ward is most appropriate 

• Capital investment in the wards where necessary to ensure a high quality environment 

4. Mitigating the impact of increased travel 

There were 66 admissions of Bromley residents to Cator ward last year (2010/11); in the future, these 
patients would have to travel to the QMS site for inpatient care.  

There are a number of bus routes to QMS and there is a bus terminus on the site. There is also on-
site parking. 

We have reconfigured our volunteer service in the trust and placed it within the older adults 
directorate in anticipation of these changes, and will look to extend our volunteer driver service.  

SLHT have already moved to a model of service delivery based over 3 sites and many Oxleas 
patients will be used to using Queen Mary’s and Queen Elizabeth hospitals to receive treatment for 
physical health conditions. 

5. Impact on staff 

We have begun the process of talking to staff about the changes and will be launching a formal staff 
consultation process in due course. We are hopeful that all affected staff will be found suitable roles 
within the trust, as we know their skills and experience will assist the development of the new model.  

6. Involvement of patients, carers and other stakeholders 

We will be working with patients and their families, our governors and partner organisations to ensure 
that this development takes place smoothly and that the changes deliver inpatient services in the way 
patients want. 

We are setting up a stakeholder reference group open to any partner organisation, to provide regular 
feedback and to incorporate a wide range of views in our planning. The first meeting of the steering 
group is Friday 17 June 2011, at 10.00am (venue tbc).  

Page 67



Page 68

This page is left intentionally blank



  

1

Report No. 
ACS11037 

London Borough of Bromley 
 

PART 1 - PUBLIC 
 
  

Agenda 
Item No.    

   

Decision Maker: Adult & Community Services Policy Development & Scrutiny 
Committee 

Date:  26 July 2011 

Decision Type: Non-Urgent Executive Key 

Title: BUDGET MONITORING 2011/12  
 

Contact Officer: Lesley Moore, Deputy Finance Director,       
Tel:  020 8461 4633   E-mail:  lesley.moore@bromley.gov.uk 

Chief Officer: Terry Rich, Director of Adult & Community Services 

Ward: Borough Wide 

 
1. Reason for report 

 This report provides the first budget monitoring position for 2011/12 which is primarily based on 
any overspends/under spends in 2010/11 that follow through into 2011/12 where no additional 
funding has been set aside in the 2011/12 budget.    The report also highlights significant 
variations arising in this financial year based on activity up to May 2011. 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 

2.1 Note that a projected overspend of £60,000 is forecast on the first budget monitoring report for 
2011/12 based on information as at May 2011. 

2.2    Note that Executive is being asked to approve the carry forward requests in Appendix 2. 

 

Agenda Item 9d

Page 69



  

2

Corporate Policy 
 

1. Policy Status: Existing policy.        
 

2. BBB Priority: Excellent Council.       
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Financial 
 

1. Cost of proposal: N/A       
 

2. Ongoing costs: Recurring cost.       
 

3. Budget head/performance centre: Adult and Community Services Portfolio 
 

4. Total current budget for this head: £101.9m 
 

5. Source of funding: ACS Approved Budget 
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Staff 
 

1. Number of staff (current and additional): 712 fte's   
 

2. If from existing staff resources, number of staff hours:         
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Legal 
 

1. Legal Requirement: Statutory requirement. The statutory duties relating to financial reporting 
are covered within the Local Government Act 1972; the Local Government Finance Act 1998; 
the Accounts and Audit Regulations 1996; the Local Government Act 2000; and the Local 
Government Act 2002. 

 

2. Call-in: Call-in is applicable       
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Customer Impact 
 

1. Estimated number of users/beneficiaries (current and projected): The 2011/12 budget reflects 
the financial impact of the Council's strategies, service plans etc. which impact on all of the 
Council's customers (including council tax payers) and users of the services.       

________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Ward Councillor Views 
 

1. Have Ward Councillors been asked for comments?  N/A.  
 

2. Summary of Ward Councillors comments:  Council wide 
 

Page 70



  

3

3. POLICY IMPLICATIONS 

3.1 The Resources Portfolio Plan for 2011/12 includes the aim of effective monitoring and control of 
expenditure within budget and includes the target that each service department will spend within 
its own budget. 

3.2 Bromley’s Best Value Performance Plan “Making a Difference” refers to the Council’s intention 
to remain amongst the lowest Council Tax levels in outer London and the importance of greater 
focus on priorities. 

3.3 The four year financial forecast report highlights the financial pressures facing the Council. It 
remains imperative that strict budgetary control continues to be exercised in 2011/12 to 
minimise the risk of compounding financial pressures in future years. 

3.4 Chief Officers and Departmental Heads of Finance are continuing to place emphasis on the 
need for strict compliance with the Council’s budgetary control and monitoring arrangements. 

4. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

4.1 A detailed breakdown of the Latest Approved Budgets and Projected Outturn by service 
area is shown in Appendix 1. 

4.2 The first significant variation identified this year relates to Bed and Breakfast and 
temporary accommodation placements. There has been a marked increase in the number 
of households presenting with housing needs, particularly those faced with imminent 
homelessness, mainly due to rent or mortgage arrears or the loss of private rented sector 
accommodation.  Since December 2010 there has been an increase of 16% in numbers 
requiring temporary accommodation and 29% for B&B placements.  

There is also a reduced number of properties available for temporary and bed and breakfast 
accommodation, which means that there is greater competition between other London boroughs 
for available units.  As a result there is an increase in the use of more expensive nightly paid 
accommodation, meaning that additional cost pressures of around £60,000 are currently 
forecast.   

4.3    Costs attributable to individual services have been classified as “controllable” and “non-
controllable” Appendix 1. Budget holders have full responsibility for those budgets classified as 
“controllable” as any variations relate to those factors over which the budget holder has, in 
general, direct control. “Non-controllable” budgets are those which are managed outside of 
individual budget holder’s service and, as such, cannot be directly influenced by the budget 
holder in the shorter term. These include, for example, building maintenance costs and property 
rents which are managed by the Property Division but are allocated within individual 
departmental/portfolio budgets to reflect the full cost of the service. As such, any variations 
arising are shown as “non-controllable” within services but “controllable” within the Resources 
Portfolio. Other examples include cross departmental recharges and capital financing costs.  
This approach, which is reflected in financial monitoring reports to budget holders, should 
ensure clearer accountability by identifying variations within the service that controls financial 
performance. Members should specifically refer to the “controllable” budget variations relating to 
portfolios in considering financial performance.   

Non-Applicable 
Sections: 

Legal, Personnel, Customer Impact 

Background 
Documents: 
(Access via Contact 
Officer) 

2011/12 Budget Monitoring files within Adult & 
Community Services Finance Section 

Page 71



  

4

 

Page 72



Appendix 1a)

ACS 11037

Adults and Community Services Budget Monitoring Summary - May 2011

2009/10 Division 2010/11 2010/11 2010/11 Variation Notes Variation Full Year

Actuals Service Areas Original Latest Projection Last Effect

Budget Approved Reported

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Care Services

-88 AIDS-HIV Grant 190 190 190 0 0 0

31,031 Assessment and Care Management 32,346 32,332 32,332 0 1 0 0

7,892 Direct Services 5,099 5,099 5,099 0 0 0

2,056 Learning Disabilities Care Management 2,230 2,230 2,230 0 0 0

2,036 Learning Disabilities Day Services 2,030 2,030 2,030 0 0 0

1,412 Learning Disabilities Housing & Suppport 1,317 1,317 1,317 0 0 0

44,339 43,212 43,198 43,198 0 0 0

Commissioning and Partnerships - ACS Portfolio

2,729 Commissioning and Partnerships 2,435 2,435 2,435 0 0 0

275 Drugs and Alcohol 256 256 256 0 0 0

14,841 Learning Disabilities Services 16,195 16,195 16,195 0 2 0 0

4,547 Mental Health Services 5,124 5,124 5,124 0 0 0

0 PCT Funding (Social Care & Health) 0 0 0 0 0 0

5,267 Procurement & Contracts Compliance 5,185 5,199 5,199 0 0 0

27,659 29,195 29,209 29,209 0 0 0

Housing and Residential Services

-5 Enabling Activities -18 -18 -18 0 0 0

-1,607 Housing Benefits 64 64 64 0 0 0

1,587 Housing Needs 1,173 1,173 1,233 60 3 0 0

111 Housing Strategy & Development 92 92 92 0 0 0

1,311 Residential Services 998 998 998 0 0 0

1,397 2,309 2,309 2,369 60 0 0

Strategic Support Services

8,574 Concessionary Fares 8,776 8,776 8,776 0 0 0

728 Customer Services 542 542 542 0 0 0

1,300 Performance & Information 1,543 1,551 1,551 0 0 0

197 Quality Assurance 199 191 191 0 0 0

0 Transforming Social Care 0 0 0 0 0 0

10,799 11,060 11,060 11,060 0 0 0

84,194 TOTAL CONTROLLABLE FOR ADULTS AND COMMUNITY SERVICES85,776 85,776 85,836 60 0 0

11,165 TOTAL NON CONTROLLABLE 1,381 6,931 6,931 0 0 0

9,775 TOTAL EXCLUDED RECHARGES 9,214 9,214 9,214 0 0 0

105,134 PORTFOLIO TOTAL 96,371 101,921 101,981 60 0 0

Reconciliation of latest approved budget £'000

Original budget 2011/12 96,371

Supplementary estimate for capital accounting adjustment relating 

to Government Grants Deferred 5,550

Latest Approved Budget for 2011/12 101,921

Page 73



Appendix 1 b)

NOTES AND EARLY WARNINGS 

1. Assessment & Care Management  - Older People's Domiciliary Care / Clients with Physical Disabilities

2. Learning Disabilities Services 

3. Housing Needs - Temporary Accommodation - £60k

ACS 11037

As a result of the foregoing, a projected overspend of £60k is anticipated on the temporary accommodation budget, based on 

current and forecast placement numbers. 

Officers continue to focus on preventing homelessness and diversion to alternative housing options and a number of initiatives 

are in place, or under consideration.  The initiatives will not reduce the projected overspend, only contain it, but budgets will be 

monitored closely during the year and further updates given.

The outcome of reablement will be closely monitored during the year.

In 2010/11 there was an overspend of £352k on the budgets for residential, domiciliary care and direct payments for people 

with physical disabilities, due to increased demand.  Ongoing pressure will continue in 2011/12 and funding of £600k has been 

allocated from the new Social Care and Health grant (S256 via the PCT) to cover the anticipated full year effect of the 

overspend.

At the end of 2010/11 there was an overspend of £446k on residential and domiciliary care for older people. 

Although projections for the full year, based on activity at the end of March show that there is ongoing pressure on the 

domiciliary care budget, it is assumed that the savings of £300k from reablement, built into the 2011/12 budget will be 

achieved.  It is anticipated that there will be reduced spend on residential and nursing placements, which along with the 

rigorous application of tighter eligibility criteria should keep spend within budget.  

Since the onset of the recession there has been a marked increase in the number of households presenting in housing need, 

particularly those faced with imminent homelessness. This is mainly due to rent and mortgage arrears and the loss of private 

rented sector accommodation.  There has been an increase of 16% in numbers requiring temporary accommodation and an 

increase of 29% for B&B placements since December 2010.

After taking into account the £1,239k received for growth and the full year effect of 2010/11 activity on residential and 

domiciliary care, expenditure in 2011/12 is expected to be within budget.

There is also a reduction in the number of properties available for temporary accommodation and for bed and breakfast 

accommodation, where there is competition between other London boroughs for available units.  This means an increase in 

the use of more expensive nightly paid accommodation and increased demand for accommodation.

Page 74



CARRY FORWARD REQUESTS £ £ Appendix 2

Adults & Community Services

4. Choice Based Lettings - contribution towards auto banding 15,000

Grants that would not have to be repaid

5. Learning Disability Campus Reprovision  

Transitional Care Staffing (e.g. time limited night wakes) 81,893

Client Furniture (means tested purchase plus Removals & Storage) 27,500

Programme Related costs - Management & Legal & HR engagement 126,300

Access workers & care management 38,400

Costs associated with remaining Campus operation 176,200

Respite reconfiguration - associated costs 8,500 458,793

6. Housing Overcrowding Pathfinder

Implement new Allocation System/contribution towards Hsg Register 92,517

7. New Homelessness  

Maintenance and Extension of Money & Debt Advice Surgeries 15,000

Houses in Multiple Occupation - Inspection & Regulation 10,000

Tenancy Sustainment/Negotiator 40,000

Incentives and Deposits to Landlords 40,000

Introduction/Development of Incentive Schemes 45,000 150,000

8. Stroke Care  
Fund 2 Stroke Co-ordinators to work in care management teams to 

develop competencies in meeting needs of stroke patients being 

discharged from hospital. 67,000

Fund contract with Stroke Association to provide support to families & 

carers of people with strokes.  Contract ends Nov 2011 23,144 90,144

  Resources Contribution to Earmarked Reserves -791,454

NET TOTAL 15,000

 

 

Housing Benefit Migration Grant - When the grant was 

given it was for the period up to March 2012 and was 

the Coalition Government’s offer to London Boroughs to 

deal with the negative effects of the reductions in HB to 

stave off the potential for more homelessness due to 

tenants getting less HB. 

P
age 75



Page 76

This page is left intentionally blank



  

1

Report No. 
ACS 11039 

London Borough of Bromley 
 

PART 1 - PUBLIC 
 
  

 

   

Decision Maker: Adult and Community Services Performance Development 
and Scrutiny Committee 

Date:  26th July 2011 

Decision Type: Non-Urgent Non-Executive Non-Key 

Title: ADVOCACY FOR ALL  
 

Contact Officer: Carol Fletcher, Procurement Officer 
Tel:  020 8461 7681   E-mail:  carol.fletcher@bromley.gov.uk 

Chief Officer: Terry Rich, Director of Adult and Community Services 

Ward: Boroughwide 

 
1. Reason for report 

 This report advises Members of the services commissioned from Advocacy for All to provide 
services to clients in the borough and of the cost of each contract. The report also details 
projects undertaken by Advocacy for All that are not funded by the London Borough of Bromley. 
Members requested this information at a previous Performance Development & Scrutiny 
Committee meeting. A representative of Advocacy for All will be attending the meeting to 
answer questions.     

________________________________________________________________________________ 

2. RECOMMENDATION 

 Members are asked to note the services commissioned from Advocacy for All.  

 

Agenda Item 10

Page 77



  

2

Corporate Policy 
 

1. Policy Status: N/A.        
 

2. BBB Priority: Excellent Council. Supporting Independence 
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Financial 
 

1. Cost of proposal: Estimated cost £177,100 per annum 
 

2. Ongoing costs: Recurring cost. £177,100 per annu, 
 

3. Budget head/performance centre: Learning Disability, Care Services Budget 
 

4. Total current budget for this head: £119,000   plus contributions from Carers Grant and the PCT 
Reprovision Budget 

 

5. Source of funding: Existing revenue budget - 819 900 2006 
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Staff 
 

1. Number of staff (current and additional): N/A Staff are employed by the contracted organisation 
to provide the Services concerned.    

 

2. If from existing staff resources, number of staff hours: N/A   
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Legal 
 

1. Legal Requirement: Non-statutory - Government guidance.       
 

2. Call-in: Call-in is applicable       
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Customer Impact 
 

1. Estimated number of users/beneficiaries (current and projected): 350 approx. across all the 
projects.   

________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Ward Councillor Views 
 

1. Have Ward Councillors been asked for comments?  N/A.  
 

2. Summary of Ward Councillors comments:  N/A 
 

Page 78



  

3

3. COMMENTARY 

 Background: 

3.1 Advocacy for All, formerly Bexley and Bromley Advocacy, was formed in 1995 as a citizen 
advocacy project for people with a learning disability. In 2005 they were the first organisation 
in England to start an advocacy project aimed at people with Autism and Asperger’s 
Syndrome who live primarily in the London boroughs of Bexley and Bromley but also across 
other areas. Today Advocacy for All works with a diverse group of service users including 
people who may have learning disabilities, physical disabilities, sensory impairments and 
mental health issues and cover a variety of issues. 

3.2 The organisation is governed by a board of 9 trustees. They have 24 permanent members of 
staff and approx. 60 volunteers who undertake a variety of roles. All staff have enhanced 
Criminal Records Bureau disclosures and attend mandatory training courses including 
safeguarding.  

3.3 Advocacy for All considers that the provision of “Advice, Information and Guidance” is very 
separate from advocacy. Their advocates are not support workers and believe that to be 
totally independent, the advocates must not have any other role in a person’s life.  

3.4 The organisation not only provides a number of projects solely in Bromley but also across 
boroughs. They have a proven track record of developing innovative projects for people with a 
learning disability and securing funding from a wide variety of funders.  

 LBB Funded Projects: 

3.5 Advocacy for All have a robust monitoring system and this helps to ensure that all the projects 
funded by the London Borough of Bromley fully comply with the terms of the relevant contracts 
and that the services are only available to people funded by the Council unless the contract 
states otherwise.  

Bromley Advocacy Worker:  

3.6 This post was originally funded via Learning Disability Development fund monies but has been 
funded by Adult & Community Services since 2008/9. The contract requires the Advocacy 
Worker to provide short term crisis advocacy to service users referred to the service with a wide 
range of issues which are often complex and involve legal matters e.g. housing, safeguarding, 
benefit enquiries. The Advocacy Worker must ensure that the service provided is meaningful 
and appropriate for each individual service user and that any information given is provided in a 
format accessible for each user. In addition, the Advocacy Worker is expected to complete all 
relevant / requested reports, assist with risk assessments and obtain feedback from users of the 
service.  

3.7 The latest monitoring information confirms that during the financial year 1.4.2010 to 31.3.2011, 
a total of 54 service users received support from the Advocacy Worker. With these 54 clients, 
the Advocacy Worker dealt with 95 issues, the majority of these related to housing (a total of 31) 
followed by behaviour (13) and disputes with services (10). At the end of the financial year 18 
cases had been closed and 36 remained ongoing.  The Advocacy Worker together with all 
Advocacy for All colleagues worked with the Council’s Supporting Independence team to 
familiarise themselves with the personalisation agenda in Bromley to improve choice and 
opportunities for people with a learning disability living in Bromley.  

Bromley Sparks:  

Page 79



  

4

3.8 The government’s white papers “Valuing people” and “Our Health, Our Care, Our Say” 
underlined the role of voluntary sector organisations in providing independent advocacy and 
support for people who have a learning disability to ensure they are able to express their views 
and ensure that they are fully involved in decision making. This contract was set up to promote 
independence and achieve the outcomes of the white papers for people who do not meet the 
Council’s Fair Access to Care (FAC) eligibility criteria. Under the terms of the contract, funding 
was made available to support Bromley Sparks to provide self advocacy groups which meet and 
undertake meaningful activities within the community, to support and socialise with each other 
and other local or national self advocacy groups and to provide representation on a number of 
forums, committees and sub-groups including the Learning Disability Partnership Board, 
Bromley LINk and the Disability Independent Advisory Group for the Metropolitan Police.  

3.9 Bromley Sparks currently has a membership of approximately 120 members and run a number 
of groups within Sparks e.g. Committee; Independent Living; men’s, women’s & children’s 
groups; easy read, news and office teams and healthy lifestyles. The easy read group provides 
paid work for people with a learning disability and produces easy read materials for the Council 
including partnership board minutes. The group have obtained additional funding from Trust for 
London, EXCEL Care and members raise money through their easy read work to pay for the 
rent on their own offices in Community House. They now provide a drop-in where people can 
share their concerns, experience and learn new skills.  

3.10 In addition to the above during the financial year 2010-11, members of Bromley Sparks 
consulted on the new Bromley “MyLife” website, attended a Police consultation day at the 
Ripley Arts Centre, became involved in the planning the launch of “Speaking Up Together ” 
incorporating the Sparks AGM, attended the social care charging consultation meeting run by 
Bromley LINk and Bromley Mencap, and the Easy Read team completed the easy read form for 
the social care charging consultation. Members have joined the Go4it exercise project and 
actively encourage people to independently access exercise as part of their daily routine.  

Speaking Up Group:  

3.11 This contract started in January 2007 and was aimed specifically at people returning to the 
borough or moving into supported living either from either the family home or residential care. 
The funding provides for the salary cost of one sessional worker who works for 12 hours per 
month & facilitates 2 meetings per month. The main objective of the group is to improve social 
networks for people with learning disabilities and promote community inclusion; and to help 
people gain in confidence & self esteem and become more independent and less reliant on 
statutory day services. 

3.12 The group currently has a membership of 40 people. Members are able to voice their opinions 
and communicate these to relevant services and organisations. Members represent the group 
at the Bromley LINk learning Disability Task Group and Coordinating Group and the Partnership 
Board. The group is looking to increase its profile and has written a new action plan for the 
group with new ideas on how to promote the group. In addition, in conjunction with Bromley 
Sparks, members of the group are in the process of creating short sessions on self advocacy 
which they hope to deliver to other groups such as the Shaw Trust, Bromley College and 
Jobmatch.  Members are also trying out new venues for social events to encourage members to 
travel to new places and develop new friendships as well as encouraging each other to host 
social events in their homes where space and consideration of other tenants allow.  

Person Centred Planning (PCP) Co-ordinator:  

3.13 Person Centred Planning (PCP) is an approach designed to assist people to plan their lives and 
support. It is used as a life planning model to enable individuals with disabilities or requiring 
support to increase their personal self-determination and improve their own independence. 

Page 80



  

5

Person Centred Planning was adopted as government policy in the UK through the “Valuing 
People” White Paper in 2001 and the follow up to this Paper “Valuing People Now” in 2009. It is 
promoted as a key method for delivering the personalisation objectives of the governments 
“Putting People First” guidance for social care. The role of the PCP Co-ordinator is to: 

§ Provide support directly to people with a learning disability 

§ oversee the development and implementation of PCP’s across all providers in the borough 

§ ensure that PCPs are effectively co-ordinated 

§ provide training to enable people to lead on completing their own PCPs 

§ have a key role in monitoring outcomes of the PCP’s and ensuring that they are 
progressed 

§ maintain recording systems to capture needs arising from individual PCP’s and ensuring 
that the data is collated and utilised to inform future commissioning plans. 

In addition, under the terms of the Agreement, Advocacy for All provide the following services:  

§ Publicise and promote PCP’s throughout the year 

§ Provide representation on the Commissioning Programme Board 

§ Provide office accommodation and management support for the Co-ordinator post.  

3.14 The latest monitoring information from Advocacy for All (1st Jan 11 to 31st March 11) indicates 
that there are currently 83 person centred plans underway the majority of which relate to people  
within the PCT Re-provision programme. To date the PCP Co-ordinator has worked with service 
users and staff to complete 80 PCP’s. 

3.15 In addition Advocacy for All have developed 32 support plans for people who are currently living 
in or looking to move supported living schemes within Bromley.  

3.16 The PCP Co-ordinator has also arranged PCP training courses. The numbers attended include 
175 people completing PCP Awareness training and 75 people completing PCP Facilitator 
training. Attendees include representatives from Council departments, Bromley PCT, schools, 
private providers, family members, people with a learning disability and third sector providers. It 
has also been agreed with the Council’s In-house service managers that the Co-ordinator would 
provide 1:1 support sessions for trained facilitators to run alongside team meetings and also to 
provide drop-in sessions with private support providers. However, monitoring information 
suggests that the take up of these facilities has been low within both groups.   

3.17 The PCP Co-ordinator is currently exploring ways in which monitoring could be improved and 
undertaken to help inform future service provision within Bromley.  

Bromley PCT Re-provision Advocacy Project:  

3.18 This project was set up to provide an advocacy service for people moving from NHS residential 
accommodation to community based supporting living accommodation. Due to the complex 
disabilities of some of these clients and where they lack the capacity to make decisions around 
their move, the Project has been working with the Independent Mental Capacity Advocate. The 
Project provides advocacy services post move up to the service user’s 6 monthly review.  

3.19 Young Advisors funded by LBB on a consultancy basis (by Children and Young People 
Services) 

Page 81



  

6

3.20 This project provides training and support to a group of young disabled people to act as 
advisers to the Council, become fully involved in tendering processes, grant applications, 
recruitment and undertake consultation on respite, schools and other activities.  

 Non LBB Funded projects:  

3.21 Advocacy Services : These are commissioned on an hourly rate by  local authorities and 
provides an advocacy service for people who meet the relevant authorities FAC’s criteria and 
who live within supported living or residential accommodation. A large part of the work 
includes supporting people through safeguarding adult procedures.  

Advocacy for People with Autism and Asperger’s Syndrome (Bromley/Bexley): 

3.22 This project is funded via Three Guineas Trust and provides 1:1 advocacy for people with 
Autism and Asperger’s in a way that meets their individual needs. The project aims to identify 
gaps in provision for people particularly those with Asperger’s Syndrome who do not fit into 
any client group criteria and helps support people to access a diagnosis. The funding helps 
Advocacy for All ensure that people are receiving support in accordance with the Autism Act.  

Outreach & Disabled Parents Project: (Bromley/Bexley) 

3.23 This project is funded by Comic Relief and Mrs Smith and Mount Foundation. It supports 
parents with a learning, physical and / or sensory disability with their parenting skills and 
supports them through any safeguarding children and children in need procedures. The project 
provides funding for advocacy services to support people who do not meet FAC’s criteria’s. The 
aim of the funding is to reduce isolation and promote inclusion.  

Young People’s Advocacy Project: (Bromley / Bexley) 

3.24 The project is funded by Children in Need and provides advocacy support for young people with 
a learning disability aged 14 plus and aims to ensure that their views are listened to as they face 
the transition into adulthood. The project also aims to encourage peer support for young people.  

Speaking up Together: (Bexley / Bromley) 

3.25 This project is funded by the Big Lottery and aims to bring together all speaking up groups to 
become a bigger voice for people with a learning disability both locally and nationally. In 
addition the project helps service users develop a website and promotes inclusion within the 
local community. 

Bexley Speaking up Group: 

3.26 The group is funded by LB Bexley and currently has a membership of approx. 42 members. The 
group aims to promote independence for people who do not meet the Council’s FAC’s criteria 
and improve confidence and self esteem. The group encourage peer support. All subjects for 
discussions are determined by members.  

Speaking up in Schools: (Bromley/ Bexley) 

3.27 The project is funded by individual schools and supports young people in 5 special needs 
schools to establish and run their own self advocacy groups and supports young people with a 
wide range of learning, physical and communication difficulties.  

Relevant Persons Representative (RPR):  

3.28 The project is funded by LB Bexley and provides funding for a relevant persons representative 
for people who have Deprivation of Liberty Orders under the Mental Capacity Act.  

Page 82



  

7

3.29 Advocacy for All also provide 2 different services currently funded by London Councils. 
Negotiations are currently taking place with the relevant Local Authorities relating to future 
funding of the projects.  

1) Self directed Support Advocacy for Disabled People:  (Bromley / Bexley) currently 
funded until August 2011. The main activities of the project are to:  

Ø  Support disabled people who need advocacy support to access benefit entitlements; 

Ø  Promote the take up of direct payments & individualised budgets 

Ø  Provide advocacy through the personalisation agenda.  

2) Healthy Lifestyles for People with a Learning Disability: (Bromley / Bexley/ 
Greenwich / Croydon/ Merton/ Wandsworth). The key activities under the scope of this 
agreement are:  

Ø  Developing and promoting a healthy lifestyle; 

Ø  Work with statutory and voluntary agencies to promote health; 

Ø  Support users to develop their project; 

Ø  Monthly healthy lifestyle groups; 

Ø  Buddying system to support people access mainstream sport & leisure facilities; 

Ø  Providing support and information in an accessible way on health related issues; 

Ø  Accessible website (www.advocate4health.org.uk).  

4. POLICY IMPLICATIONS 

 The services provided by Advocacy for All are designed to meet the Council’s objective to 
support independence, particularly for vulnerable people.  

5. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

The annual cost of the projects detailed in paragraphs 3.3 to 3.20 are detailed in the table 
below.  

 Project Name Cost in 2011/12  

Full Time Advocacy Worker £47,703 

Bromley Sparks £20,000 

Speaking Up Group £20,246 

PCP Co-ordinator Post £51,049 

Bromley PCT Re-provision 
Advocacy Project 

£38,102 

Total Cost per Annum  £177,100 

 

Page 83



  

8

6. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

 The government’s white papers “Valuing people” and “Our Health, Our Care, Our Say” 
underlined the role of voluntary sector organisations in providing independent advocacy and 
support for people who have a learning disability to ensure they are able to express their views 
and ensure that they are fully involved in decision making. The contracts with Advocacy for All 
help the Council to fulfil its obligations to provide independent advocacy support to people with 
a learning disability.     

Non-Applicable Sections: Personnel Implications 

Background Documents: 
(Access via Contact 
Officer) 

[Title of document and date] 

 

Page 84



  

1

Report No. 
ACS11038 

London Borough of Bromley 
 

PART 1 - PUBLIC 
 
  

 

   

Decision Maker: ADULT & COMMUNITY POLICY DEVELOPMENT & SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE  

Date:  26th July 2011 

Decision Type: Non-Urgent Non-Executive Non-Key 

Title: BROMLEY SAFEGUARDING ADULTS BOARD ANNUAL 
REPORT 2010/11 
 

Contact Officer: Susannah Simpson  , Adult Safeguarding Manager 
Tel:  020 8461 7822   E-mail:  susannah.simpson@bromley.gov.uk 

Chief Officer: Terry Rich, Director - Adult and Community Services  

Ward: Boroughwide 

 
1. Reason for report 

This report provides members with an overview of the main issues raised from the Bromley 
Safeguarding Adults Board (BSAB) annual report (Appendix 1).  The BSAB annual report outlines 
the work of the Board including oversight of joint action to safeguard adults. 

__________________________________________________________________ 

2. RECOMMENDATION(S) 

PDS Committee Members are asked to: 

1. Comment on the contents of the Bromley Safeguarding Adults Board Annual Report 2010/11. 

 

 

Agenda Item 11

Page 85



  

2

Corporate Policy 
 

1. Policy Status: Existing policy.        
 

2. BBB Priority: Excellent Council. Supporting Independence. 
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Financial 
 

1. Cost of proposal: No cost       
 

2. Ongoing costs: Recurring cost.       
 

3. Budget head/performance centre: Aileen Stamate Quality Assurance Manager, Strategy & 
Performance 

 

4. Total current budget for this head: £BSAB  funding comes from the partner organisations and is 
deployed on objectives set by the  BSAB.  LBB will contribute £19K to the BSAB budget for 
2011/12 .   BSAB services receive support from the  Adult Safeguarding  Manager (jointly 
funded by LBB and the PCT), and support staff  The cost of staffing to LBB  for this service 
totals  £95K  

 

5. Source of funding:  The cost of BSAB work is contained within current allocated LBB budgets 
and commitments from partner organisations agreed for 2011/12. 

________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Staff 
 

1. Number of staff (current and additional): 2.75 FTE  allocated to strategic support for 
safeguarding adults in Bromley;    

 

2. If from existing staff resources, number of staff hours: 99 per week    
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Legal 
 

1. Legal Requirement: Statutory requirement.       
 

2. Call-in: Call-in is not applicable.       
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Customer Impact 
 

1. Estimated number of users/beneficiaries (current and projected): 523 safeguarding  referrals 
investigated under the adult safeguarding procedures during 2010/11.    

________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Ward Councillor Views 
 

1. Have Ward Councillors been asked for comments?  N/A.  
 

2. Summary of Ward Councillors comments:      
 

Page 86



  

3

3. COMMENTARY 

3.1 The Bromley Safeguarding Adults Board (BSAB) has been responsible since 2008 for the 
coordination and development of work to safeguard vulnerable adults from abuse and neglect in 
accordance with Department of Health guidance “No Secrets”.  The  local authority is required to 
act as ‘lead agency’, holding partner agencies accountable, whilst emphasising the responsibility 
of all agencies to work in partnership to plan, implement and monitor adult safeguarding work.  

 
  
3.2 The recent “Statement of Government Policy on Adult Safeguarding” (May 2011), confirms that 

following public consultation on “No Secrets’’ and the recommendations of the “Review of Adult 
Social care Law” by the Law Commission (May 2011), the government intends to seek to 
legislate for Safeguarding Adults Boards, making existing Boards statutory.  BSAB welcomes this 
development as well as the promotion of personalised services and outcomes presented in the 
Government’s “A Vision for Adult Social Care; Capable Communities and Active Citizens”. In line 
with these developments, BSAB is committed to ensuring that services offer safety and choice 
and emphasise that people should be protected when unable to protect themselves, but this 
should not be at the cost of peoples’ rights to make decisions about how they live their lives.   

   
3.3 The BSAB Annual report gives an overview of the work undertaken by the Board to raise 

awareness of adult safeguarding, drive improvements in multi-agency work and learn from 
experience to improve outcomes for service users. 

 
3.4 Since 2008 adult safeguarding referrals have increased as a result of awareness raising and the 

development of performance standards by the Board.  Adult safeguarding referrals increased 18 
% from 443 in 2009/10 to 523 in 2010/11; fortunately, only a very small number of concerns were 
serious, making it crucial that the limited resources of all agencies are coordinated and used 
effectively to manage significant risks.  Abuse was substantiated or partially substantiated in 174 
(40%) instances which is in line with other local authorities.  

 
3.5 The Metropolitan Police in Bromley are fully engaged in the work of the Board and now have a 

dedicated resource to respond to crime against vulnerable people.  There has been a significant 
increase in the number of adult safeguarding cases where there has been police involvement.    
The increase has been from 43 cases in 2009/10 to 106 cases in 2010/11.   

 
3.6 BSAB recognises the importance of all partners in the protection of people in vulnerable 

situations and during the year welcomed the London Fire Service as a partner on the Board. 
Following a house fire in Bromley involving a vulnerable person, BSAB worked with the Borough 
Fire Commander through training for health and social care staff in identifying fire risks.  A 
referral system has also been developed and this has resulted in 132 vulnerable people 
benefiting from home safety visits from London Fire Service.  

 
3.7 BSAB holds all partners accountable for their safeguarding work and last year received from 

South London Healthcare NHS trust details of progress on the implementation of the action plan 
to improve staff awareness of adult safeguarding following the Care Quality Commission report 
of the September 2010 unannounced visit. By April 2011 63% of Trust front line staff had 
achieved competence in recognising and reporting abuse. 

 
3.8 During 2010/11 BSAB  were pleased to receive evidence from an external review which states 

that the work of the Board is effective in preventing abuse and ensuring that when concerns arise 
they are dealt with appropriately. In line with this, in November 2010 the Care Quality 
Commission rated adult safeguarding services in Bromley as “performing well”.  

 
 
 

Page 87



  

4

 
3.9 Since the external review BSAB have  directed further developments including:   
 

Ø  The implementation of the Adult Safeguarding Prevention Strategy 2011-14, developed with 
the involvement of service users and informal carers.  The objectives of the prevention 
strategy will be used to drive the Board’s work over the next three years.  These are: to further  
improve awareness about how to spot the signs of abuse and when to report it to the lead 
agency; to ensure all services that are commissioned, regulated or accredited by BSAB 
partners adhere to the highest standards of safety for service users; to promote consistent 
safeguarding practice across agencies, underpinned by robust performance information and 
quality assurance systems; to support vulnerable adults to maximise their independence and 
quality of life by encouraging them to take control of their situation and to safeguard vulnerable 
adults who may lack the ability to make a decision that will safeguard themselves or others 
from harm.   

 
Ø  The implementation of a comprehensive training strategy to help partners ensure all staff and 

volunteers in the Bromley health and social care workforce can deliver their safeguarding role 
effectively.  The strategy is underpinned by the Board’s competence framework which 
specifies the knowledge and skills required by staff.  Staff are expected to prevent abuse 
through respect for individual rights and personal dignity; recognise and report abuse and 
understand whistle blowing.  789 staff from across the partnership received this training.  The 
Board requires all adult safeguarding investigations to be undertaken by staff with the correct 
skill levels; during 2010/11, performance monitoring confirmed this has been achieved for 
100% of investigations.  In order to continue to achieve this standard, 69 staff were trained in 
adult safeguarding investigations and additional 36 staff were trained in interviewing 
vulnerable service users.  

 
Ø  The first BSAB annual conference in June 2010, with the theme ‘Prevention through 

Partnership’.  The conference, attended by 127 people across partner organisations, aimed to 
improve outcomes for vulnerable people by enhancing knowledge of services available 
including Safer Bromley Partnership initiatives.  The conference was very positively evaluated 
by delegates.  BSAB will hold a further conference in September 2011. 

 
3.10 The full BSAB 2011/12 work plan is at Appendix 1 of the annual report.  The Board’s 
priorities for 2011/12 are to: 
 
Ø  Implement ‘Safeguarding adults in London, Policy and Procedures’ across the Bromley adult 

safeguarding partnership in June 2011;  
Ø  Commission an external agency to maximise the collection of feedback from service users and 

their advocates, about their experience of the safeguarding process to develop actions to 
make further improvements to practice and  

Ø  Audit health and social care settings to ensure awareness.  
Ø  Ensure awareness and compliance with the principles of the Mental Capacity Act 2005 

Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards. 
 
The Board will also review our alert, referral and triage arrangements to ensure that safeguarding 
resources are used to greatest effect. 
 
Members should note a guide to the scrutiny of adult safeguarding has been produced by I&DeA 
(Implementation and Development Agency). Members Scrutiny Guide 
 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

 None. 

Page 88



  

5

 

Non-Applicable Sections: Policy, legal, personnel 

Background Documents: 
(Access via Contact 
Officer) 

No Secrets 
 
Statement of Government  Policy on Adult Safeguarding 
 
Adult Social Care Law Report 
 
 
 Adult Social Care, Capable Communities and Active 
Citizens 
 
 

 

Page 89



Page 90

This page is left intentionally blank



 

 

ACSPDS 11038 
Appendix 1 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

BBrroommlleeyy  SSaaffeegguuaarrddiinngg  AAdduullttss  

BBooaarrdd  

  

AAnnnnuuaall  RReeppoorrtt  

  

  

22001100//22001111  

  

  

  

  
Bromley is a place where adult safeguarding 

is everybody’s business  
 

  

  
 

 
 
 
 

Page 91



 
Bromley Safeguarding Adults Board 

 Annual Report - 2010/2011 
 
 

 2 

 

Page 92



 
Bromley Safeguarding Adults Board 

 Annual Report - 2010/2011 
 
 

 3 

 

    FOREWORD  
 

Terry Rich, Chair of Bromley 
Safeguarding Adults Board   

 
Welcome to the 3rd Bromley Safeguarding Adults Board (BSAB) Annual 
Report. 
 

This year, the Board has overseen the response of local agencies to over 500 
concerns about the potential ill treatment of vulnerable people in Bromley.  
Fortunately, only a very small proportion of concerns involve serious abuse of 
vulnerable people; this makes it crucial that agencies work together to make a 
proportionate response and deploy resources efficiently.   
 

We are pleased to have received evidence from an external review which 
states that the work of the Board is effective in preventing abuse and ensuring 
that when concerns arise they are dealt with appropriately. 
 

With the input of service users and informal carers, the Board has produced a 
new BSAB Preventative Strategy 2011-14, which promotes the message 
‘Bromley is a place where adult safeguarding is everybody's business’.  The 
strategy will drive our work plan and answer the challenge of keeping 
vulnerable people safe, whilst also respecting their right to make their own 
decisions. 
 

The Board recognises the importance of all partners in the protection of 
vulnerable people, so is pleased to welcome the London Fire Brigade as a 
BSAB partner this year.  The Metropolitan Police in Bromley are fully engaged 
in the work of the Board, and now have a dedicated resource to respond to 
crime against vulnerable people. 

The Board holds local partners accountable for their safeguarding work and 
ensures that when concerns are raised there is robust action to achieve 
improvement.  The Board has received from South London Healthcare NHS 
Trust details of progress on the implementation of the action plan to improve 
staff awareness of adult safeguarding following the Care Quality Commission 
report of the September 2010 unannounced visit. 

The Board will be adopting new London-wide adult safeguarding procedures 
in June 2011, which we believe will further contribute to the development of 
consistent safeguarding practice.  We will need to continue to be mindful of 
using our resources to best effect, ensuring that we focus on significant risks, 
where our intervention is required to assure the safety vulnerable adults.  
 

I hope you will find this report useful, and work with the Board to maintain an 
excellent adult safeguarding service in Bromley. 
 

 

Page 93



 
Bromley Safeguarding Adults Board 

 Annual Report - 2010/2011 
 
 

 4 

Contents 
 
FOREWORD ................................................................................................................. 3 
 
1. Adult Safeguarding Arrangements in Bromley ................................................. 5 
 
2. Bromley Safeguarding Adults Board key achievements 2010/11 .................... 8 
 
3. Strategic and operational developments ......................................................... 13 

Performance management and quality assurance: ................................. 13 
Learning from case review and actions to make improvements ............. 16 
Raising awareness of adult safeguarding ............................................... 17 
Inter-agency Protocols and Procedures .................................................. 17 
Mental Capacity Act – Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards ....................... 18 
Safer Bromley Partnership Achievements .............................................. 20 

 
4. Safeguarding adults referral and outcome data ............................................. 22 

Summary analysis of referral and outcome data: .................................... 22 
 
5. BSAB work plan 2011/12 ................................................................................... 32 
 
6. Appendices ........................................................................................................ 33 

Appendix 1: BSAB work plan 2011/12 ................................................ 33 
Appendix 2: Analysis of Safeguarding Spend 2010/11 ....................... 33 

 

 
 

 

Page 94



 
Bromley Safeguarding Adults Board 

 Annual Report - 2010/2011 
 
 

 5 

1. Adult Safeguarding Arrangements in Bromley 
 

Introduction 
Bromley Safeguarding Adults Board (BSAB) has been responsible since 2008 
for the local development and coordination of work to safeguard vulnerable 
adults in accordance with government guidance (‘No Secrets’, Department of 
Health, 2000).  For the benefit of the Board’s partner organisations and the 
general public, this report explains how agencies have worked together in 
Bromley during the past year to improve the safety of vulnerable people. 
 

The ‘Statement of Government Policy on Adult Safeguarding’, (Department of 
Health, May 2011), confirms that following the public consultation on ‘No 
Secrets’ during 2008/9 and the review of adult social care law (Law 
Commission, May 2011), the government intends to seek to legislate for 
Safeguarding Adults Boards.  BSAB fully supports this proposal which would 
further reassure the local community that agencies are accountable for their 
work to protect vulnerable adults. 
 

The Board has welcomed ‘A Vision for Adult Social Care: capable 
communities and active citizens’, (Department of Health, November 2010), 
which promotes personalised services and outcomes.  BSAB continues to 
emphasise that people should be protected when they are unable to protect 
themselves, but this should not be at the cost of a person’s right to make 
decisions about how they live their life. 
 
Report Summary 
The report explains the Board’s role and governance, highlighting key BSAB 
achievements:  

• Confirmation, through external review, that Bromley has performed 
‘well’ in adult safeguarding, with improved operational and strategic 
arrangements   

• Development of BSAB Prevention Strategy 2011-14   

• Action to reduce the risk of fire for vulnerable people 

• The first BSAB conference with the theme ‘prevention through 
partnership’   

• Delivery of a comprehensive adult safeguarding training programme  
 
There is an account of the Board’s continued strategic and operational 
development in:  

• Performance management 

• Quality assurance and lessons learnt 

• Awareness raising 

• Inter-agency protocols and procedures 

• Mental Capacity Act – Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards  
 
The report includes: 

• Safer Bromley Partnership achievements that contribute to adult 
safeguarding  

Page 95



 
Bromley Safeguarding Adults Board 

 Annual Report - 2010/2011 
 
 

 6 

• Safeguarding adults referral and outcome data analysis 

• BSAB work plan 2011/12 

• BSAB financial statement 2010/11 

 
Bromley Safeguarding Adults Board (BSAB) 
As lead agency for adult safeguarding, Bromley Council is required to ensure 
that all local agencies work together as partners to jointly plan, implement and 
monitor work to protect vulnerable adults.  The Board holds all agencies to 
account and ensures when concerns arise, (for example as a result of 
external inspection), about the quality of a service or the level of staff 
awareness of adult safeguarding, regular reports are received on the 
implementation of action plans.  The Board, chaired by Mr Terry Rich Director 
of Bromley Council Adult and Community Services, met three times during 
2010/11.  Membership is reviewed annually so representation of all key 
agencies and groups advocating for service users and their informal carers is 
ensured. 
 
The Board has an executive which met five times in 2010/11, membership is 
senior managers from: 

• Bromley Primary Care NHS Trust 

• South London Healthcare NHS Trust 

• Oxleas NHS Foundation Trust 

• The London Borough of Bromley Adult and Community Services 
Division 

• Metropolitan Police Service  Bromley Borough 
 
The chairs of the Board’s sub groups are also members of the executive, 
which is responsible for driving strategic aims and overseeing the 
achievement of the BSAB work plan. 
 
Board sub groups coordinate and undertake specific tasks from the work 
plan and address emerging priorities identified by the Board; the sub groups 
are: 

• Training and Awareness 

• Policy, Procedures and Protocols 

• Performance, Audit and Quality 

• Mental Capacity Local Implementation Network 
 
Board accountability and governance:  Oversight of the work of the Board 
is provided by the portfolio holder and Councillor Roger Charsley, Adult and 
Community Services Policy Development and Scrutiny Committee.  BSAB 
annual reports are presented to the Bromley Council Adult and Community 
Policy Development and Scrutiny Committee, the Bromley Council Public 
Protection and Safety Policy Development and Scrutiny Committee and the 
Health, Social Care and Housing Partnership Board. 
 

 

Page 96



 
Bromley Safeguarding Adults Board 

 Annual Report - 2010/2011 
 
 

 7 

Support to the Board:  Bromley Council, with a contribution from Bromley 
Primary Care Trust, provides dedicated officer capacity to support the Board 
in strategic development, professional advice, work plan delivery and the 
administration of its work.  The close integration of all Bromley statutory 
partners in adult safeguarding work is demonstrated by the joint contributions 
made to the BSAB budget.  This is used to promote the Board’s objectives 
across the Borough through publicity, production of multi-agency procedures 
and training in the skills and knowledge required to meet the Board’s 
safeguarding competences.  The BSAB financial statement is attached.  
(Appendix 2) 
 

More information about BSAB can be found at: 
www.bromley.gov.uk/adultsafeguarding 
 

Page 97



 

 

2. Bromley Safeguarding Adults Board key 
achievements 2010/11 
 

 
Confirmation, through external review, of improved operational and 
strategic adult safeguarding arrangements   
During 2010/11, BSAB commissioned an independent review, from the 
Government Office for London, to validate the impact on practice standards of 
the Board’s improvement planning framework. 
 

The review included: 
 

• Interviews with the portfolio holder, senior managers in Adult and 
Community Services, BSAB partners and adult safeguarding 
specialists to evaluate engagement and responsibilities within the 
safeguarding arena 

• Assessment of strategic business and policy documents 

• Overview of performance management and quality assurance systems 
and the analysis and use of data collected 

• Evaluation of the performance of BSAB to determine its effectiveness 
in driving strategic planning, robust partnership engagement and 
promoting continuous development in adult safeguarding 

• Audit of ten recent adult safeguarding cases  

• Examination of BSAB adult safeguarding competences and the training 
programme 

• Five events, for thirty staff, to clarify practitioner understanding and 
staff opinion on the quality of training, inter-agency work and 
professional support. 

 
The conclusion of the independent review was: ‘quality assurance and 
performance monitoring processes were robust and effective in driving 
improvement.’ 
 
Key areas of strength were highlighted: 

• Significant progress in safeguarding, both strategically and 
operationally; increasingly robust interface between the two 

• Increasingly effective quality assurance systems 

• Stronger partner engagement on Bromley Safeguarding Adults Board 

• Emerging performance management culture across the partnership 

• Enhanced police engagement and performance at operational level 

• Consistency of safeguarding practice is improving 

• Frontline staff feel well supported by line managers/safeguarding 
specialists 

• Training is consistent, regular and valued by frontline staff 

• Shared/good understanding of principles underpinning safeguarding 
practice 

 
The last Care Quality Commission rating of the adult safeguarding service, in 
December 2010, reported Bromley was performing ‘well’.  (Bromley: Annual 
performance assessment 2009/10, Care Quality Commission Dec 2010). 

Page 98



 
Bromley Safeguarding Adults Board 

 Annual Report - 2010/2011 
 
 

 9 

Development of BSAB Prevention Strategy 2011-14 
The Board has produced a new BSAB Safeguarding Adults Prevention 
Strategy 2011-2014’.  Six events were held with service users and informal 
carers and there was consultation with partner organisations in its 
development.  BSAB has a vision: 
 
‘Bromley is place where preventing abuse and neglect is everybody’s 
business.’ 
 
The Board’s mission is to:  

• Promote a well informed local community that will act as ‘good 
neighbours’, notice signs of abuse or neglect and report  

• Ensure quality services are commissioned, regulated and accredited 
that provide well trained staff and can ensure vulnerable adults are 
safeguarded 

• Ensure that everyone receives a consistent, high quality safeguarding 
service which is robustly managed and outcome focused, underpinned 
by multi-agency cooperation and continual learning 

 
The objectives of the prevention strategy will be used to drive the Board’s 
work over the next three years.  These are: 

• Awareness: continue to improve awareness about how to spot the 
signs of abuse and when to report it to the lead agency.   

 

• Services: ensure all services that are commissioned, regulated or 
accredited by the BSAB partners adhere to the highest standards of 
safety for service users. 

 

• Practice: continue to promote consistent safeguarding practice across 
agencies, underpinned by robust quality assurance and scrutiny 
mechanisms and reliable, timely performance information. 

 

• Choice: continue to support vulnerable adults to maximise their 
independence and quality of life by encouraging them to take control of 
their situation, including positive risk taking. 

 

• Capacity: continue to safeguard vulnerable adults who may lack the 
ability to make decisions that will safeguard themselves or others.  

 
The Board has used these objectives to plan work for 2011/12.  (See 
Appendix 1, BSAB work plan 2011/12). 
 
Reducing the risk of fire for vulnerable people 
Following a local house fire involving a vulnerable person receiving a 
domiciliary care service, the Borough Fire Commander and the Board agreed 
action was required to ensure health and social care staff were aware of fire 

Page 99



 
Bromley Safeguarding Adults Board 

 Annual Report - 2010/2011 
 
 

 10 

risks, such as smoking in bed and the added risk of fire to vulnerable people 
with disabilities, or those who have a very cluttered home. 
 
As a result, the Board welcomed the London Fire Service as a partner and, in 
addition, arranged training for 65 health and social care staff in identifying fire 
risks and ensuring a referral system for vulnerable people.  This has resulted 
in 132 vulnerable people benefiting from priority home safety visits. 

 
The first BSAB annual conference 
The Board organised the first BSAB annual conference, with the theme 
‘Protection through Partnership’, in June 2010.  The conference, attended by 
127 people across partner organisations, aimed to improve outcomes for 
vulnerable people by enhancing delegates’ knowledge of local services, 
including Safer Bromley Partnership initiatives.  The BSAB Chair introduced 
expert speakers covering the national perspective on adult safeguarding, the 
Bromley Metropolitan Police Service response to abuse and how users of 
personalised services from Supporting Independence in Bromley initiatives 
will be safeguarded.  In addition, there were workshops to exchange 
information on: 

• Effective responses to domestic violence 

• Self-neglect - when should we intervene? 

• Protection from rogue traders 

• Safeguarding vulnerable adults from financial abuse 
 

The conference was very positively evaluated by delegates.  100% of 
respondents said that they would recommend the conference to others and it 
had met their objectives in attending the conference.  BSAB will hold a further 
conference in September 2011. 
 
Delivery of BSAB training programme 
The Board has a comprehensive training strategy to help partners ensure all 
staff and volunteers in the Bromley health and social care workforce are able 
to deliver their safeguarding role effectively.  The strategy is underpinned by 
the BSAB competence framework.  This specifies the skills and knowledge 
required by staff to prevent abuse, such as respect for individual rights and 
personal dignity, to recognise and report abuse, to investigate abuse and 
manage adult safeguarding work.  Courses are evaluated and quality 
monitored; when necessary changes have been implemented to improve the 
delivery of appropriate skills and knowledge. 
 

In 2010/11, multi-agency training was commissioned on a quarterly basis and 
adjusted during the year to reflect identified training needs. There was 
targeted marketing of training opportunities to partner agencies and in-house 
staff.   
 

Courses delivered during 2010/11 included: 

• Financial Abuse prevention and detection. This course was commissioned 
and provided in 2010/11 to 18 staff from the BSAB partnership (including 6 
police officers) in response to prevalence data.  Staff who have completed 

Page 100



 
Bromley Safeguarding Adults Board 

 Annual Report - 2010/2011 
 
 

 11 

the course will advise team colleagues on investigation and protection 
planning in cases where financial abuse is alleged. 

• Level 1: skills and knowledge of abuse prevention, recognising abuse and 
reporting abuse.  789 staff received this training.  This course included 
staff duty to report abuse, including whistle-blowing, the majority of 
participants were from private and voluntary care homes.  

• Level 2 /3: skills and knowledge of the safeguarding process including 
multi agency strategy, investigation, risk assessment, protection planning 
and review.  For the 69 staff who received this training, this course 
assisted them to achieve BSAB competence in adult safeguarding case 
work and case management.  The Board requires that all adult 
safeguarding investigations are undertaken by staff with the appropriate 
skills and level of competence; performance monitoring has confirmed this 
has been achieved for 100% of investigations. 

• Level 4: skills and knowledge in interviewing vulnerable service users and 
achieving best evidence processes.    This specialist course gave staff the 
opportunity to develop skills in interviewing service users who have 
communication problems.  There were 36 staff who received this training. 

• Level 5: skills and knowledge for managers of staff undertaking 
safeguarding investigations.  This course ensured that managers are 
competent in supervising and supporting staff undertaking adult 
safeguarding work; 9 staff received this training.   

 
Partners have reported to the Board their progress in implementing their 
training plans for staff and volunteers: 

• Oxleas NHS Foundation Trust undertook an audit in 2010 to gauge the 
level of adult safeguarding awareness amongst clinical staff; it showed that 
70% of staff in community settings, and 89% of staff in in-patient settings 
reported they had a good level of understanding of adult safeguarding and 
how to raise an alert.  Staff in Oxleas NHS Foundation Trust use an e-
learning package to achieve competence in awareness and the Trust has 
achieved a 74% take up rate in Bromley by relevant staff. 

 

• South London Healthcare NHS Trust has developed a rigorous plan to 
ensure that staff across their sites are aware of adult safeguarding issues.  
By April 2011 63% of front line staff had achieved competence in 
recognising and reporting abuse. 

 

• Bromley Primary Care Trust has established a community provider unit 
which will operate from April 2011 as Bromley Healthcare.  Staff in 
Bromley Healthcare will be well placed to recognise abuse and neglect 
with 89% achieving this level of competence. 

 
The BSAB competence framework has been reviewed for the commissioning 
of the 2011/12 safeguarding training programme to take account of the 
changes in the delivery of social care.  New Personalisation and Risk 
workshops for the social care workforce will be delivered in 2011/12. 
 

Page 101



 
Bromley Safeguarding Adults Board 

 Annual Report - 2010/2011 
 
 

 12 

A project has taken place to evaluate e-learning products and procurement 
methods, in terms of value for money. Three products have been selected for 
detailed evaluation and feedback.  The preferred model will be demonstrated 
to the care home and domiciliary care agency provider forums in June 2011, 
with the aim of recruiting selected providers to undertake pilots, to confirm that 
it will achieve staff competence as effectively as face-to-face training. 

 
During the year, there have been specific training events, some of which are 
listed below: 

• Five adult safeguarding awareness sessions delivered by adult 
safeguarding specialists for Police Rapid Response Teams covering over 
150 officers 

• Eight team briefings for 95 staff undertaking safeguarding investigations 
were held on the lessons learnt from adult safeguarding audits, and 
actions required to improve practice  

• An adult safeguarding information stand was provided at the Supporting 
Independence in Bromley Adult Information Day, 29th September 2010 

• Forty day activities staff, working with people with learning disabilities, 
were briefed on adult safeguarding and preventing doorstep crime 

 
 

Page 102



 
Bromley Safeguarding Adults Board 

 Annual Report - 2010/2011 
 
 

 13 

3. Strategic and operational developments 
 
Performance management and quality assurance: 
BSAB has continued to drive improvement through its performance 
management and quality assurance framework.   
 
Performance Management: 
The Board has considered which areas of performance are most likely to 
improve outcomes for service users.  It decided to continue to use its current 
inter-agency performance indicators as outlined below, which ensure a prompt 
multi-agency plan to investigate concerns, and a rapid response from the 
Metropolitan Police Service to requests for advice from safeguarding 
professionals.   
 

• The Board set an increased target of 90% for a multi-agency strategy 
discussion or meeting occurring within 5 working days of referral in 
2010/11.  (The 2009/10   target was 65%). The target is important in 
ensuring consistent early planning of the conduct of an investigation, 
including consideration of police involvement in the case.  Monitoring of 
this target within Adult and Community Services has driven improved 
performance in this area to an average of 87% cases in 2010/11.  

 

• BSAB has an inter-agency protocol which states there will be a response 
within 3 working days by Metropolitan Police Bromley Public Protection 
desk, to requests for advice from safeguarding professionals.  This 
response time was set by the Board to ensure a clear standard for this key 
area of in inter-agency work.  Monitoring by the Bromley Police Public 
Protection desk has ensured that health and social care professionals 
receive an appropriate and timely response to requests for advice.  This 
target has been consistently achieved in respect of the 65 cases referred 
by adult safeguarding professionals during the year. 

 

• The Board has a competence framework to ensure that staff have the 
skills and knowledge required to undertake safeguarding tasks.  It monitors 
investigations and ensured during 2010/11 that 100% were undertaken by 
staff who met the required BSAB competence standard.   

 
Quality Assurance 
BSAB seeks to guarantee service quality both in preventative work and in 
safeguarding investigations.  BSAB has a quality assurance framework, 
including case work audits and is proactive in responding to new issues as 
they arise.  Learning from case reviews is used to make local improvements 
to inter-agency work. 
 
Safeguarding casework audits - The Board oversees a programme of 
safeguarding casework audits to monitor and develop safeguarding practice.  
Detailed reports are presented to the Performance, Audit and Quality sub 

Page 103



 
Bromley Safeguarding Adults Board 

 Annual Report - 2010/2011 
 
 

 14 

group.  During 2010/11 three adult safeguarding audits have been held 
covering a total of 35 cases.  Safeguarding cases were selected at random 
from recently completed cases and examined by professionals not involved in 
the conduct of the case.  Performance was assessed against standards 
derived from BSAB multi-agency procedures covering all stages of the 
safeguarding process, the quality of multi-agency work and the outcome for 
the service user. 
 

A peer audit was held in conjunction with Greenwich Council, which provided 
the opportunity to learn from the comparison of casework practice across both 
boroughs. 
 

Casework audits routinely consider whether the appropriate services have 
been offered to service users.  Bromley has a good range of services to 
support vulnerable service users, including projects such as the Safer 
Bromley Van and the Domestic Violence One Stop Shop. 
 

Findings from 2010/11 safeguarding audits show that Bromley partners have 
ensured improvement in practice in terms of record keeping and compliance 
with Board multi-agency procedures. 
 

The audits have identified more consistent practice: this was measured by an 
increase in the appropriate involvement of independent advocates from 67% 
in the May audit to 83% in the August audit.  Cases examined demonstrated 
consistency of practice through the high level, (over 80%), of cases where 
there was involvement from Consultant Lead Practitioners, who act as 
safeguarding specialists. 
 

The external review of adult safeguarding included a detailed examination of 
10 cases.  The review confirmed the improvement in safeguarding practice 
already identified through the BSAB audit process. 
 

Two main areas for improving the conduct of safeguarding cases have been 
identified: 
 

• Ensuring there is always consideration of the benefits of involving an 
independent advocate in safeguarding cases 

 

• Ensuring that when appropriate the service user’s mental capacity  and 
decision making ability is recorded 

 

Safeguarding professionals have received additional guidance on these 
issues and these key messages will be reinforced through training.   
 
Professionals have a procedure to use if there are problems with inter-agency 
work and the opportunity to directly raise issues of concern to the Board 
through a practitioner representative on the Board. 
 
Safe services - The Board received regular reports from the Adult 
Safeguarding Manager, who leads a multi-agency group co-ordinating action 
to ensure the safety of care homes and nursing homes.  The group met five 

Page 104



 
Bromley Safeguarding Adults Board 

 Annual Report - 2010/2011 
 
 

 15 

times during 2010/11.  Action was taken under adult safeguarding procedures 
to ensure the safety of residents in one establishment.  Where issues are 
identified in safeguarding investigations that require providers to implement 
action to make improvements this is overseen by the commissioning team. 
 
As the lead commissioner of domiciliary care and care home provision, the 
Council has a quality assurance framework for providers to ensure the dignity 
and safety of service users.  Monitoring visits have take place throughout the 
year based on size of contract and risk-rating.   
 
Provider Forums are supported to promote good practice and plan local 
training activities.  The care home forum has an annual work plan which 
focussed in 2010/11 on training staff to improve the experience of users being 
admitted and discharged from hospital, moving and handling, and the 
provision of activities for people with dementia. 
 
The Metropolitan Police Vulnerable Adults Officer has attended the 
Domiciliary Care Provider Forum following difficulties in obtaining clear 
evidence when there had been allegations of crime, to explain the importance 
of accurate record keeping by domiciliary care agency staff to assist police 
with gathering accurate information. 
 
The Board has received a report from South London Healthcare NHS Trust, 
on action taken to address moderate concerns in respect of adult 
safeguarding awareness amongst staff reported by the CQC (following the 
unannounced visit to hospital sites in September 2010). 
 
Service User Perspective - In 2009 the Board developed a process to 
identify service users who may be able to give feedback on their experience of 
the adult safeguarding process.  The Board has received information from six 
service users. 
 
Concerns were identified by two service users: 

• ‘I was not informed after the meeting which is something that could be 
done better’  

• ‘I was not informed about what was going on‘ 
 
Staff who undertake safeguarding investigations have been reminded of the 
importance of clear and timely communication with service users in team 
briefings. 
 
An external agency will be commissioned in 2011/12 to systematically obtain 
independent feedback from service users which will be used to drive 
improvements.  
 
Service users have also reported positive experiences:  

• Safety was managed very well, Police were involved and this helped a lot 

Page 105



 
Bromley Safeguarding Adults Board 

 Annual Report - 2010/2011 
 
 

 16 

• I felt much safer having spoken to someone apart from my daughter about 
the situation 

• The care manager listened to my views and worked hard to get things 
done quickly  

 
Learning from case review and actions to make improvements 
The Board has been proactive in responding to emerging issues in order to 
develop safeguarding practice.  Examples of how Bromley developments to 
multi-agency adult safeguarding have been driven by the Board’s analysis of 
local inter-agency issues include: 

• Following the collapse of a criminal trial, the Board ensured a case review 
involving a voluntary agency, the Metropolitan Police Service, Adult and 
Community Services and the Crown Prosecution Service.  The case 
concerned a paid carer who had allegedly stolen from a vulnerable person 
with dementia.  The review identified that the alleged victim’s memory 
problems had not been fully taken into account in preparation for the trial.  
As a consequence, the Metropolitan Police Service has reviewed their 
investigation teams and has established a Vulnerable Adults Team which 
will operate in Bromley from April 2011.  This will supplement the single 
point of contact for adult safeguarding issues and provide a more skilled 
and dedicated team to investigate allegations of crime. 

 

• The Board received a report on 22 cases where the London Ambulance 
Service had raised a concern about the lack of support for a service user, 
but following an agreed protocol, safeguarding procedures were not 
invoked because there was no clear allegation of abuse or neglect.  In all 
instances there had been an appropriate multi-agency assessment of the 
individual’s needs and where necessary a support plan had been 
arranged.  The Board was reassured that vulnerable service users who did 
not meet the safeguarding threshold were receiving appropriate support. 

 

• A safeguarding investigation in a nursing home found that the home 
should improve the process for obtaining specialist advice on nutrition.  
The Bromley PCT Dietician service agreed to arrange training sessions in 
the home to improve practice in this area. 

 
The Board received regular feedback from practitioners on the progress of 
inter-agency work, examples included: 

• A practitioner reported a case to the Board where Adult and Community 
Services, staff from a private domiciliary care agency and the Metropolitan 
Police Service had worked effectively to prevent further abuse of a 
vulnerable older person by her ex-partner. 

 

• A case manager reported a case of potential serious self neglect where 
the London Ambulance Service had raised concerns about a person who 
appeared to be in poor health and was refusing to go to hospital.  Adult 
and Community Services worked with the Metropolitan Police Safer 

Page 106



 
Bromley Safeguarding Adults Board 

 Annual Report - 2010/2011 
 
 

 17 

Neighbourhood team to ensure the cooperation of the individual and his 
admission to hospital for treatment. 

 

• Ten cases have been presented by adult safeguarding professionals to the 
Performance Audit and Quality sub group to explain inter-agency  
safeguarding practice and to highlight cases where there were lessons to 
be learned.  Practitioners have reported on the use of a risk assessment 
tool which has proved to be effective in the small number of cases where 
there are on-gong risks of abuse or neglect. 

 

Raising awareness of adult safeguarding 
The BSAB 2008-11 Strategy had clear objectives in terms of raising 
awareness of abuse and neglect and how to report it across the general 
public, vulnerable people and staff and volunteers. 
 

The Board has continued to implement its communication and engagement 
strategy to promote awareness of abuse and how to report it.  The Board’s 
new preventative strategy 2011-14 promotes the message: 
 

‘Bromley is a place where preventing abuse and neglect is everybody’s 
business’   
 

All partners share a responsibility to make sure service users and the wider 
community are well informed.  The BSAB Newsletter has extended its 
distribution through Community Links to smaller voluntary organisations and 
community groups during 2010/11.  The Board has begun to use the 
Community Links Newsletter as an additional means of publicising its work. 
 

Three talks have been given to community groups about how to recognise 
and report adult safeguarding concerns.  These emphasised the importance 
of speaking to a trusted friend or community leader and explaining how 
referrals can be made.  Talks were given to: 
 

• Crystal Palace Oasis Club 

• Bromley Asian cultural association 

• Orpington Chinese association 
 
Inter-agency Protocols and Procedures 
The Board had an objective in its 2008-11 strategy to develop safeguarding 
policies, protocols and procedures and ensure that these are updated in line 
with national guidance, new London wide guidance, new legislation and 
learning from case reviews and audit.   
 
The Board’s Policy, Procedures and Protocols sub group has ensured delivery 
of this area of the BSAB work plan.  In 2010/11, the sub group has contributed 
to and commented on the development of ten new or revised local policies 
and protocols which support effective partnership working to safeguard adults 
at risk:.  Work has included: 

 

Page 107



 
Bromley Safeguarding Adults Board 

 Annual Report - 2010/2011 
 
 

 18 

• Development, with Supporting Independence in Bromley, of the ‘Positive 
Risk Taking Policy’, which was approved by BSAB in May 2011, and will 
be used to ensure service users arranging and purchasing their own care 
are safeguarded.  

• Response to drafts of ‘Protecting Adults at Risk: London multi-agency 
policy and procedures to safeguard adults at risk’. 

• Production of a ‘gap analysis’ and oversight of update of local multi-agency 
‘toolkit’ in preparation for the implementation of these procedures in June 
2011. 

• Advice on the development of the adult safeguarding procedures of two 
local voluntary organisations, Carers Bromley and Issues of the Heart and 
two housing associations: Affinity Sutton and Keniston.  These procedures 
were then approved by the group. 

• Developed a protocol to ensure any problems between agencies are 
flagged to managers for resolution and escalated to the Board if 
necessary.  (It has not been necessary to invoke this protocol in 2010/11.) 

 
 
Mental Capacity Act – Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards 
The Board oversees the implementation of multi-agency work to ensure that 
people who may lack mental capacity benefit from the safeguards provided by 
the Mental Capacity Act 2005 and the Deprivation of Liberty safeguards 
(DOLS). 
 
The Mental Capacity Act 2005 sets out the framework to enable professional 
care staff, health service staff and families to lawfully make decisions on 
behalf of vulnerable adults who are unable to do so.  All such decisions have 
to be taken in the individual’s best interests. 
 
The Deprivation of Liberty safeguards (DOLS) came into force during 2009. 
These legal safeguards cover individuals lacking capacity to make particular 
decisions who are in a .care home or hospital.  DOLS should be used when 
the care and treatment regime of an individual imposes such excessive 
restrictions on them, that they amount to a ‘deprivation of liberty’, in 
accordance with Human Rights legislation.   
 
The process in Bromley for Deprivation of Liberty Safeguarding is robust with 
the officer for Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards and Mental Capacity, who has 
been in post since 2008, providing continuity of service, a valuable point of 
contact as well as an important monitoring role.   
 
Activity on Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards referrals is submitted quarterly to 
the Department of Health.  Comparison with neighbouring boroughs are 
shown in detail below. 

 

Page 108



 
Bromley Safeguarding Adults Board 

 Annual Report - 2010/2011 
 
 

 19 

Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards Referrals comparison with near 
neighbours for 2010/11 

 

 Referrals 

Bromley 10 

Greenwich 13 

Lewisham 8 

Lambeth 47 

Bexley 68 

 
 

The Department of Health has questioned the comparatively low number of 
DOLS referrals in Bromley.  The Board has received details of work 
undertaken to ensure legal responsibilities were being discharged, as follows: 
 

• All new contracts issued for residential support detail the expectations of 
the Council on the provider around the legislation.  The Care Homes forum 
has been used to disseminate information. 

 

• Work has also been undertaken to review the possible reasons for lower 
DOLS activity levels in Bromley.  In early 2009, all the care homes and 
hospitals in Bromley were visited, or managers seen by the officer for 
Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards and Mental Capacity, to explain 
imminent implementation of DOLS procedures.  This identified the possible 
numbers of people to whom the DOLS may apply, which returned 
substantially lower numbers than the Department of Health estimates.  

 

• Contact with care homes has been maintained: a survey of care homes 
regarding training needs was carried out; as a result some homes have 
been visited to provide Mental Capacity Act and DOLS training on site. 
The officer for Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards and Mental Capacity has 
spoken to and visited colleagues in other boroughs to carry out case 
comparisons, and has confirmed practice in Bromley is consistent with 
other areas. 

 
Given the above, it is probable that provider staff are addressing aspects of 
the care regime which could contribute to a situation where an individual 
would be deprived of their liberty.  The officer for Deprivation of Liberty 
Safeguards and Mental Capacity continues to visit individual hospitals and 
care homes to monitor the implementation of this legislation. 
 

In January 2011, the number of DOLS referrals and approvals increased, 
partly due to ongoing work in raising awareness, and partly a natural 
fluctuation of activity which has been seen in other London Boroughs.  
Currently, there are four Bromley service users subject to Deprivation of 
Liberty Safeguards. 

 

Page 109



 
Bromley Safeguarding Adults Board 

 Annual Report - 2010/2011 
 
 

 20 

Bromley Deprivation of Liberty Referrals and Authorisations 
 

Quarter Referrals Authorisations 

Apr -Jun 10 4 0 

July-Oct 10 1 0 

Oct-Dec 10 2 2 

Jan 11– to date 3 3 

TOTAL 10 5 

 

The Board has planned an audit during 2011/12 to gain information on the 
understanding of mental capacity issues and DOLS across a selection of 
health and social care settings.  The audit findings will be used to make 
recommendations about further local work. 
 
Training on the Mental Capacity Act 2005 and Deprivation of Liberty 
Safeguards 
The Board oversees a training strategy for health and social care staff to 
ensure: 

• All staff can demonstrate compliance with the principles of the Mental 
Capacity Act (MCA), when working with people who may lack capacity 

• Staff making decisions about long term care or serious health 
treatment understand their duties under the Act 

• Staff can recognise and report potential deprivations of liberty 

• Staff understand how to assess and document a person’s mental 
capacity and understanding around particular decisions 

• Specified staff are able to assess potential deprivations of liberty and 
make recommendations about authorisation of such situations 

 
During 2010/11, training across all partner organisations has been delivered 
to a total of 353 staff.  This has comprised: 
 

• Introduction to the Mental Capacity Act: 10 courses, 190 staff trained 

• Deprivation of Liberty safeguards: 10 courses, 76 staff trained 

• Mental Capacity Act: Decision Makers: 10 courses, 87 staff trained 
 
The safety of those who lack mental capacity has been promoted by the 
delivery of a programme of awareness raising visits to health and social care 
staff groups, service providers and hospitals, 24 visits were undertaken during 
the year. 
 
Safer Bromley Partnership Achievements  
The Board aims to improve the safety of vulnerable people by close links 
(strategically and operationally) with the Safer Bromley Partnership, which has 
these aims: 

• Reduction of crime and fear of crime 

• Building respect in communities and reduction of anti-social behaviour 

• Reduction of the harm caused by illegal drugs 

Page 110



 
Bromley Safeguarding Adults Board 

 Annual Report - 2010/2011 
 
 

 21 

Members of the Safer Bromley Partnership (SBP) include: Metropolitan Police 
Bromley, London Borough of Bromley, London Fire and Rescue Authority, 
Bromley Primary Care Trust, Offender Management Service, registered social 
landlords, Bromley Race Equality Commission, Community Links and Bromley 
Magistrates Court.  The Partnership has a Community Engagement Forum to 
assist in achieving its objectives. 
 

The Safer Bromley Partnership has a three year strategy and an annual work 
plan, which includes targeted initiatives to reduce crime against vulnerable 
people these include:  

• People with learning disabilities have developed a project plan to deliver 
training to their peers on safety in the use of public transport.  A full report 
was given to the December BSAB meeting. 

• The Domestic Violence ‘One Stop Shop’ which provides advice from a 
police officer, a local solicitor, Bromley Homeless Families Unit, Bromley 
Womens Aid and Victim Support.  This service is promoted widely has 
assisted 459 residents during 2010/11. 

• The Safer Bromley Van provides additional security locks, spy-holes etc 

• Action against rogue traders, through proactive checking of builders and 
traders.  During 2010/11, 10 rogue trader days took place. 

• There were 56 rapid response interventions against rogue traders, 
resulting in savings of £580,000 for consumers. 

• There were 73 talks and events to encourage the active participation of 
Bromley residents in the identification of rogue traders/distraction burglars. 

• All trading standards staff have received training and achieved 
competence in recognising and reporting abuse and neglect. 

 
 

Page 111



 

 

4. Safeguarding adults referral and outcome data  
 

Summary analysis of referral and outcome data: 
The Board’s multi-agency procedures set out the circumstances in which a 
safeguarding referral should be made and how it should be responded to by 
partner organisations.  These procedures seek to ensure the involvement of 
the vulnerable adult throughout the process, police investigation of possible 
crimes and a proportionate response to each concern.  A data set is 
completed for all referrals in line with the requirements of the Department of 
Health. 
 

In 2010/11, there has been an increase in cases investigated through the 
safeguarding procedures; this confirms the trend since BSAB was established 
in 2008.  This is due to the Board’s work in promoting greater consistency in 
the reporting and recording of safeguarding concerns across the partnership. 
 
The most important aspect of safeguarding work is to ensure good outcomes 
for the service user.  This statistical report includes information on the 
outcomes of investigations in terms of whether the abuse or neglect was 
substantiated or not.  The Board has clarified the reasons why cases are not 
substantiated; the reasons for this can include: a lack of clear evidence, 
situations where there is conflict between family members, and denial of any 
abuse or neglect taking place by the service user. 
 

The report includes details of measures put in place to ensure service users 
are protected.  In many instances, they are protected through a change in 
their care arrangements or living circumstances.  The report also details the 
outcomes for the person who was alleged to have caused the harm, including 
action taken by the police.  This year there has been a significant increase in 
cases where there has been police action as a result of improved inter-agency 
work. 
 
Key Headlines: 

• An increase in the overall number of referrals investigated through the 
Bromley Safeguarding Adults Multi-Agency Procedures from 443 in 
2009/10 to 523 in 2010/11.  This is an increase of 18% in referrals from 
2009/10.  The highest rate of increase this year related to people aged 
18-65 with mental health needs. 

 

• 232 (44%) referrals were made by social care staff with a further 114 
(22%) made by health care staff.  This is in line with last year’s 
equivalent figures of 47% and 21%, highlighting the importance of 
ensuring that staff in contact with vulnerable adults meet BSAB 
competences in recognising and reporting abuse. 

 

• As in previous years, 361, over two thirds, of all referrals relate to older 
people over 65.  Of these, 153 (42%) concerned people aged 75-84, 
and a further 145 (40%) concerned people aged over 85. 

 

Page 112



 
Bromley Safeguarding Adults Board 

 Annual Report - 2010/2011 
 
 

 23 

• The most common abuse category is physical abuse, followed by 
financial abuse, which are respectively 231 (44%) and 118 (23%) of 
total referrals. 

 

• 246, almost half of the alleged abuse reported during the year took 
place in the vulnerable person’s own home, including supported 
accommodation. 

 

• Of concluded cases this year, 174 (40%) have been substantiated or 
partially substantiated (40% last year).  Benchmarking reported to the 
Board indicates this is comparable with other outer London authorities. 

 

• The Board welcomes the significant increase in the number of cases 
where there is police action as a reflection of improved operational 
practice.  The increase has been from 43 cases in 2009/10 to 106 
cases in 2010/11. 

 
 
Analysis of adult safeguarding referral data 2010/11 
Referral rate: Chart 1 below shows that there has been an increase in the 
number of safeguarding referrals since 2008.  There has been a further 18% 
increase from 443 in 2009/10 to 523 in 2010/11.  Of referrals during the year, 
22 concerned service users funded by Bromley Council, but living out of the 
borough.  247 of those referred for adult safeguarding concerns were already 
known to adult and community services.   
 
The Board recognises the increase in referrals is due both to its work raising 
awareness of what was previously a hidden issue and improved data capture.  
Partner organisations in Bromley have responded to the challenge of meeting 
high standards in terms of the multi-agency response to each safeguarding 
referral.  Statutory partners have identified operational leads who are 
responsible for ensuring each partner implements safeguarding procedures 
effectively. 
 
The Board seeks to ensure consistency in terms of the multi-agency response 
to each referral through its performance standard of a strategy meeting or 
discussion within five working days of referral.  The Metropolitan Police and 
Adult and Community Services have identified professionals who undertake 
key roles in coordinating the response to each referral. 
 
In the 55 instances where there have been repeat referrals about the same 
service user, there has been consideration of whether this is due to 
inadequate safeguarding arrangements.  No situations have been identified 
where service users have come to serious harm as a result of inadequate 
safeguarding arrangements. 
 
Repeat abuse can occur in communal living settings such as care homes, and 
the person alleged to have caused the harm can be another vulnerable adult.  

Page 113



 
Bromley Safeguarding Adults Board 

 Annual Report - 2010/2011 
 
 

 24 

Work has been done with care home providers to ensure that there is early 
reporting of such incidents and a protection plan is developed. 
 
In most cases the needs of the person who allegedly caused the harm are 
reassessed to clarify how they can be supported without compromising the 
safety of other residents. 
 
Chart 1 

 
 
Service user groups: Chart 2 shows the distribution of referrals amongst key 
groups of vulnerable people.  As is to be expected in Bromley, older people 
over 65 continue to provide the largest proportion of people subject to a 
safeguarding referral. 
 
In total, 381 (73%) of referrals were about people over 65 and of these153 
(42%) concerned people aged 75-84; and a further 145 (40%) concerned 
people aged over 85. 
 
The figures for other service users including those with mental health needs 
relate only to people aged 18-65. 
 
The largest increase in referrals this year has been in people age 18-65 with 
mental health problems.  The Board has received a report this year from 
Oxleas NHS Foundation Trust accounting for their approach to ensure adult 
safeguarding. 
 
 
 

Total Safeguarding Referrals Received 2008 - 2011 

381

443 

523

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

2008/09 2009/10 2010/11

Page 114



 
Bromley Safeguarding Adults Board 

 Annual Report - 2010/2011 
 
 

 25 

Chart 2 
 

Total Safeguarding Referrals Recevied by Service User Group 2008 - 2011

69

110 113

4
25 18

7
24 31

301
284

361

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

400

2008/09 2009/10 2010/11

Learning
Disability

PDSI

Mental
Health 

Older
People

 
Type of alleged abuse: Chart 3 shows the categories of abuse reported.  
Allegations of physical abuse continue to be the most prevalent and include 
physical signs, such as the unexplained bruising of a service user who is 
unable to explain how the injury occurred. 
 

This year the Board arranged specialist training for police officers and adult 
safeguarding staff, in responding effectively to safeguarding concerns 
regarding financial abuse, which is the second most common type of abuse 
reported. 
 

Chart 3 

Percentage of Type of Alleged Abuse

Physical

44%

Sexual

6%

Neglect

19%

Psychological

8%

Financial

23%

Physical

Sexual

Neglect

Psychological

Financial

 

Page 115



 
Bromley Safeguarding Adults Board 

 Annual Report - 2010/2011 
 
 

 26 

Source of Referral: Chart 4 shows the source of referrals and highlights the 
fact that only 12 (2%)  referrals were made by service users themselves.  This 
can be due to communication problems and disabilities, as well as fear or 
reluctance to report concerns.  Social care and health staff in total have made 
346 (66%) safeguarding referrals, (68% 2009/10).  The Board holds partners 
responsible for achieving targets to ensure the competence of these workers 
in recognising and reporting abuse. 
 
It is also crucial friends, family, neighbours and the general community, who 
play a vital role in ensuring the safety of vulnerable people, can easily access 
information on making referrals.  The Board’s Communication Strategy aims 
to achieve this. 
 
 

Chart 4 

  Source of Referral 20010/11 
No of 

Referrals  %   

 Social Care Staff (Care Workers) 232 45%  

 Health Care Staff 114 22%  

 Family Member 65 12%  

 Other  34 7%  

 Housing 24 5%  

 Education Establishment 16 3%  

 Police 13 2%  

 Self Referral 12 2%  

 Friend/Neighbour 11 2%  

 Other Service User 1 0%  

 Care Quality Commission 1 0%  

 Total 523 100.0%  

     

Chart 5 shows a breakdown of referrals by health staff and llustrates the 
involvement of a wide range of health professionals in the safeguarding 
process.   
 
 

Chart 5 
London Ambulance Service 26 23% 

Dr (GP) 8 7% 

Primary care staff 24 21% 

District Nurses 11 10% 

Oxleas 23 20% 

Hospitals 22 19% 

Total 114 100% 

 
The largest proportion of adult safeguarding referrals from health staff 
received in 2010/11 were from the London Ambulance Service (LAS).   

Page 116



 
Bromley Safeguarding Adults Board 

 Annual Report - 2010/2011 
 
 

 27 

The LAS has a process for making referrals regarding vulnerable people to 
Bromley Council Adult Community Services.  In accordance with a protocol 
agreed by BSAB in June 2009, 26 of these LAS vulnerable adults referrals 
met the threshold for investigation under the BSAB multi-agency procedures.   
 
A further 160 referrals from LAS were dealt with as community care 
assessments.  The Board have received a report that confirmed service users 
referred by LAS who did not meet the threshold for adult safeguarding, had an 
appropriate community care assessment of their needs, and where 
appropriate, a care package arranged. 
 

Chart 6 gives information on the ethnicity of the subject of safeguarding 
referrals.  The Board has an Equalities Impact Assessment and continues to 
collect data about the age, sex and ethnic background of service users.  The 
Board oversees an action plan in response to this assessment, which seeks to 
ensure information is collected in order that any adverse impact of the 
procedures can be identified. 
 
Chart 6 

Ethnicity information for all referrals 2010/11 
 

 No of Referrals % 

White British 393 76% 

Information Not Yet Obtained 53 10% 

Caribbean 18 3% 

Any Other White Background 14 3% 

Refused to Say 12 2% 

White Irish 9 2% 

African 9 2% 

Any Other Asian Background 5 1% 

Any Other Ethnic Background 3 1% 

White Asian 2 0% 

Indian 2 0% 

White/Black Caribbean 1 0% 

Pakistani 1 0% 

Any Other Black Background 1 0% 

 Total 523 100.0% 

 
Person alleged to have caused harm: Chart 7 illustrates the relationship 
between the person alleged to have caused harm and the vulnerable person.  
Partners and other family members together account for the alleged cause of 
180 (35%) allegations across the different types of abuse.  This illustrates 
vulnerable people are most at risk from those closest to them.   
 

Page 117



 
Bromley Safeguarding Adults Board 

 Annual Report - 2010/2011 
 
 

 28 

The Board seeks to ensure all Safer Bromley Partnership initiatives to reduce 
and respond to domestic violence can be accessed appropriately by 
vulnerable people through its competence framework and communication 
strategy. 
 
In 143 (27%) referrals in 2010/11, the person alleged to have caused harm 
was a health or care worker.  This includes allegations of neglect in care 
services 
 
In 48 (9%) referrals the person who was alleged to have caused harm was 
another vulnerable adult.  The Board seeks to ensure service users are 
protected whilst in services, by providers recognising possible risks and 
seeking support when there are concerns about the behaviour of a service 
user. 
 
Chart 7  

 

Relationship of person alleged to have caused harm for all referrals 
2010/11 

 No of Referrals  %   

Other Family Member 118 23%  

Social Care Staff  117 22%  

Not Known 64 12%  

Partner 62 12%  

Other Vulnerable Adult 48 9%  

Neighbour/Friend 33 6%  

Other 32 6%  

Healthcare Worker 26 5%  

Other Professional 10 2%  

Stranger 10 2%  

Volunteer/Befriender 3 1%  

 Total 523 100.0%  

    

Location of alleged abuse: Chart 8 shows the location of alleged abuse; with 
the service users own home being the most likely location.  Care homes and 
nursing homes together account for 138 (27%) of referrals; a lower proportion 
than the 32% recorded last year.  The Board seeks to ensure high quality 
services that promote dignity and respect for the individual through the 
accountability of service providers and commissioners. 
 
Referrals are monitored by the Adult Safeguarding Team to identify any 
concerns about service providers.  The Adult Safeguarding Manager leads the 
Care Services Group to ensure emerging issues about the safety or quality of 
services used by vulnerable people are responded to effectively and there is 
specialist health and social care professional input into investigations.  This 
group receives reports from commissioners of services who oversee any 
action plan developed by the service to ensure the safety of residents. 

Page 118



 
Bromley Safeguarding Adults Board 

 Annual Report - 2010/2011 
 
 

 29 

Independent providers of social care are represented on the Board in 
recognition of their role in preventing and identifying abuse and neglect.  
Whistle-blowing is specifically mentioned in guidance to health and social care 
staff. 
 
Chart 8 

Location of alleged abuse for all referrals 2010/11 
 

  No of Referrals  %  

Own Home 211 40% 

Care Home with Nursing 71 13% 

Care Home 67 13% 

Home of person alleged to have caused harm  40 8% 

Supported Accommodation 35 7% 

Other   30 6% 

Not Known 18 3% 

Public Place 14 3% 

Acute Hospital 11 2% 

Mental Health Inpatient Setting 9 2% 

Other Health Setting (Including Hospice) 6 1% 

Education/Training/Workplace Establishment 6 1% 

Day Centre/Service 5 1% 

 Total 523 100% 

 
Outcome of all closed referrals 2010/11 (including 52 referrals received in 

2009/10) by service user group: Chart 9 shows that overall in 2010/11, 40% of 
concluded safeguarding referrals were either fully or partially substantiated, which 
is consistent with last year.  The Board has received information which confirms 
this data is in line with comparable local authority areas. 
 

 
Chart 9 

Analysis of outcome data 2010/11 
 

  
Older 
People 

Mental 
Health 

Physical 
Disabilities 
Sensory 

Impairment 

Learning 
Disabilities  

Total % 

Unsubstantiated 124 0 4 40 168 39% 

Substantiated 93 5 4 41 143 33% 

Inconclusive 61 3 3 25 92 21% 

Partially 
Substantiated 

21 1 6 3 31 7% 

Total  299 9 17 109 434 100% 

Page 119



 
Bromley Safeguarding Adults Board 

 Annual Report - 2010/2011 
 
 

 30 

Specific Outcomes - Service Users 
Chart 10 shows data on outcomes for service users was collected from 434 
concluded cases in accordance with Department of Health abuse of 
vulnerable adults (AVA) reporting requirements.  Outcomes are collected from 
cases whether abuse is substantiated or not, and each case may have more 
than one outcome. 
 

The most common outcomes following safeguarding referral are: a community 
care assessment (190 cases), increased monitoring (93 cases), and no further 
action (59 cases).  There has been an increase or change of care in 39 cases. 
 

To protect vulnerable adults, 48 service users have moved address, restriction 
of access by an alleged perpetrator has occurred in 23 cases.  16 service 
users have had specific legal measures placed upon them to protect their 
finances and a further 8 have had help with managing finances. 
 

Referral to independent advocacy has been reported in only 8 cases, the 
Board is seeking to increase the number of service users benefiting from 
independent advocates through training and performance monitoring. 
 

Chart 10  
Outcomes for Service Users 

 

  

Older 
People 

Physical 
Disabilities 
Sensory 

Impairment 

Learning 
Disability 

Mental 
Health 

Total 

Community Care Assessment & 
Services  

146 9 35 0 190 

Increased Monitoring  55 4 28 6 93 

No Further Action 39 0 19 1 59 

Vulnerable Adult removed from 
property or service 

34 1 13 0 48 

Moved to increase / Different Care  29 1 7 2 39 

Restriction/management of access 
to alleged perpetrator 

10 0 10 3 23 

Referral to Counselling /Training 3 4 11 2 20 

Application to change appointee-ship 8 2 2 0 12 

Referral to advocacy scheme  6 0 1 1 8 

Management of access to finances 5 0 2 1 8 

Other 4 1 2 1 8 

Application to Court of Protection  3 0 0 0 3 

Civil Action  0 0 1 0 1 

Guardianship/Use of Mental Health 
act 

0 0 0 0 0 

Review of Self-Directed Support (IB) 0 0 0 0 0 

Referral to MARAC 0 0 0 0 0 

Total  342 22 131 17 512 

Page 120



 
Bromley Safeguarding Adults Board 

 Annual Report - 2010/2011 
 
 

 31 

Specific outcomes – person alleged to have caused harm 
Chart 11 shows the outcomes for the person alleged to have caused harm 
which were collected from 434 cases concluded during 2010/11 in accordance 
with the requirements of the Department of Health.  Each case may have 
more than one outcome.  The most common outcome for the person alleged 
to have caused harm is ‘no further action’, which was the outcome in 186 
cases and relates to the fact that abuse is not substantiated in a high 
proportion of cases. 
 

It is significant there has been police action in 106 cases (an increase from 43 
cases last year) and police prosecution/caution in 13 cases (an increase from 
2 cases last year). 
 

In 20 cases, the person alleged to have caused harm was removed from the 
property (a decline from 25 cases last year). In 26 cases, there was 
disciplinary action against a staff member (an increase from 20 cases last 
year). 

 
Chart 11  

Outcomes for person alleged to have caused harm 
 

  
Older 

People 

Physical 
Disabilities 
Sensory 

Impairment 

Learning 
Disability 

Mental 
Health 

Total 

No Further Action 143 2 39 2 186 

Police Action 64 5 34 3 106 

Management of access to the 
Vulnerable Adult 

22 1 15 6 44 

Counselling/Training/Treatment 19 5 6 0 30 

Disciplinary Action 15 1 10 0 26 

Removal from property or service 16 1 2 1 20 

Action by Care Quality Commission 17 0 1 0 18 

Community Care Assessment 15 1 1 1 18 

Continued Monitoring 13 0 4 0 17 

Criminal Prosecution / Formal 
Caution 

9 0 3 1 13 

Not Known 5 0 3 0 8 

Exoneration 0 2 5 0 7 

Referred to PoVA List / ISA** 1 0 1 0 2 

Action by Contract Compliance 1 0 1 0 2 

Referral to MAPPA 0 0 1 0 1 

Action under Mental Health Act 0 0 0 1 1 

Total  340 18 126 15 499 

**Referral to Protection of Vulnerable Adults list run by Independent Safeguarding 
Authority for consideration of barring from work with vulnerable adults. 

Page 121



 
Bromley Safeguarding Adults Board 

 Annual Report - 2010/2011 
 
 

 32 

5. BSAB work plan 2011/12 
 

The work plan for the next three years will build on the five objectives agreed 
by partners and service users in the new BSAB Safeguarding Adults Strategy 
2011-14: 
 

1. Awareness: continue to improve awareness of the signs of abuse and 
neglect and know how to report concerns. 

 

2. Services: ensure all services adhere to the highest standards of safety 
for service users. 

 

3. Practice: promote consistent safeguarding practice by robust quality 
assurance and performance information. 

 

4. Choice: encourage vulnerable people to take control of their situations. 
 

5. Capacity:  Safeguard vulnerable adults who lack the ability to make 
decisions that would protect them from harm. 

 

 
Significant tasks from the 2011/12 work plan are: 
 

• Implementation of ‘Safeguarding adults in London, Policy and 
Procedures’ across the Bromley adult safeguarding partnership in June 
2011.  This will require all partners to be aware of the new procedures 
and updating of local protocols for practitioners. 

 

• Commissioning an external agency to maximise the collection of 
feedback from service users and their advocates, about their 
experience of the safeguarding process.  The evidence gained will be 
used to develop actions to make improvements to practice. 

 

• Audit of health and social care settings to determine awareness of 
Mental Capacity Act 2005 principles, and compliance with the 
Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards, and to make recommendations to 
improve outcomes for service users. 

 
The BSAB work plan 2011/12 is attached (Appendix 1) 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 122



 
Bromley Safeguarding Adults Board 

 Annual Report - 2010/2011 
 
 

 33 

 
6. Appendices 
 
Appendix 1: BSAB work plan 2011/12 
 
Appendix 2: Analysis of Safeguarding Spend 2010/11 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 123



 

 

Appendix 1 

P
age 124



 
 

 

P
age 125



 
 

 

P
age 126



 
 

 

P
age 127



 
Bromley Safeguarding Adults Board 

 Annual Report - 2010/2011 
 
 

 38 

P
age 128



 
 

Appendix 2 
 
 

 BROMLEY SAFEGUARDING ADULTS BOARD BUDGET OUTTURN 

REPORT 

  

      

 Description Revised 

Budget 

Total 

Outturn 

Variance  

  £ £ £  

 EXPENDITURE     

 Publicity & Awareness 1,410 1,674 264  

 Publicity & Awareness Contingency 1,500 0 (1,500)  

 Training Strategy  29,000 22,940 (6,060)  

 Training Room Hire 2,000 2,640 640  

 Purchase of E-Learning System 7,500 0 (7,500)  

 Training Contingency 2,500 0 (2,500)  

 Professional Subscriptions 225 974 749  

 BSAB Conference Expenditure 3,500 3,386 (114)  

 Serious Care Reviews 0 0 0  

 Total Expenditure 47,635 31,614 (16,021)  

      

 INCOME     

 Balance Bfwd (16,305) (16,305) 0  

 Donations 0 0 0  

 Contributions from Met Police (5,000) (5,000) 0  

 Contributions from Oxleas NHS Trust (5,000) (5,000) 0  

 Contributions from South London Health Trust (5,000) (5,000) 0  

 Contributions from Bromley Primary Care Trust (8,000) (8,000) 0  

 Contributions from LBB (8,500) (8,500) 0  

 Contributions from LBB - Training Grant 0 (325) (325)  

 Total (47,805) (48,130) (325)  

      

 Balance Cfwd (170) (16,516) (16,346)  

      

      

      

 
 

Page 129



Page 130

This page is left intentionally blank



  

1

Report No. 
ACS 11035 

London Borough of Bromley 
 

PART 1 - PUBLIC 
 

<Please select> 

 

   

Decision Maker: Adult and Community Services Performance Development 
and Scrutiny Committee 

Date:  26th July 2011 

Decision Type: Non-Urgent Non-Executive Non-Key 

Title: CONTRACTING ACTIVITY IN ADULT AND COMMUNITY 
SERVICES 2011-12 
 

Contact Officer: Wendy Norman, Strategic Manager, Procurement and Contract Compliance 
Tel:  020 8313 4212   E-mail:  wendy.norman@bromley.gov.uk 

Chief Officer: Terry Rich, Director of Adult and Community ServicesType name here 

Ward:       

 
1. Reason for report 

 Policy Development and Scrutiny (PDS) Committees are reviewing the Contract Registers and 
contractual activity of all portfolios.  This report outlines current contractual activity in Adult and 
Community Services and sets out plans for activities to be undertaken in 2011  

________________________________________________________________________________ 

2. RECOMMENDATION 

 Members are asked to note and comment on this report. 

 

Agenda Item 13

Page 131



  

2

Corporate Policy 
 

1. Policy Status: Existing policy.        
 

2. BBB Priority: Excellent Council.       
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Financial 
 

1. Cost of proposal: N/A       
 

2. Ongoing costs: Recurring cost.       
 

3. Budget head/performance centre: 750 
 

4. Total current budget for this head: £62m 
 

5. Source of funding:       
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Staff 
 

1. Number of staff (current and additional): 15 in Procurement and Contract Compliance Teams   
 

2. If from existing staff resources, number of staff hours:         
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Legal 
 

1. Legal Requirement: Non-statutory - Government guidance.       
 

2. Call-in: Call-in is applicable       
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Customer Impact 
 

1. Estimated number of users/beneficiaries (current and projected): 10,000 service users who 
benefit from services procured by ACS  

________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Ward Councillor Views 
 

1. Have Ward Councillors been asked for comments?  No.  
 

2. Summary of Ward Councillors comments:        
 

Page 132



  

3

3. COMMENTARY 

3.1 The Executive and Resources Policy Development and Scrutiny (PDS) Committee has 
recommended that the PDS committee for each Portfolio reviews the contracts register 
associated with that portfolio.   

3.2 The ACS department spends £34m per annum (gross of client contribution and Funded Nursing 
Care) on Spot contracts for clients in residential or nursing care placements and £27.5m per 
annum on contracts which have been tendered.  The contracts register holds all the information 
on our tendered contracts with Care First holding the information about our spot placements. 

3.3 Our current contracts register shows that there are 146 individual ACS contracts.  The annual 
value is £30.8m and the total contract value is £153m.  The individual contract values range 
from less than £1k to £27m.  Appendix 1 is an extract from the register which shows contracting 
activity planned for the rest of 2011. 

3.4 Forty one contracts expire during the next six months.  These include a number of significant 
contract awards which will be reported to the Portfolio Holder.  Project plans are in place to 
ensure that pre-tender planning and procurement processes will be completed on time and 
reported as required.   

3.5 Several framework agreements are being developed during 2011-12. Putting these agreements 
in place will ensure that the department is able to call on quality services from chosen providers 
at guaranteed prices.  Our experience of using framework agreements in the Supporting People 
programme is that very cost effective contracts can be achieved through both putting the 
framework in place and through mini competition when services are called off from the 
framework.  The frameworks are listed below and the timelines for their award are set out in 
Appendix 2.  

§ Extra Care Housing.  Procurement Strategy agreed by Executive 6.4.11 

§ Domiciliary Care.  Procurement strategy reported to Executive 20.7.11 

§ Flexible Support Services for People with Learning Disabilities.  To be reported to 
Executive 7.9.11 

3.6 Commissioners are currently reviewing respite services for older people and Advocacy 
Services.  The outcomes of these reviews will be considered by the department and 
recommendations for procurement strategies will be reported to the Portfolio Holder or 
Executive as appropriate.  Procurement activities will then be carried out by the Procurement 
Team. 

3.7 Other key contracts which will be subject to further work during 2011-12 are; 

§ Equipment and aids to daily living 

§ Support to people in receipt of direct payments 

§ Preparation for the formation of Healthwatch as a successor to the LINK. 

3.8 A key activity every financial year is to ensure that inflationary increases on all contracts are 
managed within budget.  During 2009-10 and 2010-11 officers undertook were able to hold the 
average inflation rates negotiated with contractors to below the Council’s budgeted inflation 
rate, thus making a considerable contribution towards the departmental efficiency targets.  

Page 133



  

4

3.9 The contracts team has developed and adopted a work plan based on work arising from all 
contracts due to expire during the next 3 years.  It also outlines the strategy to be adopted for 
commissioning, the responsible commissioner and key milestones.  A traffic light mechanism is 
used to assess the current status of each project and any projects with red status are reported 
to fortnightly divisional management team meetings and quarterly to the ACS Departmental 
Management Team.  Commissioners and Procurement and Contract Compliance staff 
implement recovery plans for projects with red status alerts in order to ensure that the 
department operates within financial regulations. 

3.10 The Contract Compliance team is responsible for ensuring that all contracts are monitored.  The 
level of monitoring undertaken is decided on the basis of a risk assessment which takes into 
account the vulnerability of users, previous performance, complaints, safeguarding issues 
raised and contract value.  Monitoring is proportionate to the size of the contract and risk, 
therefore ensuring that resources are allocated appropriately. The team is also responsible for 
ensuring that regular performance information is received, analysed and reported to relevant 
commissioners and making regular visits to services to ensure that they are delivering high 
quality services at best value.  The team also facilitates regular provider forums in order to 
engage with the supplier market. 

3.11 The ACS Procurement and Contract Compliance Team has taken a leading role for the Council 
on the implementation of e-procurement after being selected by Corporate Procurement to run a 
pilot project. We are working on behalf of the borough with a pan London group working with 
Capital Ambition which is procuring a web portal that facilitates web based procurement activity.  
The e-tendering system will also ensure that all future tender opportunities are advertised 
through the Governments Contracts Finder website.  E-tendering significantly reduces the 
officer time and resources required for procurement exercises including administering the 
process of getting quotations for lower value goods and services.   

3.12 The ACS Procurement and Contract Compliance Team is working in cooperation with Corporate 
Procurement to look at the opportunities around joint contracting, particularly with the members 
of the South East London Procurement Group. 

4. POLICY IMPLICATIONS 

 Arrangements for ensuring best value and high quality services are key to delivering the 
“excellent council” objective within Building a Better Bromley. 

5. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

5.1 There are 146 individual ACS contracts on the Contracts Register.  The annual value is £30.8 
and the total contract value is £153m. 

5.2 There are measures in place to ensure that savings that can be made through procurement 
processes are identified.  All new contract awards where the value exceeds current value less 
25% will be considered by an Officer Procurement Board and a Member Star Chamber. 

6. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

 Procurement and Contract Compliance work is carried out in accordance with the Council’s 
Financial Regulations and Procurement Rules.  Where appropriate procurement exercises are 
undertaken in accordance with European Union regulations.  

 

 

Page 134



  

5

Non-Applicable Sections: Personnel Implications 

Background Documents: 
(Access via Contact 
Officer) 

 

 

Page 135



Page 136

This page is left intentionally blank



ACS Contracts Activity 2011 Appendix 1

Title Start Date End Date

Extension 

Expiry 

Extension 

Details  Total Value 

 Annual 

Value Notes

A2Dominion Housing Older People 01-Apr-07 12-Jul-11 12-Jul-11 2 month extension value £2,920.33. Further 2 week extension value £2015.9537,964£        17,522£     Ceases

Home Group (Stonham) Supported Housing Ex-Offenders 01-Apr-11 31-Jul-11 31-Jul-11 Contract extended for one month5,768£         69,220£     New contract awarded

Look Ahead Supported Housing Ex Offenders 01-Apr-11 31-Jul-11 31-Jul-11 Contract extended for one month1,986£         23,840£     New contract awarded

Look Ahead Accom and Fltg Pregnant Teenagers 01-Apr-07 31-Aug-11 31-Aug-11 Extension from Apr to Aug 2011 with a value of £36,559.02340,017£      36,559£     New contract awarded

Look Ahead Supported Housing Young People 01-Apr-07 31-Aug-11 31-Aug-11 Further extension from Apr to Aug 2011 with a value of 133,835.831,407,276£   133,836£   New contract awarded

Look Ahead Fltg Support Bromley Independent Scheme Young People 01-Apr-07 31-Aug-11 31-Aug-11 Extension from apr to Aug 2011 with a value of £13,393.85140,836£      13,394£     New contract awarded

A2Dominion Supported Housing Young People 01-Apr-11 31-Aug-11 None 39,030£        93,670£     New contract awarded

Catch 22Supported Accom Wiverton and Stembridge Young People 01-Apr-11 31-Aug-11 None 19,536£        46,887£     New contract awarded

GS Laundries - Contract for the provision of laundry services 01-Jun-11 02-Sep-11 7,500£         30,000£     Negotiating new contract

Age Concern Floating Support Service Older People 01-Apr-11 30-Sep-11 No extension available30,000£        60,000£     Will cease

Information, Advice & guidance for ACS Services 01-Oct-10 30-Sep-11 No extension period available85,000£        85,000£     Negotiating new contract

Community Links Bromley Core Funding and Volunteer Centre 01-Apr-11 30-Sep-11 None 77,636£        155,271£   Report ACS in September

Advocacy First 01-Apr-11 30-Sep-11 None 10,470£        20,940£     Advocacy review to DMT July

Community Links PA Accreditation 01-Apr-11 30-Sep-11 10,000£        20,000£     Pilot project 

Inspire Community Trust Advice and Support Service for Direct 01-Apr-11 30-Sep-11 46,080£        92,159£     Report to DMT

Liberata Payroll Service for Direct Payments with Holding Accounts 02-Feb-08 30-Sep-11 30-Sep-11 Extended for maximum of 8 months. 47,250£        9,750£       Report to DMT

Avenues Trust support at Bourne Way, The Elms and Kings Hall Road 01-Oct-08 30-Sep-11 2 year extension available832,000£      416,000£   Report to ACS

Burgess Autistic Trust - Winsford House 01-Apr-09 30-Sep-11 30-Sep-11 588,860£      92,860£     Report to ACS September

Bexley and Bromley Advocacy Speaking Up Group 01-Apr-11 30-Sep-11 10,000£        10,000£     Advocacy review to DMT July

Oakhouse Food Frozen Foods Delivery Service 13-Dec-10 30-Sep-11 30-Sep-11 Extended to enable a full review of the service to take place50,000£        150,000£   
Consultation underway about future 

arrangements for meals

Citizens Advice Bureau - Independent Housing Advice Service 01-Mar-09 31-Oct-11 60,478£        38,197£     Report to DMT July

Bromley Citizens Advice Bureau Core Funding General Advice Service 01-Nov-08 31-Oct-11 Option to extend for 2 years. 730,560£      256,349£   Report to DMT July

Page 1

Bromley Citizens Advice Bureau Core Funding General Advice Service 01-Nov-08 31-Oct-11 Option to extend for 2 years. 730,560£      256,349£   Report to DMT July

Mission Care Intermediate Care - Older People 29-Nov-05 28-Nov-11 Option to extend 2 years5,080,116£   846,686£   To be extended

Post Office Concessionary Travel - Older People 02-Jan-10 31-Dec-11 3 year extension available-£             -£           Work in progress

Support Service for families and carers affected by stroke 01-Jun-09 31-Dec-11 Option available to extend for 2 years86,765£        34,706£     Work in progress

Crime Reductions Initiative Substance Misuse 01-Apr-08 31-Dec-11 31-Dec-11 Extended from April to Dec 2011 as per letter from PCT2,198,404£   439,681£   Work in progress

BYPASS (Bromley Young Persons Alcohol & Substance Misuse Service) 01-Apr-08 31-Dec-11 31-Dec-11 Extended for 9 months with a value of £23,010490,605£      23,010£     Work in progress

Phoenix Futures 01-Apr-08 31-Dec-11 31-Dec-11 Extended from April to Dec 2011 with a value of£307,622.1,489,025£   307,622£   Work in progress

Page 1

P
age 137



P
age 138

T
his page is left intentionally blank



Timelines for ACS Contracts 2011 Appendix 2

LD Framework April May June July August Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb March April May June July Aug 

Gateway review decision date

Tender period

Evaluation period

Contract award decision date

Framework start date

Extra Care Framework

Gateway review decision date

Tender period

Evaluation period

Contract award decision date

Framework start date

Mini Competitions

Domiciliary Care

Gateway review decision date

Preparation of documents

Tender period

Evaluation period

Contract award decision date

Implementation Period

Framework start date

20122011

P
age 139



P
age 140

T
his page is left intentionally blank



  

1

Report No. 
RES11070 

London Borough of Bromley 
 

PART 1 - PUBLIC 
 
  

 

 

   

Decision Maker: Adult and Community PDS Committee 

Date:  27th July 2011 

Decision Type: Non-Urgent Non-Executive Non-Key 

Title: ADULT AND COMMUNITY PDS WORK PROGRAMME 
2011/2012 
 

Contact Officer: Philippa Stone, Democratic Services Officer 
Tel:  020 8313 4871   E-mail:  philippa.stone@bromley.gov.uk 

Chief Officer: Mark Bowen, Director of Resources 

Ward: N/A 

 
1. Reason for report 

1.1 This report provides the Committee with an opportunity to review its work programme and make 
any necessary adjustments. 

 

________________________________________________________________________________ 

2. RECOMMENDATION(S) 

 2.1 The Committee is asked to consider its work programme and schedule of meetings and indicate 
any changes that it wishes to make. 

 

 

Agenda Item 14

Page 141



  

2

Corporate Policy 
 

1. Policy Status: Existing policy.  As part of the Excellent Council stream within Building a Better 
Bromley, PDS Committees should plan and prioritise their workload to achieve the most effective 
outcomes. 

 

2. BBB Priority: Excellent Council.       
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Financial 
 

1. Cost of proposal: No cost       
 

2. Ongoing costs: N/A.       
 

3. Budget head/performance centre: Democratic Services  
 

4. Total current budget for this head: £344,054  
 

5. Source of funding: Existing 2011/2012 budgets 
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Staff 
 

1. Number of staff (current and additional):  There are 10 posts (9.22 fte) in the Democratic 
Services Team .   

 

2. If from existing staff resources, number of staff hours: Maintaining the Committee's work 
programme takes less than an hour per meeting.   

________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Legal 
 

1. Legal Requirement: No statutory requirement or Government guidance.       
 

2. Call-in: Call-in is not applicable. This report does not involve an executove decision 
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Customer Impact 
 

1. Estimated number of users/beneficiaries (current and projected): This report is intended 
primarily for Members of this Committee to use in controlling their on-going work.   

________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Ward Councillor Views 
 

1. Have Ward Councillors been asked for comments?  No.  
 

2. Summary of Ward Councillors comments:  N/A 
 

Page 142



  

3

3. COMMENTARY 

3.1 The Committee’s 2009/10 Work Programme to date is attached at Appendix A.  

3.2 The Committee is asked at each meeting to consider its Work Programme and review its workload in 
accordance with the process outlined at Section 7 of the Scrutiny Toolkit.  All PDS Committees are also 
recommended to monitor the Council’s Forward Plan of Key Decisions for their portfolios and to use it for 
identifying issues for consideration in advance of executive decisions being made.  The Forward Plan 
issued on 16th June 2011 includes key decisions related to the Adult and Community Portfolio and the 
next Forward Plan will be published on 14th July 2011. 

3.3 The next meeting of the Accommodation and Care for Older People Reference Group will be held on 
10th October at 9.30am. 

3.5 In approving the work programme Members will need to be satisfied that priority issues are being 
addressed; that there is an appropriate balance between the Committee’s key roles of (i) holding the 
Executive to account, (ii) policy development and review, and (iii) external scrutiny of local health 
services; and that the programme is realistic in terms of Member time and officer support capacity. 

 

Non-Applicable Sections: Policy/Financial/Legal/Personnel 

Background Documents: 
(Access via Contact Officer) 

Previous work programme reports 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 143



  

4

APPENDIX A 

A&C PDS Committee – Work Programme 2011/2012 
 
4th April 2011 (Joint with PPS PDS) 
 
SLAM Update 
 
14 June 2011 
 
Appointment and Review of Co-opted Members 
Supporting Independence in Bromley Update 
Annual Complaints Report 
Adult and Community Portfolio Plan  
Housing and Residential Services Annual Report 
Empty Properties: Outcome of Feasibility Review 
Sheltered Housing – Outcomes from Consultation 
LD Contracts – Avenues Trust 
Short Break Service for People with Learning Disabilities 
Budget Closedown 2010/2011 
Matters Arising/Work Programme  
$Stroke Services in Bromley 
$NHS Quality, Innovation, Productivity and Prevention (QIPP) Programme Update 
 
Health Scrutiny Sub-Committee: 19th July 2011 
 
Update from South London Healthcare NHS Trust: Dr Chris Streather, Chief Executive 
 
26 July 2011 
 
Bromley Safeguarding Adults Board 2009/10 Annual Report (PDS) 
Budget Monitoring 2010/11 (PH) 
Matters Arising/Work Programme  
Changes to the provision of small items of equipment and talking books for visually impaired people 
(PH) 
Proposed changes to older people’s mental health inpatient services within Oxleas NHS Trust (PH) 
+Rewarding and Fulfilling Lives – A Strategy for Adults with Autism (PDS) 
Third Sector Scrutiny: Advocacy for All (PDS) 
+Contract Renewal 6 Monthly Update 
+Scrutiny of a Budget Area: Commissioning 
 
27 September 2011 
 
Supporting Independence in Bromley Update 
Review of Adult Social Care Survey (PDS) 
Budget Monitoring 2010/11 
Dementia Strategy 
+Blue Badge Update 
+Taxicard Update 
Capital Programme 
Matters Arising/Work Programme  
+Scrutiny of a Budget Area: TBA 
 
1 November 2011 
 
Monitoring Direct Payments and Personal Budgeting 
Adult and Community Services Mid-year Performance Report  
Housing and Residential Services Mid-year Performance Report 

 Update on Quality of Domiciliary Care 
Budget Monitoring 2010/11 

Page 144



  

5

Matters Arising/Work Programme  
+Scrutiny of a Budget Area: TBA 
+Re-ablement Review  
 
31 January 2012 
 
Monitoring Direct Payments and Personal Budgeting 
Public Health Update from the Portfolio Holder for Resources 
Contract Monitoring of Care Homes – Annual Report  
+Support Planning and Brokerage Contract for People who do not meet the Council’s Eligibility 
Criteria for Social Care 
Budget Monitoring 2010/11 
Capital Programme 
Matters Arising/Work Programme  
Drug Action Team Annual Report 
+Contract Renewal 6 Monthly Update 
+Scrutiny of a Budget Area: TBA 
+Stroke Services in Bromley Update 
 
10 April 2012 
 
Monitoring Direct Payments and Personal Budgeting 
Draft Portfolio Plan 
Budget Monitoring 2010/11 
Capital Programme 
+Scrutiny of a Budget Area: TBA 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
*Part 2 (Exempt) Report        
+Item requested by Chairman/Committee Member 
$ Item Scheduled by NHS representatives 
 

Last Updated 13.07.11 

Page 145



Page 146

This page is left intentionally blank



Agenda Item 16

Page 147

Document is Restricted



Page 148

This page is left intentionally blank



Agenda Item 17

Page 149

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 152

This page is left intentionally blank


	Agenda
	5 MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF ADULT AND COMMUNITY SERVICES PDS COMMITTEE MEETING HELD ON 14 JUNE 2011
	6 MATTERS ARISING FROM PREVIOUS MEETINGS
	7 CO-OPTED MEMBERS TO THE A&C PDS COMMITTEE: UPDATE
	8 PORTFOLIO HOLDER DECISIONS TAKEN SINCE THE LAST MEETING
	9a IMPLEMENTING "FULFILLING AND REWARDING LIVES" - A COMMISSIONING PLAN FOR ADULTS WITH AUTISM IN BROMLEY
	9b THE PROVISION OF EQUIPMENT AND TALKING BOOKS FOR VISUALLY IMPAIRED PEOPLE
	9c PROPOSED CHANGES TO OLDER PEOPLE'S MENTAL HEALTH IN-PATIENT SERVICES WITHIN OXLEAS NHS TRUST
	9d BUDGET MONITORING 2011/12
	BUDGET MONITORING 2011/12 APPENDIX

	10 THIRD SECTOR SCRUTINY: ADVOCACY FOR ALL
	11 BROMLEY SAFEGUARDING ADULTS BOARD 2010/11 ANNUAL REPORT
	BROMLEY SAFEGUARDING ADULTS BOARD 2010/11 ANNUAL REPORT APPENDIX 1

	13 CONTRACTING ACTIVITY IN ADULT AND COMMUNITY SERVICES 2011-12
	CONTRACTING ACTIVITY IN ADULT AND COMMUNITY SERVICES 2011-12 APPENDIX 1
	CONTRACTING ACTIVITY IN ADULT AND COMMUNITY SERVICES 2011-12 APPENDIX 2

	14 WORK PROGRAMME 2011-2012
	16 EXEMPT MINUTES OF THE ADULT AND COMMUNITY SERVICES PDS COMMITTEE MEETING HELD ON 14 JUNE 2011
	17 EXEMPT PORTFOLIO HOLDER DECISIONS TAKEN SINCE THE LAST MEETING

